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June 25, 2O2l

BSE Limited
Department of Corporate Services,
25, P. J. Towers,
DaIaI Street,
MUMBAI - 4OO OOl

Stock Code: 5OO12O

Sub. Submission of Annual Report 2O2O-2021 and Notice convening the 45m Annual
General Meeting of the Company

Ref. Intimation under Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulation, 2015 as amended.

Dear Sir/ Ma'am,

Pursuant to Reguiation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2O15, we submit herewith the Annual Report of the
Company for the Financi al, Year 2020-2021 along with the Notice convening the 45th
Annual General Meeting will be held on T[esday, July 20, 2O21 at 12:OO Noon
through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

Kindly take the same on record.

Thanking You.

For Diamines and Chemica.ls Limited
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H Pawar
Company Secretary

Encl: As above
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₹ ₹

₹

20Tuesday

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors' 
and Auditors' thereon including the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on March 31, 2021.



is
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6.  Appointment of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non-ExecuƟve Director in the category of 
Director  and to approve payment of fees/compensaƟon  

 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following ResoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon:

 
 

“RESOLVED THAT
 

pursuant to the provisions of regulaƟon 17(6)(a) of the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosures Requirement) RegulaƟons, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rules made there under (including any statutory modificaƟons or re-enactment thereof for the 
Ɵme being in force), if any, and subject to any other approval/(s) as may be necessary, in 
consideraƟon of the recommendaƟon of NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and further 
approval of Board of Directors, the Company hereby approves the term of appointment of Mr. 
Rajendra Chhabra as Non-ExecuƟve Director in the category of Professional Director on the 
Board of the Company for  the period of 3 years w.e.f. November 06, 2020 with such consulƟng 
fees/compensaƟon  as may be agreed by and

 

between Board and Mr. Chhabra , and whose term 
shall be liable to reƟre by rotaƟon.”

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers as may be deemed necessary and expedient in this regard.”

Professional 



  
 

 

7.

 

To approve RemuneraƟon already paid to Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non-ExecuƟve Director in 
the category of Professional Director

 

exceeding fiŌy per cent of the total 
RemuneraƟon /compensaƟon/fees

 

payable to all the Non -ExecuƟve Director of the Company 
for the financial year 2020-21 

 
 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following ResoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon:

 
 

“RESOLVED THAT

 

pursuant to RegulaƟon 17(6)(ca) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(LisƟngObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons,2015 including any amendment, 
modificaƟon, variaƟonor re -enactment thereof for the Ɵme being in force and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,2013 the consent of the members be and is hereby 
accorded for the remunaƟon/compensaƟon/fees paid to Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Professional 
Director starƟng with effect from November 6, 2020 to March, 31 2021 which is exceeding fiŌy 
per cent of the total remuneraƟon paid to all other Non-ExecuƟve Directors of the Company for 
that year.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers as may be deemed necessary and expedient in this regard.”
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8.  To approve payment of RemuneraƟon of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non -ExecuƟve Director in

 
the category of Professional Director exceeding fiŌy per cent of the total 
RemuneraƟon/compensaƟon/fees payable to all other Non-ExecuƟve Director of the 
Company for the financial year 2021-22

 
 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following ResoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon:

 
 

 
“RESOLVED THAT

 
pursuant to RegulaƟon 17(6)(ca) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 

(LisƟng ObligaƟons

 

and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons,2015 including any amendment, 
modificaƟon, variaƟon

 

or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme being in force and

 

other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,2013 the consent of the members be and is hereby 
accorded for the remuneraƟon/compensaƟon/fees payable to Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as 
Professional Director for the financial year 2021 -22, which may be

 

exceeding fiŌy per cent of the 
total remuneraƟon paid to all other Non -ExecuƟve Directors of the Company for the said 
period.”

 
 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers as may be deemed necessary and expedient in this regard.”

  

9.  Commission to Non-ExecuƟve Directors  
 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following ResoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon:  
 

“RESOLVED THAT
 

pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 197, 198 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the Ɵme being in force) read with Schedu le V of 
the Companies Act, 2013, and

 

RegulaƟon 17(6) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 and subject to all the 
statutory permissions, sancƟons and approvals of any statutory authority(ies), as may be 
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necessary, approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of Commission to 
the Director(s) of the Company who are not in the whole Ɵme employment of the Company, in 
accordance with and upto the limits laid down under provisions of secƟon 197 of the Act, 
computed in manner specified in the Act, for a period of 5 (Five) years from the financial year 
commencing from 1st

 
April, 2021, in such manner and upto such extent as the NominaƟon and 

RemuneraƟon CommiƩee of the
 

Board may, from Ɵme to Ɵme, determine.”
 

 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 
for the purpose of giving effect to this resoluƟon, the Board and /or 

NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee consƟtuted by the Board be and are hereby 
authorized to take all acƟons and do all such deeds, maƩers and things, as it may in its absolute 
discreƟon deem necessary, proper or desirable and to seƩle any quesƟon, difficulty or doubt 
that may arise in this regard.”

 
 

10.

 

To approve ‘DACL -

  

Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021’

 
 

To consider

 

and, if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as a

 

Special ResoluƟon:

 
 

“RESOLVED THAT

 

pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 62 (1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Act, including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment of the Act 
for the Ɵme being in force and in accordance with the provisions of the  Memorandum and 
ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company and the provisions of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board 
of India (Share Based Employee  Benefits) RegulaƟons, 2014 including any modificaƟons thereof 
or supplements thereto (“the SEBI SBEB RegulaƟons”), SEBI

 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and 

Disclosure
 

Requirements)
 

RegulaƟons, 2015 (“the SEBI LODR RegulaƟons”), the LisƟng 
Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchange where the securiƟes of the Company are listed 
and any other applicable laws for the Ɵme

 
being in force and subject to such other consents, 

permissions, sancƟons and approvals which may be agreed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinaŌer referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include the 
NominaƟon and Remuneration CommiƩee), consent of the Shareholders be and is hereby 
accorded to introduce and implement the ‘DACL

 

-

 

Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021’ (“ESOP -
2021”) the salient features of which are detailed in the Explanatory Statement to this NoƟce and 
to create, grant, offer, issue and allot at any Ɵme in one or more tranches to or for the benefit of 
such person(s) who are in the permanent employment of the Company, whether working in 
India or outside India, including Director of the Company, whether Whole-time director or not, 
but excluding Promoter, Promoter group and independent Directors and such other persons as 
may from Ɵme to Ɵme be allowed to be eligible for the benefit under the provisions of 
applicable laws and RegulaƟons prevailing from Ɵme to Ɵme (hereinaŌer collecƟvely referred to 
as “Employees”) selected on the basis of criteria decided by the Board under the ESOP-2021, 
such number of stock opƟons converƟble into Equity Shares of the Company (“OpƟons”), in one 
or more tranches, not exceeding 2,00,000 (Two Lakhs)

 

equity shares of face value of     10/ -
each (Rupees Ten), at such price and on such terms and condiƟons as may be fixed or 
determined by the Board in accordance with the ESOP -2021, and all provisions of applicable 
laws.”

₹
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

the Scheme may also envisage provisions for providing financial 
assistance to the Eligible Employees to enable them to acquire, purchase or subscribe to the said 
SecuriƟes of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Act/RegulaƟons.”

 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

the Board be and is hereby authorized to issue and allot Equity 
Shares directly to the eligible Employees upon exercise of OpƟons from Ɵme to Ɵme in 
accordance with the ESOP-2021 and such equity shares shall rank pari-passu in all respects with 
the then exisƟng equity shares of the Company.”

 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

in case of any corporate acƟon(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, 
merger and sale of division or other re-organisaƟon of capital structure of the Company, as 
applicable from Ɵme to Ɵme, if any addiƟonal equity shares are issued by the Company for the 
purpose of making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the Stock OpƟons granted earlier, the 
above ceiling shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such addiƟonal equity shares 
issued.”

 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

in case the equity shares of the Company are either sub-divided or 
consolidated, then the number of equity shares to be issued and alloƩed on exercise of OpƟons 
granted under the ESOP-2021 and the exercise price of OpƟons granted under the ESOP-2021 
shall automaƟcally stand augmented or reduced, as the case may be, in the same proporƟon as 
the present face value of � 10/- per equity share bears to their revised face value of the equity 
shares of the Company aŌer such sub-division or consolidaƟon, without affecƟng any other 
rights or obligaƟons of the employees who have been granted Stock OpƟons under the ESOP-
2021.”  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  without prejudice to the generality of the above the Board, which 
includes the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee is authorised to formulate, evolve, 
decide upon and implement the ESOP-2021, determine the detailed terms and condiƟons of the 
aforemenƟoned ESOP-2021 including but not limited

 
to the quantum of the OpƟons to be 

granted per employee, the number of OpƟons to be granted in each tranche, the terms or 
combinaƟon of terms subject to which the said OpƟons are to be granted, the exercise period, 
the vesƟng period, the vesƟng condiƟons, instances where such Stock OpƟons shall lapse and to 
grant such number of OpƟons, to such employees of the Company, at price, at such Ɵme and on 
such terms and condiƟons as set out in the ESOP-2021 and as the Board or the NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee may in its absolute discreƟon think fit.”

 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee be designated as the 
CompensaƟon CommiƩee in accordance with RegulaƟon 5(1) of the SEBI SBEB RegulaƟons for 
the purposes of administraƟon of ESOP-2021.” 

 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

the Board is hereby authorised to make any modificaƟons, changes, 
variaƟons, alteraƟons or revisions in the ESOP-2021 as it may deem fit, from Ɵme to Ɵme or to 
suspend, withdraw or revive the ESOP-2021 from Ɵme to Ɵme, in conformity with applicable 
laws, provided such variaƟons, modificaƟons, alteraƟons or revisions are not detrimental to the 
interests of the Employees.”

₹
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

the Board shall take necessary steps for lisƟng of the Equity Shares 
alloƩed under the ESOP-2021 on the Stock Exchanges, where the Shares of the Company are 
listed in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI SBEB RegulaƟons, the SEBI LODR RegulaƟons

 

and other applicable laws and regulaƟons.”

 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

for the purpose of giving effect to this ResoluƟon, the Board be and 
is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers and things as it may, in its absolute 
discreƟon, deem necessary, expedient or proper and to seƩle all quesƟons, difficulƟes or doubts 
that may arise in relaƟon to formulaƟon and implementaƟon of the ESOP-2021 at any stage 
including at the Ɵme of lisƟng of the equity shares issued herein without requiring t he Board to 
secure any further consent or approval of the Members of the Company to the end and intent 
that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this 
ResoluƟon.”

 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any powers 
conferred herein to NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee or such other CommiƩees, with 
power to

 

sub-delegate

 

to any ExecuƟves/Officers of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, 
maƩers and things as als o to execute such documents, wriƟngs etc., as may be necessary in this 
regard.”

 
 

11.

 

To extend approval of ‘DACL -

 

Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021’ to the employees of Holding 
Company and its Subsidiary Company (ies) 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 62 (1) (b) of the Companies Act,2013 
(“the Act”) and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board Of India (Share Based Employee  
Benefits) RegulaƟons, 2014 including any modificaƟons thereof or supplements thereto (“the 
SEBI SBEB RegulaƟons”), SEBI

 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements)

 
RegulaƟons, 

2015
 
(“the SEBI LODR RegulaƟons”), the LisƟng Agreement entered into with the Stock 

Exchanges where the securiƟes of the Company are listed and any other applicable laws for the 
Ɵme being in force and subject to such other consents, permissions, sancƟons and approvals as 
may be necessary and subject to such consents, permissions, sancƟons and approvals which 
may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinaŌer referred to as “the 
Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any CommiƩee including the NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee to exercise the powers conferred by this ResoluƟon), consent and 
approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to extend the benefits of ‘DACL -
Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021’ (“ESOP-

 

2021”) proposed in the resoluƟon number 10 above
to such persons who are in the permanent employment of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company(ies) (whether now or hereaŌer exisƟng, whether incorporate d in India or 
overseas as may be from Ɵme to Ɵme be allowed under the prevailing laws, rules and 
regulaƟons and / or any amendments thereto from Ɵme to Ɵme), whether working in India or 
out of India and to the directors of the Holding Company or its Subsidiary Companies, and to 
such other persons as may from Ɵme to Ɵme be allowed, under prevailing laws, rules and 
regulaƟons, and/or amendments thereto from Ɵme to Ɵme, on such terms and condiƟons as 
may be decided by the Board, and selected on the basis of criteria prescribed by the Board, at 
such price or prices in one or more tranches and on such terms and condiƟons, as may be fixed 
or determined by the Board in accordance with the ESOP– 2021.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

for the purpose of creaƟng, offering, issuing, alloƫng and lisƟng of 
the SecuriƟes, the Board be authorized on behalf of the Company to make any modificaƟons, 
changes, variaƟons, alteraƟons or revisions in the ESOP–

 

2021 from Ɵme to Ɵme or to suspend, 
withdraw, or revive ESOP–

 

2021 from Ɵme to Ɵme, provided such variaƟons, modificaƟons, 
alteraƟons or revisions are not detrimental to the interests of the Employees.”

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

for the purpose of giving effect to this ResoluƟon, the Board be 
authorized to determine terms and condiƟons of issue of the SecuriƟes and do all such acts, 
deeds, maƩers and things as it may, in its absolute discreƟon, deem necessary for such purpose 
and with power on behalf of the Company to seƩle any quesƟons, difficulƟes or do ubts that 
may arise in this regard without requiring to secure any further consent or approval of the 
Shareholders of the Company.”

 
 

12.

 

Grant of OpƟons to issue securiƟes equal to or exceeding One per cent but not exceeding Two

 

per cent of the issued Capital of the Company during any One financial year to idenƟfied 
employees under DACL -

 

Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021 

 
 

To consider

 

and, if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as a

 

Special ResoluƟon:

 
 

“RESOLVED THAT

 

pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 62(1)(b) and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum and ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of 
the Company, SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
RegulaƟons, 2014 and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sancƟons as may be 
necessary and subject to such condiƟons and modificaƟons as may be prescribed or imposed 
while granƟng such approvals, permissions and sancƟons and notwithstanding ce iling limit for 
Grant of OpƟon during any one Financial Year to any employee or director of the Company and 
its Holding Company or its Subsidiary Company not exceeding One per cent of the issued Capital 
of the Company, consent of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded for Grant of opƟons to 
idenƟfied employees under ‘DACL -

 
Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021 (ESOP –

 
2021)

 
during 

any One year, equal to or exceeding One per cent but not exceeding Two
 

per cent of the issued 
capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the Ɵme of Grant of 
opƟon in one or more tranches, on such terms and in such manner as stated in ‘DACL -

 
Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021’.”

 
 

June 16 
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2021 July 17,2021 
July 14
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Friday, July 16

Monday, July 19

July 13 
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Further he has been
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Since last few years, the Company has witnessed 
adequate profitability hence this clause is not 
applicable.

The Company is very cons cious about improvement in 
productivity and undertakes cons tant measures to 
improve it. This will enable Company to improve its 
margin in coming years, and expects to continue to 
generate good margins from Chemical industry.
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ITEM NO. 6: Appointment of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non-ExecuƟve Director in the category of 
Professional Director and to approve payment of fees/compensaƟon

 

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra was an independent Dire ctor of the company and he was holding

 

this posiƟon in 
the company since March 14, 2001. He is a PracƟcing Chartered Accountant. Mr. Chhabra has vast 
knowledge in the field of Accounts and Finance.  During his tenure since 2001, he has played very acƟve 
and significant role in seƫng up the complete transparency and integrity in finance funcƟons of the 
Company. Board felt that his knowledge, rich experience and strategic guidance has helped the 
Company to grow year by year and his conƟnue guidance would be of immense benefit to the Company.

 
The Board has appointed him as Non-ExecuƟve Director in the category of Professional Director for a 
period of 3 (Three) years with effect from 6 th  November, 2020, subject to approval of the members.  The 
appointment of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non -ExecuƟve Director in the Category of Professional 
Director with consultaƟon fees not exceeding  the receipt of  invoice raised by him on monthly basis and 
with mutual understanding between Board and Mr. Chhabra. He will conƟnue as Non -ExecuƟve Director 
(NED). 

 
Further, in terms of RegulaƟon 17 of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
(Amendment) RegulaƟons, 2018, listed enƟty is required to obtain the approval of members for 
payment of fees or compensaƟon.

 The appointment and remuneraƟon of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra was also recommended

 

and reviewed

 

by 
the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and Audit CommiƩee of the Board

 

subject to approval of 
the members.

 

He has

 

ceased

 

to be Independent Director and appointed as

 

a Professional Director aŌer 
effecƟng change in designaƟon and his term shall be liable to reƟre by rotaƟon

 

and eligible for the 
remuneraƟon .

 
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra (DIN: 00093384) 

 

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra was

 

an independent Director of the company and he was holding

 

this posiƟon in 
the company since March 14, 2001. He is a PracƟcing Chartered Accountant. Mr. Chhabra has vast 
knowledge in the field of Accounts and Finance.  During his tenure since 2001, he has played very acƟve 
and significant role in seƫng up the complete transparency and integrity in finance funcƟons of the 
Company. The Board has appointed him as Non-ExecuƟve Director in the category

 

of Professional 
Director for a period of 3 (Three) years with effect from 6 th

 

November, 2020.

 

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra holds 18,100 Equity shares in the company. He is also on the Board of the Value 
E-Healthcare Limited

 

Except Mr. Rajendra Chhabra, being an appointee and his relaƟves, none of the Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relaƟves are concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resoluƟon set  out at Item No. 6  of the  accompanying NoƟce of the AGM. Mr. Rajendra 
Chhabra is not related to any Director of the Company.  

ITEM NO. 7 & 8:
 

Payment of RemuneraƟon of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non-ExecuƟve Director
 

in the 
category of Professional Director exceeding fiŌy per cent of the total 
RemuneraƟon/compensaƟon/fees payable to all other Non-ExecuƟve Director of the Company 
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In terms of RegulaƟon 17 of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) 
RegulaƟons, 2018 listed enƟty is required to obtain the approval of members of the Company by way of 
Special ResoluƟon for payment of remuneraƟon to a single non -execuƟve director exceeding 50%

 

of the 
total remuneraƟon payable to all non -execuƟve directors. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra was an independent 
Director of the company and he was holding this posiƟon in the company since March 14, 2001. He is a 
PracƟcing Chartered Accountant. Mr. Chhabra ha s vast knowledge in the field of Accounts and Finance.  
During his tenure since 2001, he has played very acƟve and significant role in seƫng up the complete 
transparency and integrity in finance funcƟons of the Company and hence to get the benefit of his vast 
experience and strategic guidance the Board of Directors has appointed him as a Professional Non 
ExecuƟve Directors

 

with effect from 6th

 

November, 2020,

 

for immense benefit to the Company.

 
 

The Board has made his appointment as a Professional Director in the category of non execuƟve director 
of the Company. The Company will pay him consultaƟon fees upon raising invoice on monthly basis 
which may be mutually decided by the Board and Mr. Rajendra Chhabra and payment of such 
consultaƟon fees may be

 

exceeding fiŌy percent of the total commission/remuneraƟon/compensaƟon

 

payable to all non execuƟve

 
Directors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22, requiring approval 

of members in terms of aforesaid provision. 

 
 

His appointment was made by the Board of Directors with effect from 6 th
 

November, 2020 as a 
Professional Non ExecuƟve Director and he has been paid consultaƟon fees upon receiving invoice Ɵll 
31st March, 2021, which exceeded total remuneraƟon paid to other non execuƟve Directors  of the 
Company. 

 
It is therefore resoluƟons as contained in Item Nos. 7 & 8 are  proposed for the approval of shareholders 
by way of special resoluƟons .The Board recommends the resoluƟons  for the approval of Members of 
the Company.

 
 None of the Directors except Mr. Rajendra Chhabra, Key Managerial Personnel and relaƟves thereof, are 

in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resoluƟons.

 
 

ITEM NO.9: Commission to Non-ExecuƟve Directors

 
 

The Members had, at the Annual General MeeƟng of the Company held on September 19, 2016, passed 
an Special ResoluƟon under SecƟon 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, and approved the payment of 
commission to Non-ExecuƟve Directors of the Company, of a sum not exceeding one percent (1%)  or 
three percent (3%) per annum of the net profits of the Company, calculated in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, subject to determinaƟon by the Board of Directors for each of  
the Non-ExecuƟve Directors for a period of five

 

(5) years beginning with the financial year April 01, 2016.  
The approval was valid upto and including the financial year ended on March 31, 2021.

 
 

As per RegulaƟon 17(6)(a) of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosures Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015, all fees / compensaƟon payable to Non-ExecuƟve Directors, including Independent Directors shall 
require approval of the Members at the Annual General MeeƟng.

 
 

 

The current compeƟƟve business environment, stringent accounƟng standards and corporate 
governance norms require considerably enhanced levels of involvement of the Directors in the decision 
making process. The responsibility of the Directors has become more onerous and the Directors are 
required to devote more Ɵme and aƩenƟon to the business of the Company. It is therefore, proposed to 
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conƟnue the payment of commission to the Non-ExecuƟve Directors of the Company for a period of five 
(5) years commencing from the financial year beginning on April 01, 2021. The Board of Directors will 
determine each year, the amount to be paid as commission to the Non-ExecuƟve Directors which 
expression includes the Independent Directors which shall not exceed one percent (1%) or three person 
(3%) of the net profits of the Company for that year, as computed

 
in the manner referred to in SecƟon 

198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and decided by the Board from Ɵme to Ɵme.
 

 Hence, taking into account the responsibiliƟes of the Directors, it is proposed that in terms of provisions 
of SecƟon 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of the Company {Part –

 

Time Directors, i.e. Other 
than the Independent Directors, ExecuƟve Director or the Whole Time Directors, if any}

 

be paid, for 
each year of five financial years of the Company commencing 1st of April, 2021, remuneraƟon not 
exceeding 1% per annum { one percent only } or 3% per annum (in the event the Company has no 
Managing/Whole Ɵme Director or Manager) of the net profits of the Company or such other 
percentages computed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereof. 
The remuneraƟon will be distributed amongst all or some of the Directors in accordance with the 
direcƟons given by the Board.

 
 

In view of the above, Members approval is being sought pursuant to SecƟons 197, 198 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 17(6) of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosures Requirements), RegulaƟons, 2015, for the payment of commission to the Non-ExecuƟve 
Directors of the Company for a period of five (5) years commencing from April 01, 2021. The payment of 
commission would be in addiƟon to the siƫng fees payable for aƩending the meeƟngs of the Board and

 

CommiƩees thereof.

 
 

All the Non-ExecuƟve Directors of the Company are interested in the ResoluƟon set out at Item No. 9 of 
the accompanying NoƟce, since it relates to their respecƟve remuneraƟon.

 
 

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the passing of this resoluƟon.

 
 

Except all Non-ExecuƟve Directors, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and relaƟves thereof, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resoluƟon 
set out at the Item No. 9

 

of this NoƟce.

 
 

ITEM NO. 10 & 11 To approve ‘DACL -

  

Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021’ and To extend approval of 
‘DACL -

 

Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021’ to the employees of Holding Company and its Subsidiary 
Company (ies) 

 
 

Stock OpƟons represent a reward system based on performance. They help companies aƩract, retain 
and moƟvate the best available talent. Stock OpƟons also provide a company with an opportunity to 
opƟmise its personnel costs. This also provides an opportunity to employees to parƟcipate in the growth 
of the company, besides creaƟng long term wealth in their hands. 

 
 

 Further, as the business environment is becoming increasingly compeƟƟve, it is important to aƩract and 
retain qualified, talented and competent personnel in the Company. Your Company believes in 
rewarding its Employees including employees of the Holding Company or its Subsidiary Company (ies), if 
any, for their conƟnuous hard work, dedicaƟon and support, which has led the Company and its Holding 
Company or its Subsidiary Company (ies) on the growth path.
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Keeping in line with the above, “DACL - Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021” (‘the Scheme’) has been 
formulated by the Company and to be implemented by NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
consƟtuted under SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 in accordance with the requirements of 
SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) RegulaƟons, 2014 (“SEBI SBEB 
RegulaƟons”) issued by SEBI and other applicable laws. The Scheme has been approved by the Board of 
Directors at their MeeƟng held on June 16, 2021, subject to the approval of the members.

 
 

The Scheme will be operated and administered under the superintendence of the Company’s 
NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, which is a CommiƩee of the Board of Directors, the majority 
of whose Members are Independent Directors. The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee will 
formulate the detailed terms and condiƟons of the Scheme including:

 
 

 Number of opƟons to be granted to any Employee, and in the aggregate;

 

 Terms on which the opƟons will vest;
 

 The condiƟons under which opƟons vested in Employees may lapse in case of terminaƟon of 
Employees for misconduct;

 

 The exercise period within which an Employee should exercise the opƟons, and lapsing of opƟons 
on failure to exercise the opƟons within the exercise period and determinaƟon of exercise price 
which may be different for different class/ classes of Employees falling in the same tranche of 
grant of OpƟons issued under ESOP-  2021;  

 The specified Ɵme period within which the Employee shall exercise the vested opƟons in the 
event of terminaƟon or resignaƟon of the Employee;

  The right of an Employee to exercise all the opƟons vested in him at one Ɵme or at various points 
of Ɵme within the exercise period;

  The procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the number of opƟons and to the 
exercise price in case of rights issues, bonus issues and other corporate acƟons;

 
 The grant, vesƟng and exercise of opƟons in case of Employees who are on long leave; and

 
 Any other related or incidental maƩers.

 
 

Major details of the Scheme are as given below:-

 
 

a) Brief DescripƟon of the Scheme is given as under: 

 
 

DCL -

 

Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021 (‘the Scheme’) has been formulated by the Company 
and to be implemented by NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee consƟtuted under SecƟon 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 in accordance with the requirements of SecuriƟes and Exchange 
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) RegulaƟons, 2014 (SEBI SBEB RegulaƟons) 
issued by SEBI and other applicable laws. The Scheme has been approved by the Board of 
Directors at their MeeƟng held on June 16, 2021,

 

2021, subject to the approval of the members.

 

b) The total number of opƟons to be granted

 
 

The total number of opƟons that may, in the aggregate, be issued would be such number of 
opƟons which shall enƟtle the opƟon holders to acquire in one or more tranches upto 2,00,000 
(Two Lakhs) equity shares of       10/ -  each (or such other adjusted figure for any bonus, stock 
splits or consolidaƟons or other re-organisaƟon of the capital structure of the Company as may be 
applicable from Ɵme to Ɵme).

 

₹
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SEBI SBEB RegulaƟons  require that in case of any corporate acƟon(s) such as rights issues, bonus 
issues, merger and sale or division, and others, a fair and reasonable adjustment needs to be 
made to the OpƟons granted. Accordingly, if any addiƟonal Equity Shares are issued  by the 
Company to the OpƟon grantees for making such fair and reasonable adjustment, the above 
ceiling Shares shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such addiƟonal equity shares 
issued.

  

An employee may surrender his/her vested /unvested opƟons at any Ɵme during / post his 
employment with the company. Any employee willing to surrender his/her opƟons shall 
communicate the same to the Board or CommiƩee in wriƟng. 

 
 Vested opƟons lapsed due to non-exercise, surrender and/or unvested opƟons that gets cancelled 

due to resignaƟon or any other separaƟon condiƟons of OpƟon grantees, surrendered or 
otherwise, would be available for being re-granted at a future date. The Board is authorized to re -
grant such lapsed / cancelled / surrendered opƟons as per the provisions of ESOP-2021. 

 
 

c)

 

IdenƟficaƟon of classes of employees enƟtled to parƟcipate and be beneficiaries in the Scheme.

 
 

All permanent employees working in India or out of India and Directors (whether 
Managing/Whole Ɵme Director or not) of Company and its Holding Company and its Subsidiary 
Company(ies), (present or future) (excluding promoters and an employee who is a Promoter or a  
person belonging to the Promoter Group) and further excluding a director who either by himself 
or through his relaƟve or through any Body Corporate, directly or indirectly holds more than 10% 
of the outstanding equity shares of the Company and excluding Independent Directors as may be 
decided by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee.

 
 

The class of Employees eligible for parƟcipaƟng in the Scheme shall be determined on the basis of 
the grade, number of years’ service, performance, role assigned to the employee and such other 
parameters as may be decided by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩee in its sole 
discreƟon from Ɵme to Ɵme.

 
 

The opƟons granted to an Employee will not be transferable to any person and shall not be 
pledged, hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in any other manner.

 
 

d)

 

Terms of the scheme

 
 

(1)

 

The Company shall not vary the terms of the schemes in any manner, which may be detrimental 
to the interests of the OpƟon Grantees: Provided that the company shall be enƟtled to vary the 
terms of the schemes to meet any regulatory requirements. 

 

(2)

 

Subject to the proviso to sub-regulaƟon (1), the company may by special resoluƟon in a general 
meeƟng vary the terms of the schemes offered pursuant to an earlier resoluƟon of the general 
body but not yet exercised by the employee provided such variaƟon is not prejudicial to the 
interests of the OpƟon Grantees. 
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(3)  The noƟce for passing special resoluƟon for variaƟon of terms of the schemes shall disclose full 

details of the variaƟon, the raƟonale therefore, and the details of the OpƟon Grantees who are 
beneficiaries of such variaƟon. 

 (4)
 

The Company may re-price the opƟons as the case may be which are not exercised, whether or 
not they have been vested if the terms of the grants were rendered unaƩracƟve due to fall in the 
price of the shares in the stock market; Provided that the company ensures that such re -pricing 
shall not be detrimental to the interest of the OpƟon Grantees and approval of the shareholders 
in general meeƟng has been obtained for such re -pricing.

 
 

e)

 

Transferability of Employee Stock Options

 
 

(1)

 

The OpƟons granted to an employee shall not be transferable to any person and shall not be 
pledged, hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in any manner. However, in the event 
of the death of the OpƟon Grantee, the right to exercise all t he OpƟons granted to him Ɵll such 
date shall be vest in his legal heirs or nominees. 

 

(2)

 

In the event of resignaƟon or terminaƟon of the OpƟon Grantee, all the opƟons which are 
granted and yet not vested as on that day shall lapse. 

 

(3)

 

In the event that an

 

OpƟon Grantee who has been granted benefits under a scheme is transferred 
or deputed to Holding Company and its subsidiary company prior to vesƟng or exercise, the 
vesƟng and exercise as per the terms of grant shall conƟnue in case of such transferred

 

or 
deputed employee even aŌer the transfer or deputaƟon.

 
 

f)

 

Requirements of vesƟng and period of vesƟng

 
 

VesƟng of opƟons may commence aŌer a period of not less than one year

 

from the date of 
individual grant. The vesƟng may occur in one or more tranches, subject to the terms and 
condiƟons of vesƟng, as sƟpulated in the ESOP-2021.

 
 

Following table shall be applicable in case of various scenarios (during employment) for ves Ɵng and 
exercising:

 

Sr. 
No.

 

SeparaƟons

 

Vested OpƟons

 

Unvested OpƟons

 

1

 

ResignaƟon 

 

All Vested OpƟons as on date of 
submission of resignaƟon may be 
exercised by the OpƟon Grantee 
on or before his last working day 
with the Company.

 

All Unvested OpƟons on the 
date of submission of 
resignaƟon shall stand cancelled 
with effect from that date.

 

2

 

TerminaƟon 

 

(With cause 

 

like 
fraud, misconduct 
etc.)

 

All Vested OpƟons which were 
not alloƩed at the Ɵme of such 
terminaƟon shall stand cancelled 
with effect from the date of such 
terminaƟon.

 

All Unvested OpƟons on the 
date of such terminaƟon shall 
stand cancelled with effect from 
the terminaƟon date.

 

3

 

TerminaƟon 
(Without cause)

 

All Vested OpƟons which were 
not alloƩed at the Ɵme of such 
terminaƟon may be exercised by 
the OpƟon Grantee on or before 
his last working day with the 
Company.

 

All Unvested OpƟons on the 
date of such terminaƟon shall 
stand cancelled with effect from 
the terminaƟon date.

 



 *The Board/ CommiƩee, at its sole discreƟon shall decide the date of cancellaƟon of OpƟon’s and 
such decision shall be binding on all concerned.

 
 g)

 
Maximum period within which the opƟons shall be vested

 
 

The maximum vesƟng period may extend up to 5 (Five) years

 

from the date of grant of opƟons, 
unless otherwise decided by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee.

 
 

h)

 

Exercise price or pricing formula

 
 

Exercise Price means the price at which the OpƟon Grantee is enƟtled to acquire the equity shares 
pursuant to the opƟons granted and vested in him/her under the Scheme.

 
 

4

 

ReƟrement or 
early ReƟrement 
approved by 
Company

 

All Vested OpƟons as on date of 
reƟrement may be exercised by 
the OpƟon Grantee within the 
period as permiƩed by NRC / 
CompensaƟon CommiƩee at the 
Ɵme of such reƟrement or early 
reƟrement.

 All Unvested OpƟons shall vest 
as per original vesƟng schedule 
and may be exercised by the 
OpƟon Grantee within the 
period as permiƩed by NRC / 
CompensaƟon CommiƩee at 
the Ɵme of such reƟrement or 
early reƟrement.

 

5

 

Death

 

All Vested OpƟons may be 
exercised by the OpƟon 
Grantee’s nominee

 

or legal heir 
immediately aŌer, but in no 
event later than 12 months from 
the date of Death.

 All Unvested OpƟons as on the 
date of death shall vest 
immediately and may be 
exercised by the OpƟon 
Grantee’s nominee or legal 
heir/s within 12 months from 
the date of Death.

 

6

 

Permanent 
Disability

 

All Vested OpƟons may be 
exercised by the OpƟon Grantee 
or, if the OpƟon Grantee is 
himself, unable to exercise due to 
such disability, the nominee or 
legal heir, immediately aŌer, but 
in no event later than 12 months 
from the date of such disability.

 

All Unvested OpƟons as on the 
date of such Permanent 
Disability shall vest immediately 
and can be exercised by the 
OpƟon Grantee or, if the OpƟon 
Grantee is himself unable  to 
exercise due to such incapacity, 
the

 

nominee or legal heir 
immediately aŌer, but in no 
event later than 12 months  
from the date of such disability.

 

7

 
Abandonment*

 
All the Vested OpƟons shall stand 
cancelled.

 All the Unvested OpƟons shall 
stand cancelled.

 

8
 

Any other reason 
not specified 
above 

The NRC / CompensaƟon 
CommiƩee shall decide whether 
the Vested OpƟons as on that 
date can be exercised by the 
OpƟon Grantee or not, and such 
decision shall be final.  

All Unvested OpƟons on the 
date of separaƟon shall stand 
cancelled with effect from that 
date.  
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The Exercise Price shall be as may be decided by the CommiƩee as is allowed under the SBEB 
RegulaƟons which in any case will not be lower than the face value of the equity shares of the 
Company on the date of such grant. Further the Exercise Price can be different for different set of 
employees for opƟons granted on same / different dates.

 
 No amount shall be payable by the option grantee at the Ɵme of grant and hence no amount is 

required to be forfeited, even if any employee(s) does not exercise the opƟons within the exercise 
period and accordingly no adjustment is required to be made for the same.

 
 
i)

 

Exercise period and process of exercise

 
 

The Exercise period shall not be more than 5 years

 

from the date of respecƟve vesƟng of OpƟons. 
The opƟons granted may be exercised by the Grantee at one Ɵme or at various points of Ɵme within 
the exercise period as determined by the CommiƩee from Ɵme to Ɵme.

 
 

The Vested opƟons shall be exercisable by the employees by a wriƩen applicaƟon (which will 
include making applicaƟons online using any ESOP administraƟon soŌware) to the Company 
expressing his/ her desire to exercise such opƟons in such manner and on such format as may be 
prescribed

 

by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee from Ɵme to Ɵme. The opƟons shall 
lapse if not exercised within the specified exercise period. The opƟons may also lapse, under certain 
circumstances even before the expiry of the specified exercise period.

 
 

Payment of the Exercise Price shall be made by a crossed cheque or a demand draŌ drawn in favour 
of the Company, or by any other payment methods prevalent in RBI recognized banking channels or 
in such other manner and subject to such procedures as the Board/CommiƩee may decide.

 
 

j)

 

Appraisal Process for determining the eligibility of Employees to the Scheme.

 
 

The appraisal process for determining the eligibility of the Employee will be specified by the 
NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and will be base d on criteria such as the grade of 
Employee, length of service, performance record, merit of the Employee, future potenƟal 
contribuƟon by the Employee and/or by any such criteria that may be determined by the 
NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee.

 
 

k)

 

Maximum number of opƟons to be issued per Employee and in the aggregate

 
 

The maximum number of opƟons to be granted per employee per grant and in aggregate shall not 
exceed 2,00,000 (Two Lakhs).

 
 

Further the number of OpƟons that may be granted to any s pecific idenƟfied employee under 
ESOP-2021 shall not be equal to or exceeding the number of Shares equivalent to 1% of the Issued 
Capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company and in aggregate if the 
prior specific approval from members of the Company through a special resoluƟon to this effect is 
not obtained.

 
 

l)

 

Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per employee under a Scheme

 
 

The Maximum quantum of benefits underlying the opƟons issued to an eligible employee shall 
depend upon the Market Price of the shares as on the date of sale of shares arising out of Exercise 
of opƟons.
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 m)  CerƟficate from auditors  
 

The Board of Directors shall at each annual general meeƟng place before the shareholders a 
cerƟficate from the

 
auditors of the company that the scheme(s) has been implemented in 

accordance with the prescribed regulaƟons and in accordance with the resoluƟon of the company 
in the general meeƟng.

 
 

n)

 

Whether the scheme is to be implemented and administered directly by the Company or through a 
trust

 
 

The Scheme will be implemented directly by the Company under the guidance of the NominaƟon 
and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee of the Board.

 
 

o)

 

Whether scheme involves new issue of shares by the Company or Secondary acquisiƟon by the trust

 
 

The Scheme will involve only new issue of shares by the Company.

 
 

p)

 

Disclosure and accounƟng policies

 
 

The Company shall conform to the accounƟng policies specified in RegulaƟon 15 of the SEBI (SBEB) 
RegulaƟons.

 
 

Further the Company shall disclose details of Grant, Vest, Exercise and lapse of the Employee Stock 
OpƟons in the Directors’ Report or in an annexure

 

thereof as prescribed under SEBI (SBEB) 
RegulaƟons or any other Applicable Laws as in force. Further the Company shall follow the 
laws/regulaƟons applicable to accounƟng and disclosure related to Employee Stock OpƟons, 
including but not limited to SEBI (SBEB) RegulaƟons as well as the Guidance Note on AccounƟng for 
Employee Share-based Payments and/ or any relevant AccounƟng Standards as may be prescribed 
by the Regulatory authoriƟes from Ɵme to Ɵme, including the disclosure requirements prescribed 
therein.

 
 

q)

 

The amount of loan to be provided for implementaƟon of the scheme(s) by the company to

 

the trust, 
its tenure, uƟlizaƟon, repayment terms, etc

 
 

Not Applicable

 
 

r)

 

Maximum percentage of secondary acquisiƟon (subject to limits specified under the regulaƟons) that 
can be made by the trust for the purposes of the scheme(s).

 
 

Not Applicable

 
 

s)

 

Method of ValuaƟon of opƟons

 
 

The Company follows fair value method for compuƟng the compensaƟon cost, if any, for the 
opƟons granted. The company will follow IFRS/ IND AS/ any other requirements for accounƟng of 
the Stock opƟons as are applicable to the Company for the same.

 
 

Since the company opts for expensing of share based employee benefits using the fair value 
method, the following statement will not be applicable viz. 

 

In case the company opts for expensing of share based employee benefits using the intrinsic value 
intrinsic

 

value, the difference between the employee compensaƟon cost so computed and the 
employee compensaƟon cost that shall have been recognized if it had used the fair value, shall be 
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disclosed in the Directors’ report and the impact of this difference on pro fits and on earnings per 
share (“EPS”) of the company shall also be disclosed in the Directors' report.'  
 t)

 
Rights of the opƟon holder 

 
 The employee shall not have right to receive any dividend or to vote or in any manner enjoy the 

benefits of a shareholder in respect of opƟon granted to him, Ɵll shares are alloƩed upon exercise 
of opƟon. 

 
 

u)

 

Consequence of failure to exercise opƟon 

 
 

All unexercised opƟons shall lapse if not exercised on or before the exercised period ends. The 
amount payable by the employee, if any, at the Ɵme of grant of opƟon, -

  
 

(a)

 

may be forfeited by the company if the opƟon is not exercised by the employee within the 
exercise period; or 

 
 

(b)

 

may be refunded to the employee if the opƟons are not vested due to non-fulfilment of 
condiƟons relaƟng to vesƟng of opƟon as per the Scheme. 

 
 

v)

 

Lock-in

 
 

The Shares issued upon exercise of OpƟons shall be freely transferable and shall not be subject to 
any lock-in period restricƟon aŌer such exercise.

 
 

Provided that the transferability of the Shares shall be subject to the restricƟon for such period in 
terms of the SecuriƟes Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading), RegulaƟons, 2015, 
as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme or for such other period as may be sƟpulated from Ɵme to Ɵme in 
terms of Company’s Code of Conduct for PrevenƟon of Insider Trading.

 
 

w)

 

Other terms

 
 

The Board or NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee shall have the absolute authority to vary, 
modify or alter the terms of the Scheme in accordance with the regulaƟons and guidelines as 
prescribed by the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India or regulaƟons that may be issued by any 
appropriate authority, from Ɵme to Ɵme, unless such variaƟon, modificaƟon or alteraƟon is 
detrimental to the interest of the OpƟon Grantees.

 
 

The Board

 

or NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee may, if it deems necessary, modify, 
change, vary, amend, suspend or terminate the ESOP -

 

2021, subject to compliance with the 
Applicable Laws and RegulaƟons.

 
 

The shares may be alloƩed directly to the OpƟon Grantees in accordance with the Scheme and such 
Scheme may also contain provisions for providing financial assistance to the Employees to enable 
the Employees to acquire or subscribe to the shares.

 
 

As the Scheme would entail further shares to be offered to persons other than exisƟng Members of 
the Company, consent of the members is sought pursuant to the provisions of secƟon 62 (1) (b) and 
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirement of 
Clause 6 of the SEBI SBEB RegulaƟons.
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None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relaƟves are 
interested or concerned in the resoluƟon No. 10 and 11,  except to the extent of their shareholding 
enƟtlements, if any, under the ESOP Scheme.

 
 Your Directors recommend the ResoluƟon set out in Item No. 10 and 11 of the NoƟce for adopƟon 

by

 
the Shareholders as Special ResoluƟon/s.

 
 

ITEM NO. 12 Grant of OpƟons to issue securiƟes equal to or exceeding One per cent but not 
exceeding Two

 

per cent of the issued Capital of the Company during any One financial year to 
idenƟfied employees under DACL -

 

Employees Stock OpƟon Plan 2021 

 
 

The resoluƟon set out at Item No. 10 and Item No. 11 provides that a Company may grant opƟon to 
an employee and to a director of the Company and its Holding Company and its subsidiary company 
(ies) not exceeding one per cent of the issued capital of the Company in one year. However, the 
Company may idenƟfy certain employee/s to whom it may be necessary to grant opƟons exceeding 
one per cent in one year to ensure conƟnuity of their service with the Company. The resoluƟon as 
set out in Item No. 12

 

provides that the Company may grant opƟon equal to or exceeding One per 
cent but not exceeding Two per cent in One year to idenƟfied employee/s or director/s of the 
Company and its Holding Company and its subsidiary.

 
 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relaƟves are 
interested or concerned in the resoluƟon No. 12 , except to the extent of their enƟtlements, if any, 
under the ESOP Scheme.

 
 

Your Directors recommend the Resolutions set out in Item No. 12

 

of the NoƟce for adopƟon by the 
Shareholders as special resoluƟon. 

 
 

Place: Mumbai

 

Date: June 16, 2021

 

CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905

 

REGISTERED OFFICE:

        

Plot No.13, PCC Area,

       

By Order of the Board

 

P.O. Petrochemicals,

 

Vadodara –391 346

       

Hemaxi Pawar

 
      

Company Secretary

  
      

Membership No.: A52581

 
 



 

 

 

the 45th

 

March, 2021.

 

1.

 

Financial Results

 
 

The 

 

Standalone Financial Results

 
                        

 

Year Ended

 

March 31, 
2021

 
March 31, 

2020

 

Net Sales and Other Income
 

          

6,536.95 
 

            

7,138.46 
 

 
            

2,770.48 
 

            

3,731.61 
 

Expenses     

 
                   

7.54  
                   

7.82  

 
               

178.55  
               

206.45  

 
            2,584.39 
 

            3,517.34 
 

     

 
 

               
               

695.55 
(117.11)  

 

            
            

1,126.35 
(13.18)  

 

 
                

(97.42)

 
                   

5.59 

 

 
            

2,103.37 

 
            

2,398.58 

 

 
               

294.08 

 
                

(51.30)

 
period

 
            

2,397.45 

 
            

2,347.28 

 

 
            

5,037.98 

 
            

3,368.13 

 

Dividend

 
     

 

 

Dividend (Final) 

 

 
            

            

(365.67)

 

 
              

              

(586.99)

-

 

 

 
                

(25.66)

 
              

(123.35)

  

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

          

          

 
 

41

Diamines and Chemicals Limited
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905 

 

Earlier Years

-

Tax on Dividend



     

 
            

6,748.28

-

 

 
            

5,037.98 

-

 

 

 

                 

21.50 

 

                 

24.52 

 

 

10/-

 

each) (In Rupees)

      

 

2.

 

Dividend

 
 

Dividends paid during the year ended 31

 

�

 
 

� 10/-

 

each.

  

 

�

 

5/-

 

�

 

10/-

  

March

 

on 20th

 

July, 2021 and

 

will be 
 

 

3.

 
  

4(3)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has not proposed   

4.

  

  

:  
  

Standalone:
 - � 6 �

 -20.

 �

 

�

  
- 2296.19

  

-
20.

 
 

 
- � 

�

 

2099.49 lakhs.

 

 

5.

 
 

 

Dividend during FY 2013-

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹₹

₹
₹

₹

₹
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( ).

 
 

6.

 

 
 

 

7.

  

Discussion and Analysis Report:

 

 

- .
  

 

8.
  

C ANNEXURE –  B   

  

 

 
se in throughout  

 

 

-

 
 

9.

  
a)
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Company also conducts Mo
 

b)

 

Health:

  

 

 

c)
  

 a 

 
d)

  

3.25 MW Capacity

 
mode.

 10.

 

-

 

 
11.

  
e 

� , Health and ₹

          

          

 
 

44

Diamines and Chemicals Limited
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905 

 



. T
ANNEXURE –

 

C.

 

12.
Act, 2013

 

ANNEXURE-D

 
 

13.

 
 

  

14.

  
 

and 

 

 
15.

 
 

 

.

 
-2 is not applicable to the Company.
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16.

 
 

 

17.

  

In accordance with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies 

18.

The Company had 4 (Four) Board 
th

 

June, 2020, 10th

 
th

 

5th

 

 

No. 
 

(Total 4 held)  1.
  

4/4
 2.

   
3/4

 3.
   

4/4
 4.

  
4/4

 5.

  

4/4

 6.

  

4/4

 
 

19.

  
 —

 
 

a)

 
 

 

b)

 
eriod;
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(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the copy of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 92 (3) in prescribed format is available on https://www.dacl.co.in/upload/PDF/2020-2021%20-%20
Annual%20Return%20(MGT-7)_637599948071536638.pdf 

https://www.dacl.co.in/upload/PDF/2020-2021%20-%20


c)

 

 
 

d)

  
 

e)

 

and

 
 

f)

 
 

 

20.

  
 

th

 

of M/s. The Company has 50,00
the

 
paid- .

 
 

is
 

the 100% 
wholly- al year ended 31

 
March, 2021, the

 
  

 

sub-
-1 ANNEXURE I.  

 

 

 
 

21.

 

Deposits:

 

 

 

22.

 

 

 
 

 

- -
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6th February, 2021
th February, 2021.

himself his



 

  
  

 

-
-

ANNEXURE G

held duri

 
 

23.

 

-

 

- th

 

  on / 
th   

24.
  

. 

 
25.

  
the

  

26.

  
ork. The Companies Act, 
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Mr. Rajendra Chhabra was an Independent Director of the Company up to 5  November, 2020 th

and w.e.f. 6  November, 2020, he has been appointed as Professional Director in the category of th

Non-Executive Director for the period of 3 years.

three One is

as on March  31 , 2021st



  

27.

   

ANNEXURE –

 

E”

 

 

he Company during business hours on working days of the  

28.
 

Key

 

sonnel:

 

 

 April, 2020. 

29.  
 

a.  
nd

 6th

 
the conclusion of 47th

 

-

 b.

  
&

 

“ANNEXURE-
F ”.

-

c.

LLP e 
-22 in place

 
 

-21.
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d. C  
 

-
year 2021-22. In

 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 

year 2021-22.

 

 
30.

 

 

Act, 2013. 

31. Risk  
The Company has a risk 

any as a whole. 

 

 

32.

 

  

 

 

 

T
-
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33.

  

a. SHARE CAPITAL

� 17,55,00,000/- (Rupees 
-Five Lakhs Only) and paid-

company is �

 

9,78,32,400/-

 

- -Two Thousand Four 

 

b.

  

The C

 

b.

  

 

c.

  

 

d.
  

 

34.

 

Insurance: 

 
35.

 

Code of Conduct: 

-

 
 36.

 

 As

 

During the 

 

₹

₹
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The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees.

 
 

37.

  

 

 



  

38.
 

-1) and 
-

  

39.
 

   

“ANNEXURE-H”.
 

40.

 

 
 

-

 
41.

 

 

 

 

 
 

DIN: 00073907

 

May 18, 2021

 
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE –

 

A

 

 

AND DEVELOPMENT:

 

-
Agro-

 

 

.

  

PERFORMANCE:
 

- �

 
�

 
7,138.46 

- �
 

2,103.37 lakhs 
�

  

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

-

  

 

 

company
 

is
  

ene amines in India which is
 

a
 This

   
& helps

  the

  
years,

  

the company

   

which

    
the

   

sever

   

&

  

able to

     
one

 

of

 

the

  

vicinity

 

to

  

added 

  

  

& hence

 

your company

  

this 

    

by

   

based 
on

  

Amines.

 
CONCERNS

 

&

  

Since

  

    

amines, any

    

or

  
 

may 

   

the

    

of

     

the

   

 

has

 

 

scale

 

of

 

economies & thus can

  
 

these challenges very well itself
by and users. 

₹

₹
₹

₹
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OUTLOOK:

 

s  

 The Board o  

 
con -

 

 

For the year 2021-

ts 
 

-supply imbalance on global level and this is 
-

lying ahead and
  

e-

 -

 

 

 

 

-based 
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.  

 

 

 

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:
 

 
FY 2020-21

 
FY 2019-20

 
 5.74 6.90  

 4.28 5.55  
 9.69 8.44  

 41.26 50.87  
Margin (%) 33.48 34.61  

 
21.50

 
24.52

 � )
 

5.00
 

8.00
 

 
12.29

 
6.03

 24.74 36.80

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DIN: 00073907  
 

Place: Mumbai 
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whenever applicable.

₹

Reason for significant change:

         Operating/Net Profit margin has fallen due to decrease in sales Revenue and Increase in the Cost of Raw 
          Material Consumption.

         Interest Coverage and Debt Equity Ratio is not relevant here as company has not availed any long term debt 
          during the year. No major utilization of working capital loan during the year.

         P/E Ratio has increased due to rise in Share Market Price about 79% as well as EPS is reduced by    3.00.₹



ANNEXURE –

 

B 

 

 
 

 

Year

  

Year

 

2020-21

 

2019-20

 

A.

 

 
  

Electricity

 
  

a)

 

Purchased Unit

 

1713060

 
 

1991025

 

 

103.48

 
 

110.01

 

�

 

)

 

6.04

 
 
5.53

 

b)

  
  

 
  

Units
 

41168
 

 24976

 

 
3.43

 
 2.25

 

�
 ) 21.74  

 30.30

 

Coal 
  

 2710  
 
2686

 

 165.59  
 

173.75

 

 6,110  
 
6,469

 

LDO & FO
 

  tonnes
 

288.18
 

 

364

 

 
81.12

 
 

116.94

 

 
28,148

 
 

32,168
 

 
  

 

2831.60

 
 

4684.32
 

 

97.97

 
 

202.96  
� / unit)

 

3.46

 
 

4.33  
B. 

 
  

 

2039

 
 

2236  
Electricity (Unit)

 

840

 
 

891
 

 

1.33

 
 

1.20
 

 

0.14

 
 

0.16
 

 

 

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹
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FORM B

 

 
  

 
 

(A)

 

:

  

1.

  

2.

 

and 
of

 

new

 

products.

  

(B)

  
 

1.
 

business of
 

the company.
  

(C)  
1.   
2.  
3.  
4.

  
amines.

  

(D)
 

on R&D
 (1)

 
: �

  
163.76

 
lakhs/-

 (2)

 

% of :

 

2.51

  
(E)

         
-

 

–

         
-

  

–

         
-

 

–

 

Not Applicable.

  .

 
Year ended 31

 

March,

    

2021                  2020

  
 

( )

  

( )

 

            

Nil

 

                   

8,98,51,270 

            

1,53,68,337

18,52,86,548

₹ ₹
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₹



ANNEXURE C

 

 

1.

  

outline

 

on

 

CSR

  

of

 

the

 

Company:

 

-
l goals.

 
 

  

2.

 

 

of

 

CSR

  
 

Sl.

 

No.

 

Name

 

of

   

/

  

of

  
 

of

 

CSR

  

held

  
Number of 

 

 

the

  

1

  

Chairman

 
2

 

2

 

2

 

Mr. G. S. 
Venkatachalam

 
 

2

 

2

 

3
 

Mr. Rajendra 
Chhabra

 Director
 

2
 

2
 

4
 

 Director
 

1
 

1
 

 

3.

 

Provide the web-link where  of  CSR  projects approved 
by the board are disclosed on the  of  the     

4. Provide the details of Impact  of  CSR  projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of 
rule 8

 
 of

 
the

 
Companies

  
Social

 
responsibility

  
Rules,

 
2014,

 
if

 
applicable

  
the

 report). Not Applicable  
 Details

 
of

 
the

  
available

  
set

  
in

 
pursuance

 
of

 
sub-rule

 
(3)

 
of

 
rule

 
7

 
of

 
the

 Companies

   

and

   

set

  the

   
if

 
any-

 
NIL

 

 
 

Financial

  

Amount

 

available

  

-

 

from

  
  

(in

 

  )

 

-

 
  

(in

 

  )

 

    
    
 

   
 

TOTAL

   

 

5.

  

net

  

of

 

the

 

company

 

as

  

135(5) -

 

�

 

21,02,97,348/-

 

 

6.

 

(a)

 

Two

  

of

 

average

 

net

  

of

 

the

 

company

 

as

  

135(5)

 

-�

 

42,05,947

 

(b)

 

Surplus

 

arising

 

out

 

of

 

the

 

CSR

 

projects

 

or

 

programmes

 

or

  

of

 

the

 

previous

 
 

years.

 

-

 

NIL

 

 

(c)

  

required

 

to

 

be

 

set

   

the

   

if

 

any -NIL

 

(d)

 

Total

 

CSR

   

the

  

year

 

(7a+7b-

 

7c).-

 

�

 

42,06,000

 

₹ ₹

₹

₹

₹
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https: Discloseres.aspx



 

7.

 

(a)

 

CSR

   

or

   

the

  
  

Total

 

Amount

 

Spent

  

the

 

Financial

  

(in

 

   )

 Amount

 

Unspent

 

(in

 

 )

 

Total

 

Amount

  

to

 

Unspent

 

CSR

  

as

 

per

 
 

135(6).

 

Amount

  

to

  

fund

  

under

 

Schedule

 

VII

 

as per

  

proviso

 

to

  

135(5).

 
   

Name of

 

the

 
  

 

Amount.

 

Date

 

of

 
 

Fund

 

Amount.

 

Date

 

of

 
 

42,06,000

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

 

(b)

 

Details

 

of

 

CSR

    

ongoing

 

projects 

 

the

  

year:

  

(1)

 

(2)

 
(3)

 
(4)

 
(5)

 
(6)

 
(7)

 
(8)

 
(9)

 
(10)

 
(11)

 

Sl.

 

No.

 
Na
me

 

of    
 

the 
Proj
ect. 

Item
 

from
 

the
 

s in 
Schedul
e VII to 
the Act. 

Local
 

 

No). 

 

of
 

the
 

project.
 

Proje
ct

 

dura  

Amo
unt

 

alloc
ated  

 
the  
proje
ct  (in 
Rs.).  

Amount
 

spent
 

in
 

the  curr
ent  

 
 (in  

Rs.).  

Amount
 

ed
 

to
 

Unspent  
CSR  

 
 the  

project  as  
per  
135(6) (in

 Rs.).
 

Mode
 

of
 

Imple
menta  

 
-  

 
t

 
No).

 

Mode
 

of

 
 

-
 

Through  Implem
 

 

 
   

Stat
e.

 

ct.

 
     

Name

 

CSR
 

 numbe

 
 

1.

             
 

2.

             
 

3.

             
 

 

TOTAL

 
           

 

 

₹
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₹



schedule

 

VII

 

to

 

the

 

Act.

 
/

 

No).

 

State.

  

(in

 

     ).

 

-

 
 

o).

 

 

Name.

 

CSR

 

on

 

 

1.

  

Developm

al 

/ 
developm

modules
 

 

No

 

Maharash
tra

 

Mumbai

 

31,06,000

 

No

 

Technology, 
Bombay

 

 

2.

  

High Flow 

Machine 

 

Health
 

No
 

Bengal  Mayapur
 

5,00,000
 

No
 

al Society 
For Krishna 
Consciousn
ess 

 

 

3.

  

children
 

 
 

Yes Gujarat  Vadodara  2,00,000  No  
Mahavir 

 

 

4.

  

Senior 

Catract 
Surgery 
Project

 

Health

 
No

 
Gujarat

 
Bhavnagar

 
2,00,000

 
No

 
PNR Society

  

5.

  

Greenary 

n –

 

Tree 

in 

Area

 

t

 

Yes

 

Gujarat

 

Vadodara

 

2,00,000

 

No

 

Clean 

t

 

 

 
TOTAL

     

42,06,000

    

 

(d)
 

  

in

  

Overheads - As Per Companies Act.

 

(e)   on Impact  applicable  : NA  

(f) Total    the Financial Year  (8b+8c+8d+8e)  

(c)

 

Details

 

of

 

CSR

    

other

 

than

 

ongoing

 

projects

  

the

  

(1)

 

(2)

 

(3)

 

(4)

 

(5)

 

(6)

 

(7)

 

(8)

 

Sl.

 

No.

 

Name

 

of

  

the

 

Project

 

Item

 

from

 

the

  

of

 
 

in

 
Loca
l

 
 

 

of

 

the

 

project.

 

Amoun
t

 

spent

 
 

the

 

project

 
Mode

 

of

 

implement

 

on

 
Mode

 

of

 

 

–

 

Through 
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₹



    

set

  

if

 

any

 
 

Sl.

 

No.

  

Amount

 

(in

 

     )

 

(i)

 

Two

  

of

  

net

  

of

 

the

  

as

 

per

  

135(5)

 

42,05,947

 

(ii)

 

Total

   

the

 

Financial

 

Year

 

42,06,000

 

(iii)

     

the

  

year

 

[(ii )-(i)]

 

53

 

(iv)

 

Surplus

 

arising

 

out

 

of  the

 

CSR

 

projects

 

or  programmes

 

or

 
 

of

 

the

 

previous

  

years,

 

if

 

any

 

-

 

(v)

    

set

  

in

 

succeeding

  

years

 

[(iii)-(iv)]

 

-

 

 

8.

 

(a)
 

Details

 

of

  

CSR

   

the

 

preceding

 

three

  

years:

 

NA

 
 

Sl.
 

No. 
ng

 

Financia
l

  Amount

 

to

 

Unspent CSR

  
 

under

  

135

 
(6)

 
(in

 
  )

 

Amount

 

spent

 

in the

 
 

Financial 
Year

 

(in

 

  ).

 

Amount

  

to

  

fund

 
 

under Schedule VII as per 

  
Amount

 
 

to

 

be

 

spent

 

in

 

succeeding

 

  
(in  )  

Nam
e

 

of 
the

 

Fun
d

 

Amount

 

(in

 

).
 

Date

 

of

 
 

1.

  

      
2.

  

      
3.

  

      

 
       

 

(b)
 

Details of CSR   in   ongoing  projects  of  the  preceding  

 

NA

 

 

(1)

 

(2)

 

(3)

 

(4)

 

(5)

 

(6)

 

(7)

 

(8)

 

(9)

 
Sl .

 

No.

 

Project

 

ID.

 

Name

 

of

 

the

 

Project.

 

Financial

 

Year        

 

in

 

which

 

the

 

project

 
 

ed.

 

Project

 
n.

 

 

amount

 
d

 
 

the

 

project

 

(in

 

).

 

Amount

 

spent

 

on

 

the

 

project

 
 

in

 

the

 
 

Financial

 

Year

 
  

 

amount

 

spent

 

at

 

the

 

end

 

of

 
 

Financial

 
 

(in

 

)

 

Status

 

of

 

the

 

project

 

-

 
 

 

/Ongoing.

 
1.

 

 

       

2.

 

 

       

3.

 

 
       

 

 
      

 

 

9.

 

In

  

of

  

or

  

of

  

asset,

 

furnish

 

the

 

details

   

the

  

asset

 

so 

 

or

 

acquired

 

through

 

CSR

  

in

 

the

  

-wise  

(a)  of   of  the  capital  asset(s).   

 (b)  of CSR    or   of  capital  asset.   

 
 

₹

₹
₹

₹

₹
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₹
₹(in )₹



(c)
 

 
     

 their    whose name asset is 
 

(d)

   
    (including andasset(s) or     

of
 

the
  

asset).
 

  

10. Specify the  if  the  company has   to  spend  two   of the   net   as  
per  135(5).  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
DIN: 00073907

  Place: Mumbai

 

May

 

18, 2021
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ANNEXURE-D

 

 
 

No

 
 

 

of Advance

 

/Loan as on 
31.03.2021

 

 

Advance/Loan/

 
 

1

  
 

19.10.2005

 

87,950

 

19.07.2005

 

Equity 
 

2

 
 25.06.2020

 

2,37,950

 
NA

 
Equity  

3
  

06.05.2020
 

21000
 

04.02.2020
 

Equity  

4
  16.07.2020

 
10847

 
04.02.2020

 Equity  

5  18.03.2020  6500  04.02.2020  Equity 
 

6 
 

18.03.2020  2500  04.02.2020  Equity 

 
7

 
Alkyl Amines 

Chemicals 
 

17.03.2020
 232

 
04.02.2020

 
Equity 

 
8

 
 

25.09.2020

 
50000

 

24.06.2020

 
Equity 

 9

  

24.04.2020

 

6500

 

04.02.2020

 

Equity 

 
10

 

 

19.08.2020

 

37220

 

04.02.2020

 

Equity 

  

 
Place: Mumbai

 

May 18, 2021 

 

 
               

DIN: 00073907
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Rules, 2016}

 
ANNEXURE - E 

–

 

A –

  
 

 

 
2014

 

in Financial 
Year 2020-21.

SR.NO.

 
REQUIRMENTS

  

I

 

 

 

:

  

:  23.08

  
 

II
 

 
C): 

  

Mr. G S %
 

 
12.20%

 

Ms. 
 

16.35%
 

III 

 

1  
%  

IV 
on the rolls of the Company  

114  as on March 31, 2021.  

V
 

other than the managerial personnel 

 

.

 

VI

 
company
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65

Diamines and Chemicals Limited
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905 

 

ANNEXURE -

 

F

 

FORM NO. MR 3

 

[Pursuant to secƟon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and RemuneraƟon

 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 

For the Financial Year ended on

 

31st

 

March, 2021

 
 

To,

 

The Members,

 

Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

CIN: L24110GJ1976PLC002905

 

Plot No. 13, PCC Area,

 

P.O. Petrochemicals,

 

Vadodara –

 

391346, Gujarat

 
 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate pracƟces by

 
M/s. Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 
(hereinaŌer referred to as

 

“the Company”).
 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluaƟng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our

 
opinion thereon.

 
 

Based on our verificaƟon of the Company’s
 

books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the informaƟon provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on  31st  March, 2021  (hereinaŌer 
referred to as “Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporƟng made hereinaŌer: 

 We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company

 
for the financial year ended on

 
31st

 
March, 2021

 
according to the provisions of:

 
 (i.)

 

The Companies Act, 2013 (hereinaŌer

 
referred to as the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

 (ii.)

 

The SecuriƟes Contract (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

 
(iii.)

 

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

 
(iv.)

 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟons made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;

 

(Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

 
(v.)

 

The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board o f 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

 
 

(a)

 

The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and 
Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 2011; 

 

(b)

 

The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 
2015;

 

(c)

 

The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) RegulaƟons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and

 

dealing with client;

 
 

We further report that, there were no acƟons/events in pursuance of;
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(a)

 

The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2018; 

 

(b)

 

The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) RegulaƟons, 
2014; 

 

(c)

 

The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes) 
RegulaƟons, 2008; 

 

(d)

 

The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2009; 
and

 

(e)

 

The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2018; 

 
 

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the financial year under review.

 
 

(vi.)

 

We have relied on the representaƟon made by the Company and its officers for systems and 
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and 
RegulaƟons of the Company.

 

We further report that, based on the informaƟon provided by the Company, its officers and authorized 
representaƟves during the conduct of audit, and also on the review of quarterly compliance reports by 
respecƟve department heads/Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officer/ExecuƟve Director taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Company, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the 
Company and on examinaƟon of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check 
basis, the Company has generally complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company;

 

(a)  The Air (PrevenƟon and Control of PolluƟon) Act, 1981;  
(b)  The Water (PrevenƟon and Control of PolluƟon) Act, 1974;  
(c)  The Environment ProtecƟon Act, 1986;  
(d) Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989;  
(e) Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 and Amendment Rule, 

2003; 
 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulaƟons

 
of the following, to the extent 

applicable to the Company during the audit period:
 

 (i.)

 

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

 
  

(ii.)

 

SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons &

 

Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015. 

 
 

We report that, during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, 
rules, regulaƟons and guidelines

 

menƟoned above.

 
We further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect 
tax laws, has not been

 

reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory

 

auditor/tax auditor and other designated professionals.

 
 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the

 

provisions of the

 

Act, Rules, RegulaƟons, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. menƟoned above.

 
 

We further report that

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted with proper balance of ExecuƟve Directors, Non-
ExecuƟve Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composiƟon of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate noƟce is given to all directors to schedule the Board MeeƟngs, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
informaƟon and clarificaƟons on the agenda items before the meeƟng and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon at 
the meeƟng.

 
 

Generally, all decisions at Board MeeƟngs and CommiƩee MeeƟngs are carried out unanimously as recorded 
in the minutes of the meeƟngs of the Board of Directors or CommiƩee of the Board, as the case may be.

 
 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
 

commensurate with the 
size and operaƟons of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulaƟons and guidelines.

 
 

We further report that during the audit period, there were no  specific events  having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulaƟons, guidelines, standards, etc.  

 
         Sandip Sheth & Associates  

        Company Secretaries  
        

Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000
 UDIN:

 
F005467C000340010

  
      

     
        

Sandip Sheth

 Partner

 
Place: Ahmedabad

      

FCS:

 

5467

 
Date: 18th

 

May, 2021

      

CP No.: 4354

 
 

This report is to be read with our leƩer of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A”

 

and forms an integral 
part of this report.
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“Annexure –

 
A”

 

To,

 

The Members,

 

Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

CIN: L24110GJ1976PLC002905

 

Plot No. 13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemicals,

 

Vadodara –

 

391346, Gujarat

 
 

Our report of even date

 

is to be read along with this leƩer.

 

1.

 

Due to restricƟve movements

 

as directed by the Central Government, Ministry of Home Affairs in 
connecƟon with COVID-19 restricƟons, we have not visited the premises and have not physically verified 
the underlying supporƟng documents as are normally verified; we have reviewed the transacƟons and 
conducted our audit on the basis of the various records in soŌ file, pdf file and soŌware backups and 
other documents made available for our verificaƟon. However we have

 

relied on the informaƟon, 
statements and posiƟon furnished and confirmed by the Company and its designated employees and RTA 
where ever necessary.

 
 

2.

 

Maintenance of records, documents, papers maintained pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 and other 
applicable laws as reported in our report is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on our audit.

 
 

3.

 

We have followed the audit pracƟces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the records. The verificaƟon was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in the records. We believe that the processes and pracƟces, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 
  

4.
 

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company, as the same are being verified by the statutory/tax/internal auditors from Ɵme to Ɵme.

 
 

5.
 

Where ever required, we have obtained the representaƟons from the Management and respecƟve 
departmental heads about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulaƟons and happening of events etc.

 

during the audit period.
 

 

6.
 

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons, standards is 
the responsibility of management. Our examinaƟon was limited to the verificaƟon of procedures on test 
basis, for the purpose of issuing

 
Secretarial Audit Report.

 
 

7.
 

The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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8. We conducted our audit in the manner specified under secƟon 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
made there under, which seeks an opinion  and reasonable assurance about the compliance status of 
various applicable acts and rules to the Company.

 

For, Sandip Sheth & Associates 

PracƟcing Company Secretaries 

Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000 

UDIN: F005467C000340010 

Sandip Sheth 
Partner 
FCS No: 5467        Date: 18th  May, 2021  
COP No.:4354        Place: Ahmedabad   
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ANNEXURE - G 
CIN: - L24110GJ1976PLC002905    Nominal Capital: - 1,75,500,000/-  

        Paid-up Capital: -   97,832,400/-  

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
To, 
The Members, 
M/S. Diamines and Chemicals Ltd. Plot No. 13, PCC Area,

 P.O. Petrochemicals,
 BARODA-391 347.

 
We

 
have examined all relevant

 
registers,

 
records, forms and disclosures received from the directors of 

Diamines And Chemicals
 

Limited
 

, produced before us by the Company for the purpose of certifying 
compliance of conditions of clause 10 (i) of para C of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of Chapter IV 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the

 
year ended on

 
31st

 March, 2021. We
 

have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
 

knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

 
During the course of such certification, we 

have relied on various information and declaration furnished by each director of the Company as on 31st

 March, 2021
 

and relied on the online information available with Ministry of Corporate Affairs Portal, its 
filling position and other web pages. 

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal  www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 
explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31st

 

March, 2021,

 

have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by

 

the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 
Authority.

 
Sr. 

 
No.

 

Name of Director

 

Director Identification 
Number (DIN)

 

Date of appointment in 
the Company

 
1

 

Mr. Amit Mahendra Mehta

 

00073907

 

14/03/2001

 
2

 

Mr. Rajendra Surendra Chhabra

 

00093384

 

14/03/2001

 
3

 

Mr. Dhruv Lalit Mehta

 

02083226

 

03/12/2019

 
4

 

Mr. Govindarajapuram Venkatachalam 
Seshadri

 

02205898

 

12/05/2008

 5 Mr. Ambrish Keshav Dalal 02546506 31/03/2009
6 Ms. Kejal  Vipinchandra Pandya 07048046 27/04/2018

 

http://www.mca.gov.in)
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Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opi nion on these 
based on our verification.

 

Our examination was limited to the procedure and implementation thereof,  
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the clause 10 (i) of para C of 
Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulati ons, 2015

 

for the year ended on 31st

 

March, 2021.

    
 

      

Sandip Sheth & Associates

 
      

Company Secretaries

 
      

Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000

 
      

UDIN: F005467C000340111

 
             

Place: Ahmedabad

     

Sandip Sheth

 

Date:

 

18th

 

May, 2021

     

Partner

 

FCS: 5467

 

CP No.: 4354

 

 



ANNEXURE –

 

H

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

 
  

-

 
  

BOARD OF DIR

 
 

As on 31

 

March, 2021 Four (4) Non-

 

(3

-

 
 

The Chairman of the Board is an
  

 
 March, 2021  

 
1.   
2.   
3.   Non-   
4.

  Dalal Non-  5.
  

Non-
 6.

  
Non-

 
 

 
 

Four (4

  

 t

 
 

 
 

the Company their wide 
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MCA.



 

ld during the year on Friday,

 

5th February, 2021

 

non-

 

 

a.

 

-

 

b.

 

-

 

c.

 

 
 

all the

 

s. , who is an Indepe
  

 
  

  

-  
 

Amit  of the Company,  
  -  

  BOARD MEETINGS: 
 

  
Durin Four

 

(4 19th

 

June, 2020, 10th 

 

20, 6th

 

,5th

 

February, 2021.

 

Annual 

 
 

No.

 
 

DIN 

 
 

 

AGM held on 
04/09/2020

 

1.

  

(
)

 

00073907

 

Chairman –
ED/PD

 

4/4

 

Yes
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himself

The Meetings of the Board of Directors are held through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio
Visual Means (OAVM) because of current COVID situation.  Meetings are scheduled well in 
advance. The Board meets at regular intervals to review the quarterly performance and the 
financial results of the Company. The inclusion of any matter in the agenda for discussion. 
Senior Management persons are also invited to attend the Board meetings and provide 
clarifications as and when required.



2.

   

02205898

 

ED

 

3/4

 

Yes

 

3.

   

*

 
 

00093384

 

NED

 

4/4

 

Yes

 

4.

  

02083226

 

NED-I

 

4/4

 

Yes

 

5.

 

Ambrish Dalal

 

02546506

 

NED-I

 

4/4

 

Yes

 

6.

  

07048046

 

NED-I

 

4/4

 

Yes

 
 

ED

  

NED

 

: Non –

  

NED-I

 

: Non-

 

PD

  
 

T
 

 

* -
-

 
 

 
 

  

 
in other Companies 

 
Company.

and One person 
Company) *

 

No. of Chairmanship(s) and 

 

 

 

Chairmanship in 

 

Memberships in 

Companies in 
which they hold 

 

  

03

 

-

  
 

01 

 

01

 

01

 
  

01

 

-

 

-

 
 

-

 

-

 

02

 
 

01

 

01

 

01

 
27.04.2018)

 

-

 

-

 

02

  
 

 

**The 
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01



 
 

  

  

Audit 

  

th

 

March, 2001.

 

01.04.2020 and 
06.11.2020 in FY 2020-21.

 

  

 
March, 2021

   
 

Name
   
 Chairman Non-  

 Member Non-  
 Member Non-  
 Member Non-   

NOTE:- 
 - pany with

 
6th

 
, 2020.
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18.06.2020

 

10.08.2010

 

05.11.2020

 

04.02.2021

 

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 
 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 
 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 
 

*
- th

 

.

 
 

The 

 

4th

 

Annual 
4th

 

.

 
 

 
 

As on 31

 
March, 2021, Four

 
(4) members 

one

 

(1)
  

(1)
 

Non-
 

and
 
two (2) 

 
Non-

of the Company. 
 

 

 
who is
 

s.
 

has been 
1 April, 2020 and 6th -21.  

 
 

 
  

     
Received 

    Non-
   

Nil
    

Nil
 Non-

   
Nil 

    
Nil

 
   

3
    

3
 Miscellaneous 

      
Nil

    
Nil

 Total        3     3  

 
-

 
 - -

dividends. 

 
 

 

-

 

Mr

 

Non-

 

& Non 

 
  

Chairman

  
 

Non-

 
 

Non-

 
 

 

 

Member
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-

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

- -

Indep

 

rd

  
 

 
t

 
 

10th

 
th

 

, 2020.
  

1
 

April, 2020 and 6th
 

-21.
 

 

 
–  2021.

 
 

-

 
 

-

 

is as 
under:

        
       

  

Name 

   

Commission

 

Total

 
  

6.00

 

2.84

 

3.45

 

12.29

 
 

Dalal

 

Nil

 

2.44

 

1.38

 

3.82

 
  

Nil

 

2.40

 

1.38

 

3.78

 

    
Commissi

on

 [ ]

 

Total
 

 
Chairman

 

71.23

 

-

 

27.57

 

98.80

 

  

47.23

 

-

 

16.75

 

64.18

 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/Nomination-Remuneration-Policy-03-12-2019-new.pdf

Mrs. Nil 2.24 1.38 3.62   
Professional Fees.-   

https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/Nomination-Remuneration-Policy-03-12-2019-new.pdf


     

 

   

– as on 31.03.2021: 

 

Name 

  

1.

  

*

 

18,100

 

2.

   

26,200

 

3.

   

45000

 

4.

   

0

 
 

*Mr. 

 

to 05.11.2020 and 

 

 

Non-

 

06.11.2020.

 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL 

 
 

 

-2021
 

 
 

 -

 
 

 

th

 
 

.

 
 

  
 

Name 
 in 

 
 No. of 

Held  

No. of 

 
 Chairman  2  2  

 
Member

  
2

 
2

 
*

 
Member

 
Non-

 

2
 

2
 

 
Member

 
Non-

 

1

 
1
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Ind As-108

 

applicable to the 
Company is given in .

  

 
  

 
on May  18, 2021  

 March, 2021.   

  
The Company has complied with all th

 
  :

  

 
 

  

 
  

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

  
-alia, 

  

 

          

          

 
 

79

Diamines and Chemicals Limited
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905 

 



 

 
 

andard (in English)

 

. 

 
 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

 
 

 

July 14, 2021 to July 20

 

, 2021 (both days inclusive)

 

5th

 

Annual 

 
July 20, 2021

  

t

 

 

BSE , 

 

Floor 25, 

 

Mumbai 400 001. 

 

–2272 1233 / 34.

 

–2272 2082/3132.

 

(Scrip code: 500120)
 

 
l 

Year 2020 –
 

2021.
 

 –  391 346.  
–  3534200  
–  2230 218  

e-  
 

 
    

to be lodged:
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

both Physical &
 

 
 

  
B-

 
 

Near Radhakrishna Char 

 

-

 

390 020

 
 

 

+91 265 6136000

 

E-mail : 

 

 

7.

    

Number (ISIN) 

 

INE 591D01014

 

 

 

Ms. 

 

534200

 

Email: 
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 44th

 

AGM –

 

4th

  
 

EOGM –

 

13th

  

11.00 a.m. held

 

the 

 

43rd

 

AGM –

 

9th

   
 

 

42nd

 

AGM -

 

6th

  

A

 
 

 
 

44th

 

AGM-

  

EOGM-

  

43rd

 
AGM –

  

42nd

  
AGM

 
-

   
passed

 

 

 
 on 31 March, 2021. 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

 
�  

12. Financial Year 1  April to 31   

years
 

2019-20 : 40% (Final)  2019-
 2018-19 : 20% (Final)

 2018-
 2017-18 : 25%

 2016 -17 : 15%

 14. 
Exchanges

 
 

 

 
 

 

No.

 
 

The Stock Exchange, Mumbai

 

High (� )

 

� )

 

1.

  

April, 2020

 

209.70

 

143.00

 

2.

  

May, 2020

 

202.00

 

167.40

 

3.

  

June, 2020

 

294.30

 

185.00

 

4.

  

July, 2020

 

389.90

 

251.00

 

5.

   

562.45

 

355.05

 

6.

   

509.00

 

390.05

 

7.

   

458.00

 

388.10

 

264.15/-

₹ ₹

₹
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8.

   

437.50

 

342.45

 

9.

   

369.00

 

293.00

 

10.

  

January, 2021

 

418.80

 

325.00

 

11.

  

February, 2021

 

378.00

 

288.00

 

12.

  

March, 2021

 

315.00

 

253.40

  

 

DING: (as on 31st

 

March, 2021)

  

value

 
   

          
           

�

 

(1)

 

Number

 

(2)

 
 

(3)

 

�

 

(4)

 
 

(5)

 

Upto 500

 

12100

 

92.46

 

11494780

 

11.75

 

501   -

  

1,000

 

507

 

3.87

 

3887470

 

3.97

 

1,001 -

  

2,000

 

222

 

1.70

 

3258690

 

3.33 

 

2,001 -

  

3,000

 

78

 

0.60

 

1952950

 

2.00

 

3,001 -

 
4,000

 
40

 
0.30

 
1409150

 
1.44

 

4,001 –
 

5000
 

26
 

0.20
 

1180490
 

1.21
 

5,001 –
 

10,000
 

48
 

0.37
 

3433400
 

3.51
 

 
66

 
0.50

 
71215470

 
72.79

 

TOTAL 13087  100.00  97832400  100.00   

 March, 2021)  
 

No.
 

   

1 
 

5305068
 

54.23  
2 

 
3537

 
0.04  

3 
 

151063

 
1.54  

4
 

 

255878

 

2.61
 5

 
Public

 

3839148

 

39.24
 6

 
NRI’s

 

68230

 

0.70

 7

 
 

115667

 

1.18

 8

 

Any Other                                                                                                                    44649

 

0.46

 
TOTAL

 

9783240

 

100.00%

 

 

 

March, 2020)

  

   

NSDL

 

80,36,362

 

82.14%

 

CDSL

 

15,05,370

 

15.39%

 

Physical

 

2,41,508

 

2.47%

 

TOTAL

 

97,83,240

 

100%
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–

 

391 346

 
 

on Equity:

 
 

The Company has 

  
 

 
 

 

the person is a 
  

   
 

-

 
-

 
 

S.
  

-
 

-
 

 
-

 
-

 

Dhruv
    

Mrs.  
- -  

 

 
Financial 

 Global Business
 

 
 

Leadership

 
 and long-

 and 

Sales and 
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S.

  

Financial, Leadership, 

 
 

Financial

 

 

Financial

 

 

Financial

 
 

Financial

 

 

 
 

 

-

 

Not Applicable

 

 

-

 

Not Applicable  

 

–
 

Not Applicable
 

 

A 
 

 

 

The Company has  
.

 

 

Disclosur

 -

 
Nil

 -

 

Nil

 
c. number of -

 
Nil

 
 

Non-

 
 

-

 
 

-

 

-
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Name
Global Business, Leadership, Sales and 

  
s

Company

G



 

.
 

, 2015

 

 
   

 
 

For Diamines and Chemicals Limited  

Place: Mumbai  
May 18, 2021 

 

 
 

 

       

             
DIN : 00073907
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-
Company.

-



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

CIN : -

 

L24110GJ1976PLC002905

    

Nominal Capital: -

 

1,75,500,000/-

 
        

Paid-up Capital: -

   

97,832,400/-

 
 

 
 

To,

 

The Members,

 

M/s. Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

Plot No. 13, PCC Area, 

 

P. O. Petrochemicals ,

 

Vadodara -

 

391346

 

 

We

 

have examined all relevant records of Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

for the purpose of certifying 

compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance,

 

para C of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of 

Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obli gations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ,

 

for the 

 

ended on 31st

 

March, 2021.

 

We

 

have obtained all the information and explanations, which to 

the best of our

  

 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 

examination was limited to the procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 

as to the future viability of the company nor of the  

 

 On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanation and information furnished, We 

certify that the Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of the para C of Schedule V read 

with Reg ulation 34(3) of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, except as reported by the Secretarial Auditor in his respective report , if any.  

 

 
 

Company Secretaries

 
Firm Unique Code:

 

P2001GJ041000

 

UDIN:

 

F005467C000340087

 

 
 

Sandip Sheth

 

Partner

 

FCS No: 5467

        

Date: 18th

 

May, 2021

 
        

Place: Ahmedabad
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLANCE CERTIFICATE

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Financial Year

Expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. This certificate is neither an assurance

For, Sandip Sheth & Associates

COP No.: 4354



ANNEXURE -

 

I

 

-I

 
  

 
 

amounts)

 
 

  
  

 

India

 
 

30/07/2020

 
 

100%

 

 
2020-21

 
 

INR
 

Share Capital
  

5.00 
 

 (3.88)  
  3.34  

  3.34  
Total Assets  4.46  

 -  
 

-
 

  
(3.88)

                                                 
 

-

    
 

(3.88)

                                                Proposed Dividend

 

-

 
% of shareholding

 

100%

 
   

 
 

 

 

 For Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

Place: Mumbai

  

May 18, 2021
 

 

 
 

 

                    

DIN : 00073907

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR

 

MANAGEMENT 
 

 

Company has - 
 

 
March, 2021

compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.  
 

 31  March, 2021.  
 

 Sd/-
 
 
 DIN: 02205898

 
Place: Mumbai

 
 

May 17, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’

 

REPORT

 

To the Members of

 

Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 
 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone financial statements
  

 

Opinion
 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements
 

of Diamines and 
Chemicals Limited

 
(“the Company”), which

 
comprise

 
the

 
Balance

 
Sheet

 
as

 
at

  
March 31, 

2021,
 

the
 

Statement
 

of
 

Profit
 

and
 

Loss
 

including
 
Other Comprehensive

 
income,

 
t h e  

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement  of  Cash  Flows  for  the  year  then ended,  

and notes to the standalone financial statements,  including  a  summary  of  significant  

accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon  (hereinaŌer  referred  to  as  “the  
standalone financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to  the explanaƟons given 
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements  give  the  informaƟon  required  by  the  
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner  so  required  and  give  a  true  and  fair  view  in  
conformity with the Indian AccounƟng Standards specified under secƟon 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015,  as  amended,  (‘Ind  AS”)  
and

 
other

 
accounƟng

 
principles

 
generally

 
accepted

 
in

 
India,

 
of

 
the

 
state

 
of affairs

 
of

 
the

 Company
 

as
 

at
 

March
 

31,
 

2021,
 

and
 

total
 
comprehensive

 
income

 
(comprising

 
of

 
profit

 
and 

other
 

comprehensive
 

income),
 

changes
 

in
 
equity

 
and

 
its

 
cash

 
flows

 
for

 
the

 
year

 
ended

 
on

 that
 

date.
 

Basis for Opinion
 

We

 
conducted

 
our

 
audit

 
of

 
the

 
standalone financial statements

 
in

 
accordance

 
with

 
the

 Standards

 

on

 

AudiƟng

 

(SAs) specified under secƟon 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliƟes 
under those Standards are further described

 

in

 

the

 

Auditors’

 

ResponsibiliƟes

 

for

 

the

 

Audit

 

of

 the

 

Standalone financial statements

 

secƟon

 

of

 

our

 

report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered

 
Accountants

 

of

 

India

 

together

 

with

 

the

 

ethical

 

requirements

 

that

 

are

 

relevant

 

to

 

our

 

audit

 
of the standalone financial statements

 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled

 

our

 

other

 

ethical

 

responsibiliƟes

 

in

 

accordance

 

with

 

these
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requirements

 

and

 

the

 

Code

 

of

 

Ethics. We

 

believe

 

that

 

the

 

audit

 

evidence

 

we

 

have

 

obtained

 

is

 

sufficient

 

and

 

appropriate

 

to

 

provide

 

a

 

basis

 

for our audit

 

opinion.

 

Key Audit MaƩers
 

Key

 

audit

 

maƩers

 

are

 

those

 

maƩers

 

that,

 

in

 

our

 

professional

 

judgment,

 

were

 

of

 

most

 

significance
 

in
 

our audit
 

of
 

these standalone
 
financial

 
statements

 
of

 
the

 
current

 
period.

 

These
 

maƩers
 

were
 

addressed
 

in
 

the
 

context of our audit of the standalone financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

 
not provide a 

separate opinion on these maƩers. We have determined the maƩer described below to be 
the key

 
audit maƩer to be communicated in our

 
report.

 

Sr. 
No. 

Key Audit MaƩer
 

How our audit addressed the key audit 
maƩer  

1 LiƟgaƟons and claims 
(Refer to note 37(c) to the standalone  
financial statements) 

 
The cases are pending with mulƟple tax 
authoriƟes like Income Tax, Excise/Service 
Tax and Provident Fund Authority etc. and 
there are claims which have not been 
acknowledged as debt by the company. 

  In normal course of business, financial 
exposures may arise from pending 
proceedings and from liƟgaƟon and claims 
which are not acknowledged as debt by 
the company. Whether a claim needs to 
be recognised as liability or disclosed as 
conƟngent liability in the standalone

 financial statements is dependent on 
number of significant assumpƟons and 
judgments. The amounts involved are 
potenƟally significant and determining the 
amount, if any, to be recognised or 
disclosed in the standalone

 

financial 
statements, is inherently subjecƟve.

 
  

We considered the above area as a key 
audit maƩer due to associated 

Our audit procedures, inter alia, included 
the following:  
  

  EvaluaƟon of management’s 
judgment of tax risks, esƟmates of 
tax exposures, other claims and 
conƟngencies. Past and current 
experience with the tax authoriƟes 
and management’s response on the 
subject maƩer were used to assess 
the appropriateness of 
management’s best esƟmate of the 
most likely outcome of each 
uncertain conƟngent liability.

 
  

 
Understanding the current status of 
the tax assessments & other 
liƟgaƟons and discussing selected 
maƩers with the enƟty’s 
management.

 
  



 

Assessing the enƟty’s assumpƟons 
and esƟmates in respect of claims, 
included in the conƟngent liabiliƟes 
disclosed in the standalone

 
financial statements. 
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uncertainty related to the outcome of 
these maƩers and applicaƟon of material 
judgement in interpretaƟon of law.

 
 



 

Assessment of the probability of 
negaƟve result of liƟgaƟon and the 
reliability of esƟmates of related 
obligaƟons.

 

Conclusion:

 

Based on procedure described above, we 
did not idenƟfy any material excepƟons 
relaƟng to management’s asserƟons, and 
treatment, presentaƟon and disclosure of 
the subject maƩer in the standalone

 

financial statements.
 

 

InformaƟon Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’
 

Report 
Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparaƟon of the other informaƟon. 
The other informaƟon comprises the informaƟon included in the Board’s Report including 
Annexures to Board’s Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate 
Governance Report and Shareholder’s InformaƟon but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.  The above-referred informaƟon is 
expected to be made available to us aŌer the date of this audit report.  

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements  does  not  cover  the  other  informaƟon  
and

 
we

 
do

 
not
 

express
 

any form of assurance conclusion
 
thereon.

 
In connecƟon with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other informaƟon

 
and,

 
in
 

doing
 

so,
 
consider

 
whether

 
the

 
other

 
informaƟon

 
is

 materially
 

inconsistent
 

with
 

the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

 
When we read the informaƟon, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the maƩer to those charged with governance 
and take appropriate acƟons necessitated by the circumstances and

 

the applicable laws 
and regulaƟons.

 ResponsibiliƟes of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements

 The

 

Company’s

 

Board

 

of

 

Directors

 

is

 

responsible

 

for

 

the

 

maƩers

 

stated

 

in

 

secƟon

 

134(5)

 

of

 
the

 

Act

 

with respect to the preparaƟon of these standalone financial statements that give a 
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true and fair view of the financial posiƟon, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income,

 

changes

 

in

 

equity

 

and

 

cash

 

flows of

 

the

 

Company

 

in

 

accordance

 

with

 

the

 

accounƟng
principles

 

generally

 

accepted

 

in

 

India,

 

including

 

the Indian

 

AccounƟng

 

Standards

 

(Ind

 

AS)
prescribed

 
under

 
secƟon

 
133

 
of

 
the

 
Act.

 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other 
irregulariƟes; selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; making 
judgments

 
and
 

esƟmates
 

that
 

are
 

reasonable
 
and

 
prudent;

 
and

 
design,

 
implementaƟon

 
and

maintenance of
 

adequate
 

internal
 

financial
 
controls,

 
that

 
were

 
operaƟng

 
effecƟvely

 
for

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the 
preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the standalone financial statements  that  give  a  true  and
fair view and are free from material misstatement,  whether  due  to  fraud or  error.  

In preparing the standalone financial statements,  management  is  responsible  for  assessing
the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩers 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounƟng unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operaƟons, or has no 
realisƟc alternaƟve but to do

 
so.

 
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporƟng 
process.

 Auditors’

 

ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

 Our

 

objecƟves

 

are

 

to

 

obtain

 

reasonable

 

assurance

 

about

 

whether

 

the

 

standalone

 

financial
statements

 

as

 

a

 

whole

 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditors’

 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

 

they

 

could
reasonably

 

be

 

expected

 

to

 

influence

 

the

 

economic

 

decisions

 

of

 

users

 

taken

 

on

 

the basis of 
these standalone financial

 

statements.

 

As

 

part

 

of

 

an

 

audit

 

in

 

accordance

 

with

 

SAs,

 

we

 

exercise

 

professional

 

judgment

 

and

 

maintain
professional skepƟcism throughout the audit. We

 

also:

 



 

IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence

 

that

 

is

 

sufficient

 

and

 

appropriate

 

to
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provide

 

a

 

basis

 

for

 

our

 

opinion.

 

The

 

risk

 

of

 

not

 

detecƟng a

 

material

 

misstatement

 

resulƟng

 

from

 

fraud

 

is

 

higher

 

than

 

for

 

one

 

resulƟng

 

from

 

error,

 

as

 

fraud

 

may involve 
collusion, forgery, intenƟonal omissions, misrepresentaƟons, or the override of internal 
control.

 


 

Obtain
 

an
 

understanding
 

of
 

internal
 

control
 
relevant

 
to

 
the

 
audit

 
in

 
order

 
to

 
design

 
audit

 

procedures that
 

are
 

appropriate
 

in
 

the
 
circumstances. Under secƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
in place and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounƟng esƟmates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or condiƟons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to conƟnue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

 we are required to draw aƩenƟon in our auditors’
 
report to the related disclosures in 

the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditors’

 
report. However, future events or condiƟons may cause the Company 

to cease to continue as a going concern.

 

 

Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 
represent the underlying transacƟons and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentaƟon.

 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maƩers, 
the planned scope and Ɵming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we idenƟfy during our audit.

 
We

 

also

 

provide

 

those

 

charged

 

with

 

governance

 

with

 

a

 

statement

 

that

 

we

 

have

 

complied

 

with

 

relevant ethical

 

requirements

 

regarding

 

independence,

 

and

 

to

 

communicate

 

with

 

them

 

all

 

relaƟonships

 

and

 

other maƩers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From

 

the

 

maƩers

 

communicated

 

with

 

those

 

charged

 

with

 

governance,

 

we

 

determine

 

those

 

maƩers

 

that were

 

of

 

most

 

significance

 

in

 

the

 

audit

 

of

 

the

 

standalone financial

 

statements

 

of

 

the

 

current

 

period and

 

are

 

therefore the key audit maƩers. We describe these maƩers 
in our auditors’

 

report unless law or regulaƟon precludes

 

public

 

disclosure

 

about

 

the

 

maƩers

 

or

 

when,

 

in

 

extremely

 

rare

 

circumstances,

 

we

 

determine that

 

a

 

maƩer

 

should

 

not

 

be communicated

 

in

 

our

 

report

 

because

 

the

 

adverse

 

consequences

 

of

 

doing so

 

would

 

reasonably

 

be

 

expected

 

to

 

outweigh

 

the

 

public

 

interest

 

benefits

 

of

 

such

 

communicaƟon.

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 

1.

 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by 
the Central Government

 
of
 

India
 

in
 

terms
 
of

 
sub-secƟon

 
(11)

 
of

 
secƟon

 
143

 
of

 
the

 
Act,

 

we
 

give
 

in
 

“Annexure
 

A”, a
 

statement
 
on

 
the

 
maƩers

 
specified

 
in

 
paragraphs

 
3

 
and

 
4

 
of

 

the
 

Order,
 

to
 

the
 

extent
 

applicable.
 

2. As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, we report  that:  

a. we have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our  audit;  

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as  required  by  law  have  been  kept  by  the
 Company

 
so
 

far as it appears from our examinaƟon of those
 

books;
 

c.
 

the
 

Balance
 

Sheet,
 

the
 

Statement
 

of
 
Profit

 
and

 
Loss

 
including

 
other

 
comprehensive

 income,
 

the Statement
 

of
 

Changes
 
in

 
Equity

 
and

 
the

 
Statement

 
of

 
Cash

 
Flows

 
dealt

 with

 
by

 
this

 
Report

 
are

 
in agreement with the books of

 
account;

 d.

 

in

 

our

 

opinion,

 

the

 

aforesaid

 

standalone financial

 

statements

 

comply

 

with

 

the

 

Indian

 
AccounƟng

 

Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under SecƟon 133 of the

 

Act;

 e.

 

on the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as on March 
31, 2021, taken

 

on

 

record

 

by

 

the

 

Board

 

of

 

Directors,

 

none

 

of

 

the

 

directors

 

is

 

disqualified

 

as

 

on

 

March 31, 2021,

 

from

 

being

 

appointed

 

as

 

a

 

director

 

in

 

terms

 

of

 

SecƟon

 

164(2)

 

of

 

the

 

Act;

 
f.

 

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements

 

of

 

the

 

Company

 

and

 

the

 

operaƟng

 

effecƟveness

 

of

 

such

 

controls,

 

refer

 

to

 

our

 

separate report in “Annexure B”;

  

g.

 

with

 

respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditors’

 

Report in accordance 
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with the requirements of secƟon 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

 

in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons 
given

 
to us, the remuneraƟon paid by the Company to its directors during the year is 

in accordance with the provisions of secƟon 197 of the Act; and
 

h.
 

with
 

respect
 

to
 

the
 

other
 

maƩers
 

to
 

be
 
included

 
in

 
the

 
Auditors’

 
Report

 
in

 

accordance
 

with
 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given 
to

 
us:
 

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on its financial posiƟon 
in its standalone financial statements  –  Refer Note 37  to the standalone financial 
statements; 

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivaƟve 
contracts as at March 31, 2021 for which there were any material foreseeable  
losses; 

iii. there has been no delay in transferring  amounts,  required  to  be  transferred,  to  
the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund by the  Company.  

For K.C. Mehta & Co.
 Chartered Accountants

 Firm’s RegistraƟon No. 106237W
 

 
 Vishal P. Doshi

 Partner

 Membership No. 101533

 UDIN:

 

21101533AAAABC9848

 Place:

 

Vadodara

  
Date:

 

May 18, 2021
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“ANNEXURE A”

 

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

 

The annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’

 

Report to the members of 
Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

(“the Company”) on the standalone financial statements 
for the year ended March

 

31,

 

2021, we report that:

 

i.

 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟculars, including 
         quanƟtaƟve details and situaƟon of fixed assets.

 

(b) 

 

The Company has a regular programme of physical verificaƟon of its fixed assets by 
which fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In 
accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noƟced on such verificaƟon. In our opinion, the 
periodicity of physical verificaƟon is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. 

 

(c) 
 

According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and on the basis of our 
examinaƟon of the records of the Company, the Ɵtle deeds / lease deeds of 
immovable properƟes are held in the name of the Company, as on date of this report.                                         

ii. The Inventories except for goods-in-transit, have been physically verified by the 
management during the year and in our opinion,  the frequency of verificaƟon is reasonable. 
As explained to us, there were no material discrepancies on physical verificaƟon of 
inventory as compared to the book records. 

 
 iii.

 
The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parƟes covered in the register maintained under secƟon 189 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore, reporƟng under clause (iii) (a) to clause (iii) (c) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 
 

iv.

 

The  Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the 
parƟes covered under secƟon 185 and 186 of the Act. In our opinion and according to the 
informaƟon and explanaƟon given to us,  the Company has complied with the provisions of 
secƟon 186 of the Act in respect of the Investments made.

 
 

v.

 

According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits during the year from the public within the meaning of provisions of secƟon 73 
to 76 of the Act, and the rules framed thereunder or under the direcƟves issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and therefore,

  

reporƟng under clause (v) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 
 

vi.

 

We have broadly reviewed the cost records and accounts maintained by the Company 
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as specified by the Central 
Government under secƟon 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion, that prima facie, the 
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prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not 
carried out a detailed examinaƟon of the same.

 
 

vii.

 

(a)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and on the basis of our 
examinaƟon of the records, the Company has been regular in deposiƟng with appropriate 
authoriƟes undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employee’s state 
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs,

 

goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues applicable to it. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, 
duty of customs, goods and services

 

tax, cess  and other  statutory dues were in arrears, as 
at March 31, 2021

  

for

 

a period of more than six months from the date they become 
payable.

 

(b)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and on the basis of our 
examinaƟon of the records of the Company, there are no disputed dues in respect of goods 
and service tax which have not been deposited. According to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us, the following are the parƟculars of Income tax, Service tax, duty 
of customs and duty of excise as at March 31, 2021

 

which have not been deposited on 
account of dispute:

 

Name of the statute (Nature 
of disputed dues)

 Amount

 

(

 
in 

lakhs)
 

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

 

Forum where pending

 

Income Tax Act, 1961 
(Income Tax)

 4.45
 

A.Y 2010-11
 
Income-tax Appellate Tribunal –

 

Ahmedabad 
 

Income Tax Act, 1961 
(Income Tax) 

11.97 A.Y 2013-14  Income-tax Appellate Tribunal –  
Ahmedabad  

Income Tax Act, 1961 
(Income Tax) 

31.00 A.Y 2014-15  Income-tax Appellate Tribunal –
Ahmedabad  

Income Tax Act, 1961
 (Income Tax)

 

5.64
 

A.Y 2016-17
 
Commissioner of Income-Tax 
(Appeals), Vadodara

 
Income Tax Act, 1961 
(Income Tax)

 

38.75

 
A.Y 2017-18

 
Commissioner of Income-Tax 
(Appeals), Vadodara

 Finance Act, 1994 (Service 
tax/ Excise)

 

62.63

 

F.Y. 2004-
05 to 2012-

13

 

Customs, Excise & Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT), 
Ahmedabad.
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₹



 
 
 
 

Finance Act, 1994 (Service 
tax/ Excise)

 

3.71

 

F.Y. 2011-
12 to 2016-

17

 Superintendent -

 

Central 
Excise, Customs and Service 
Tax,

 

Vadodara-I

 

 

viii.

 

In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings obtained from the bank. The 
company has not taken any loans from financial insƟtuƟon or Government. It has not issued 
any debentures.

 

ix.

 

The Company has not raised any money by way of iniƟal public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) or term loans during the year and therefore, reporƟng under 
clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 

x.

 

To the best of our knowledge and according to informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, no 
fraud by the company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noƟced or 
reported during the year.

 

xi.
 

According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of 
the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneraƟon 
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of SecƟon 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act.

 

xii.
 

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company and therefore, reporƟng under clause 
(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

xiii. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, transacƟons 
with the related parƟes are in compliance with secƟons 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and the details of such transacƟons have been disclosed in the standalone  
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS).  

xiv. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of 
the records, the Company has not made any preferenƟal allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully or partly converƟble debentures during the year and therefore, reporƟng 
under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

xv.
 

In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company 
has not entered into non-cash transacƟons with directors or persons connected with them
and therefore, reporƟng under clause(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Firm’s RegistraƟon No. 106237W

   
Vishal P. Doshi 
Partner 
Membership No. 101533  
UDIN: 21101533AAAABC9848  
Place: Vadodara  
Date: May 18, 2021
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For K.C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

 
 

xvi. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company 
is not required to be registered under SecƟon 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.



 
 
 
 

                       

“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

 

(Referred

 

to

 

in

 

paragraph

 

2(f)

 

under

 

‘Report

 

on

 

Other

 

Legal

 

and

 

Regulatory

 

Requirements’

 

secƟon

 

of

 

our report

 

to

 

the

 

Members

 

of

 

Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

on

 

the

 

standalone 
financial

 

statements

 

of

 

even

 

date)

 

Report

 

on

 

the

 

Internal

 

Financial

 

Controls

 

with

 

reference

 

to

 

standalone

 

financial

 

statements

 

under

 

Clause

 

(i)

 

of Sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the

 

Act.

 

We

 

have

 

audited

 

the

 

internal

 

financial

 

controls

 

with

 

reference

 

to

 

standalone

 

financial

 

statements

 
of

 
Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 
(“the

 
Company”)

 
as

 
of

 
March

 
31,

 
2021

 
in

 

conjuncƟon
 

with
 

our
 

audit
 

of
 

the
 

standalone
 
financial

 
statements of the Company for the 

year ended on that
 

date.
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over  financial  reporƟng  criteria  established  by  
the Company considering the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls  over  Financial  Reporting  issued  by  the  
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).  These responsibiliƟes include the design, 
implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient

 
conduct of its business, 

including
 

adherence
 

to
 

company’s
 

policies,
 
the

 
safeguarding

 
of

 
its

 
assets,

 
the

 
prevenƟon

 and
 

detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng 
records, and the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required under the

 Companies Act, 2013.

 Auditors’ Responsibility

 Our

 

responsibility

 

is

 

to

 

express

 

an

 

opinion

 

on

 

the

 

Company's

 

internal

 

financial

 

controls

 

with

 
reference

 

to standalone financial

 

statements

 

based

 

on

 

our

 

audit.

 

We

 

conducted

 

our

 

audit

 

in

 
accordance

 

with

 

the

 

Guidance

 

Note on

 

Audit

 

of

 

Internal

 

Financial

 

Controls

 

over

 

Financial

 
ReporƟng

 

(the,

 

“Guidance

 

note”)

 

and

 

the

 

Standards on

 

AudiƟng,

 

issued

 

by

 

ICAI

 

and

 

prescribed

 

under

 

secƟon

 

143(10)

 

of

 

the

 

Act,

 

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial

 

Controls

 

and,

 

both

 

issued

 

by

 

the

 

ICAI.

 

Those

 

Standards

 

and

 

the

 

Guidance

 

Note

 

require

 

that

 

we comply

 

with

 

ethical

 

requirements

 

and

 

plan

 

and

 

perform

 

the

 

audit

 

to

 

obtain

 

reasonable

 

assurance

 

about 
whether

 

adequate

 

internal

 

financial

 

controls

 

with

 

reference

 

to

 

standalone financial
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statements

 

were

 

established

 

and maintained

 

and

 

if

 

such

 

controls

 

operated

 

effecƟvely

 

in

 

all

 

material

 

respects.

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial

 
controls

 
with

 
reference

 
to

 
standalone financial

 
statements

 
and

 
their

 

operaƟng
 

effecƟveness.
 

Our
 

audit
 

of internal
 
financial

 
controls

 
with

 
reference

 
to

 
standalone

 

financial
 

statements
 

included
 

obtaining
 

an
 
understanding

 
of internal financial controls with 

reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness  of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’  judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have  obtained  is  sufficient  and  appropriate  to  
provide

 
a

 
basis

 
for our

 
audit

 
opinion

 
on

 
the

 
Company’s

 
internal

 
financial

 
controls

 
with

 reference
 

to
 

standalone
 

financial
 

statements.
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements
 

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporƟng and the preparaƟon of standalone financial

 

statements

 

for

 

external

 

purposes

 

in

 
accordance

 

with

 

generally

 

accepted

 

accounƟng

 

principles. A

 

Company's

 

internal

 

financial

 
controls

 

with

 

reference

 

to

 

standalone

 

financial

 

statements

 

includes

 

those

 

policies

 

and 
procedures

 

that

 

(1)

 

pertain

 

to

 

the

 

maintenance

 

of

 

records

 

that,

 

in

 

reasonable

 

detail,

 
accurately

 

and

 

fairly reflect

 

the

 

transacƟons

 

and

 

disposiƟons

 

of

 

the

 

assets

 

of

 

the

 

Company;

 
(2)

 

provide

 

reasonable

 

assurance that

 

transacƟons

 

are

 

recorded

 

as

 

necessary

 

to

 

permit

 

preparaƟon

 

of

 

standalone financial

 

statements

 

in

 

accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being

 

made

 

only

 

in

 

accordance

 

with

 

authorisaƟons

 

of

 

management

 

and

 

directors

 

of

 

the

 

Company;

 

and

 

(3)

 

provide

 

reasonable

 

assurance

 

regarding

 

prevenƟon

 

or

 

Ɵmely

 

detecƟon

 

of

 

unauthorised

 

acquisiƟon, use,

 

or

 

disposiƟon

 

of

 

the

 

Company's

 

assets

 

that

 

could

 

have

 

a

 

material

 

effect

 

on

 

the

 

standalone

 

financial

 

statements.

 

Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements

 

Because

 

of

 

the

 

inherent

 

limitaƟons

 

of

 

internal

 

financial

 

controls

 

with

 

reference

 

to

 

standalone

 

financial

 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
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management override of controls, material misstatements

 
due

 
to

 
error

 
or

 
fraud

 
may

 
occur

 

and
 

not
 

be
 

detected.
 

Also,
 

projecƟons
 

of
 

any
 
evaluaƟon of

 
the

 
internal

 
financial

 
controls

 

with
 

reference
 

to
 

standalone financial
 

statements
 
to

 
future

 
periods

 
are

 
subject

 
to the

 
risk

 

that
 

the
 

internal
 

financial
 

control
 

with
 

reference
 
to

 
standalone

 
financial

 
statements

 
may

 

become
 

inadequate because
 

of
 

changes
 

in
 

condiƟons,
 
or

 
that

 
the

 
degree

 
of

 
compliance

 

with
 

the
 

policies
 

or
 

procedures
 

may deteriorate.
 

Opinion
 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements  were  operaƟng  effecƟvely  as  at   
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over  financial reporƟng  criteria  established  by  
the Company considering the essenƟal components  of  internal  control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng issued by 
the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

For K.C. Mehta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants

 

 
 Vishal P. Doshi

 Partner

 Firm’s RegistraƟon No. 106237W
 

Membership No. 101533
 UDIN: 21101533AAAABC9848

 Place: Vadodara 

 Date: May 18, 2021
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As per our report of even date aƩached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants AMIT MEHTA G.S.VENKATACHALAM

ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve DirectorVishal P. Doshi
DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898Partner

Membership No. 101533

Place : Mumbai
DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR

Date :  18th May, 2021
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(  in Lakhs )₹

ParƟculars Note 
No.

As at          
31st March,2021

As at          
31st March,2020

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4A                        2,243.88                       2,039.90 
  (b) Capital work-in-progress 4B                             15.39                          115.83 
  (c) Intangible assets 4C                                2.68                              1.25 
  (d) Financial Assets
      (i) Investments 5
         (A)  Investment in Subsidiary                                5.00                                   -   
         (B) Other Investments                           593.67                          206.73 
      (ii) Others 6                                2.96                            12.78 
  (e) Other non-current assets 7                           957.57                          125.68 
Total Non-Current Assets                        3,821.15                       2,502.17 

(2) Current Assets
   (a) Inventories 8                                1,254.17                                  700.22 
   (b) Financial Assets
        (i) Trade receivables 9                                   943.25                               1,248.75 
       (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10                                      45.71                                  374.75 
       (iii) Other bank balances 11                                3,261.16                               2,711.85 
       (iv) Others 12                                      11.78                                    10.96 
   (c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13                                      48.72                                           -   
   (d) Other current assets 14                                      95.56                                    84.65 
Total Current Assets                                5,660.35                               5,131.18 
TOTAL ASSETS 9,481.50

                              

7,633.35

                             

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
  (a) Equity Share capital 15                                   978.32                                  978.32 
  (b) Other Equity 16                                7,524.25                               5,539.65 
Total Equity                                8,502.57                               6,517.97 

LiabiliƟes
(1) Non-Current LiabiliƟes
  (a) Provisions 17                                      36.20                                    88.82 
  (b) Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes (Net) 18                                   358.68                                  418.49 
Total Non-Current LiabiliƟes                                   394.88                                  507.31 

(2) Current LiabiliƟes
  (a) Financial Liabil iƟes
      (i) Borrowings 19                                      30.24                                           -   
      (ii) Trade payables 20
         (A)  due to micro enterprises and  small enterprises 12.62

                                    
0.97

                                     

         (B) due to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 273.91                               285.19                              
      (iii) Other financial liabiliƟes 21                                   187.17                                  172.18 
   (b) Other current liabiliƟes 22                                      37.81                                  103.21 
   (c) Provisions 23                                      42.30                                    32.90 
   (d) Current Tax LiabiliƟes (Net) 24                                            -                                      13.62 
Total Current LiabiliƟes                                   584.05                                  608.07 
Total LiabiliƟes                                   978.93                               1,115.38 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES                                9,481.50                               7,633.35 

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021

Significant AccounƟng Policies and Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements  1-46
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ParƟculars Note 
No.

For the year ended      
31st March, 2021

For the year ended      
31st March, 2020

I Revenue from OperaƟons 25                            6,281.71                                     6,929.93 
II Other Income 26                               255.24                                        208.53 
III Total income (I+II) 6,536.95                          7,138.46                                   
IV EXPENSES 

Cost of materials consumed 27                            1,640.02                                     1,261.82 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 28                               113.21                                        176.74 
Employee benefits expense 29                               736.69                                        538.02 
Finance costs 30                                    7.54                                             7.82 
DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon expense 31                               178.55                                        206.45 
Other expenses 32

35
35
18

                           1,276.55                                     1,430.27 
Total expenses (IV) 3,952.56                          3,621.12                                   

V Profit before tax (III-IV)                            2,584.39                                     3,517.34 
VI Tax expense:

     (a)Current Tax                               695.55                                     1,126.35 
     (b)Tax relaƟng to Earlier Years (117.11)                            (13.18)                                        
     (c)Deferred Tax (97.42)                              5.59                                           

VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 2,103.37                          2,398.58                                   
VIII Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

A. Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss :
  (i) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on the Defined Benefit Plans                                  (2.33)                                         (25.95)
  (ii) Gain/(Loss) on measuring equity instruments at Fair Value carried 
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 334.04                             (32.91)                                        
  (iii) Income tax on above (37.63)                              7.56                                           
B. Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -                                             

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) 2,397.45                          2,347.28                                   
X Earnings per equity share 

Basic & Diluted 21.50                                24.52                                         

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2021

Significa nt AccounƟng Policie s and Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements  1-46

As per our report of even date aƩached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AMIT MEHTA G.S.VENKATACHALAM
ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director

Vishal P. Doshi DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898

Partner
Membership No. 101533

Place : Mumbai

DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR

Date :  18th May, 2021

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(  in Lakhs )₹
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ParƟculars  For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,584.39                            3,517.34                                  
Adjustments for:
DepreciaƟon / AmorƟsaƟon / Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment 311.75                               658.83                                     
Dividend Income (61.28)                                -                                            
Interest Income (189.87)                              (192.27)                                    
Finance Costs 7.54                                   7.82                                          
(Profit) / Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment Sold -                                     (7.47)                                         
Unrealised Loss on Foreign Exchange 0.76                                   0.19                                          
Provision for Doubƞul Receivables/Advances/Sundry balances wriƩen off 9.04

                                   
0.67

                                          
 

Provision for Non Moving Stock (1.10)                                  -                                            
Provision/Advances/Sundry Balances wriƩen back (0.04)                                  (4.04)                                         
OperaƟng Profit/(Loss) before changes in working capital 2,661.19                            3,981.07                                  
Adjustment for (Increase)/Decrease in OperaƟng Assets
Trade Receivables 297.89                               (484.53)                                    
Inventories (553.95)                              232.17                                     
Financial Assets and Other Assets (11.73)                                (31.11)                                      
Long-term Loans and Advances and Other Non-current Assets (120.07)                              24.44                                        
Adjustment for Increase/(Decrease) in OperaƟng LiabiliƟes
Trade Payables (0.36)                                  (115.52)                                    
Other Financial LiabiliƟes 14.99                                 5.20                                          
Other LiabiliƟes and provisions (108.62)                              104.19                                     
Cash flow from operaƟons aŌer changes in working capital 2,179.34                            3,715.91                                  
Income-tax paid (642.01)                              (1,120.49)                                 
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) OperaƟng AcƟviƟes 1,537.33                            2,595.42                                  

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 189.87

                               
192.27

                                     Dividend Received 61.28
                                 

-
                                            Purchase of  Equity Instruments (174.67)

                              
(214.32)

                                    Sale of Equity Instruments 100.27
                               

-
                                            Investment in Subsidiary (5.00)

                                  
-

                                            Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets including 
CWIP & Capital Advances (1,131.03)

                          
(301.66)

                                    Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment -
                                     

7.47
                                          Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents (538.46)

                              
(987.85)

                                    Net Cash Flow from/(used in) InvesƟng AcƟviƟes (1,497.74)
                          

(1,304.09)
                                 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Costs (7.54)

                                  
(7.82)

                                         Dividend Paid (Including Dividend DistribuƟon Tax) (391.33)
                              

(710.35)
                                    Increase / (Decrease) in Current Borrowings 30.24

                                 
(198.61)

                                    Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing AcƟviƟes (368.63)
                              

(916.78)
                                    

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (329.04)
                              

374.55
                                     Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period (see Note 1) 374.75

                               
0.20

                                          Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period (see Note 1) 45.71
                                 

374.75
                                     

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
(  in Lakhs )₹
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As per our report of even date aƩached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AMIT MEHTA G.S.VENKATACHALAM
Vishal P. Doshi ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director
Partner DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Membership No. 101533

Place : Mumbai
DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PA WAR

Date :  18th May, 2021
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(  in Lakhs )₹
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Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

Notes:
1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on hand 0.30

                              

0.56

                                   Balance with Banks 45.41

                            

374.19

                               
Cash and Cash equivalents 45.71

                            

374.75

                               
2

3 Figures for previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary for uniformity in presentation.

The above Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the
Indian Accounting Standard 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows".

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021



A. Equity Share Capital
Amount 

978.32                     
-                             

978.32                     
978.32                     

-                             
978.32                     

B. Other Equity

 General    Reserve  Retained     
Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April,2019 517.12                      3,368.13               17.46                       3,902.71                  
Movement during the year:
Profit for the period 2,398.58               2,398.58                  

 Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax (18.39)                   (18.39)                      
 Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity instrument carried 
through OCI (32.91)                     (32.91)                      
Payment of Dividend (Interim and Final) (586.99)                 (586.99)                    
Tax on Dividend (Interim and Final) (123.35)                 (123.35)                    
Balances as at 31st March, 2020 517.12                      5,037.98               (15.45)                     5,539.65                  
Movement during the year:
Profit for the period 2,103.37              2,103.37                  

 Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax (1.74)                   (1.74)                      
 Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity instrument carried through OCI, net of income tax 295.83                    295.83                     
Gain/(Loss) on sale of Investment (21.52)                     (21.52)                      
Payment of Dividend (Final) (365.67)                (365.67)                    
Tax on Dividend (Final) (25.66)                   (25.66)                      
Balances as at 31st March, 2021 517.12                      6,748.28              258.85                    7,524.25                  

ParƟculars

Reserves & Surplus  Equity 
Instruments 

carried through 
OCI 

 Total 

ParƟculars
Balance as at 1st April, 2019
AddiƟons/(ReducƟons)
Balance as at 31st March,2020
Balance as at 1st April, 2020
AddiƟons/(ReducƟons)
Balance as at 31st March,2021

                    
                         

 1-46

As per our report of even date aƩached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AMIT MEHTA G.S.VENKATACHALAM
Vishal P. Doshi ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director
Partner DIN: 00073907 DIN: 022058 98
Membership No. 101533

Place : Mumbai

DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR

Date :  18th May, 2021

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Significant AccounƟng Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements

(  in Lakhs )₹

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2021

(  in Lakhs )₹
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st  March 2021  
  

1.  Corporate InformaƟon  
The Standalone Financial Statements  of "Diamines and Chemicals Limited” (“the Company”) are for the year ended 
31st  March, 2021.  
 
The Company  is a domesƟc public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office 
at  Plot No. 13, New IPCL Rd, PCC Area, Vadodara, Gujarat. The Company’s shares are listed and traded on the 
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE). The company is engaged in business of manufacturing and markeƟng of organic 
chemicals compounds  and Power GeneraƟon.  
 

2.  Significant AccounƟng Policies  
i)  Statement of Compliance  

       These Standalone Financial Statements  have been prepared in accordance with Ind ian AccounƟng Standards 
(“Ind AS”)  noƟfied under the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards)  Rules, 2015 (as amended).  

 
 New Standards/ amendments and other changes effecƟve April 1,2020  
 Ministry of Corporate Affairs noƟfied amendments to the exisƟng standards vide noƟficaƟon G.S.R. 463(E) 

dated 24th July 2020. The effect of those amendments is not material.  
 

ii)  Basis of PreparaƟon  
  The Standalone Financial Statements  have been prepared on the historical cost convenƟon on accrual basis 

except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values / amorƟzed cost / net present value 
at the end of each reporƟng period, as explained in the accounƟng policies below.  

 
  Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideraƟon given in exchange for goods and 

services.  
 

  All assets and liabiliƟes have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal 
operaƟng cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has 
ascertained its operaƟng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classificaƟon of assets 
and liabiliƟes.  Accordingly, all assets and liabiliƟes have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s operaƟng cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS-1 ‘PresentaƟon of Standalone Financial 
Statements’ and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
  The Standalone Financial Statements  have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the 

Company’s presentaƟon and funcƟonal currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal 
lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.  
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     Fair Value Measurement  
    Fair value is the price  that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transacƟon between market parƟcipants at the measurement date under current market condiƟons.  
 

  The Company categorises  assets and liabiliƟes measured at fair value  into one of three levels depending on 
the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:  
(i)  Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in acƟve markets for idenƟcal assets or liabiliƟes  
(ii)  Level 2: inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within 

level 1 for the asset or liability.
 (iii)

 
Level 3:

 
inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability reflecƟng significant modificaƟons to 

observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market parƟcipants.
 

 For assets and liabiliƟes that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements
 

on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re -assessing 
categorisaƟon (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) 
at the end of each reporƟng period.

 
 iii)

 
Property, Plant and Equipment

 The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value of its Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) 
recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transiƟon date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying 
value as its deemed cost as on the transiƟon date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

 Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) comprises

 

of Tangible assets and Capital Work in progress. PPE are stated 
at cost, net of tax/duty credit availed, if any, aŌer reducing accumulated depreciaƟon and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any; unƟl the date of the Balance Sheet. The cost of PPE comprises of its purchase 
price or its construcƟon cost (net of applicable tax credit, if any), any cost directly aƩributable to bring the 
asset to the locaƟon and condiƟon necessary for it to be capable of operaƟng in the manner intended by 
the management.

 

Direct costs are capitalized unƟl the asset is ready for use and includes borrowing cost 
capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounƟng policy.

 
 

Capital work in progress includes the cost of PPE that are not yet ready for the intended use.

 
 

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise 
from the conƟnued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or reƟrement of an item of PPE 
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

 
 

As per internal technical evaluaƟon carried out by the management, the management of the company 
believes that its Property, Plant & Equipment are of such nature that separate components are not disƟnctly 
idenƟfiable having different useful life. And therefore, Component level accounƟng and reporƟng is not 
pracƟcally feasible for the company.

 
 

DepreciaƟon of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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DepreciaƟon is provided on the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment (other than Freehold land) less their 
esƟmated residual value, using the straight-line method over the useful life of PPE as stated in the Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on internal technical evaluaƟon.  The management believes that the 
useful lives as assessed best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.  
 Useful lives of following

 
class of PPE are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 

2013, which
 

are as under:-
 

 Asset DescripƟon         
  

Assets Useful life (in Years)
 Factory Building

 
30

 Building other than Factory Building
 

60
 R

 
& D Equipments

 
10

 Office Equipments

 
5

 Computers

 

3

 Server

 

10

 
Road

 

5

 
Furniture and Fixtures

 

10

 
Vehicle

 

8

 
 
 

Useful lives of following class of PPE are based on internal technical evaluaƟon carried out by the Company 
which is as under:-

 Asset DescripƟon         

  

Assets Useful life (in Years)

 

Plant & Machinery

 

20

 

Plant & Machinery (Tank)

 

25

 

Wind

 

Electric Generators

  

22

 
The esƟmated useful lives, residual values and depreciaƟon method are reviewed on an annual basis and if 
necessary, changes in esƟmates are

 

accounted for prospecƟvely.

 
 

DepreciaƟon on addiƟons/deleƟons to PPE during the year is provided for on a pro-rata basis with reference 
to the date of addiƟons/deleƟons.

 
 

DepreciaƟon on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other factors 
is provided for prospecƟvely over the remaining useful life.

 
 

Freehold land is not depreciated.

 

iv)

 

Intangible Assets

 

The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised as of April 
1, 2016 (transiƟon date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed 
cost as on the transiƟon date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.
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Intangible assets with finite useful life acquired separately, are

 

recognised only if it is probable that future 
economic benefits that are aƩributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost of assets can 
be measured reliably. The intangible assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated 
amorƟzaƟon and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

 
 

Intangible assets are amorƟzed over the esƟmated period of benefit, not exceeding ten years.

 
 

Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecogniƟon of an intangible asset are determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and

 
recognised in the Standalone 

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised .
 

Intangible assets are amorƟsed on Straight Line Method from the date they are available for use, over the 
useful lives of the assets as  esƟmated by the Management as under:  

Asset DescripƟon           Assets Useful life (in Years)  
SoŌware & Licenses  3  

v)  Impairment of non-financial assets  
The Company reviews at each reporƟng period whether there is any indicaƟon that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indicaƟon exists, the company esƟmates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such 
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable

 
amount of the cash generaƟng unit to which the asset 

belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The 
reducƟon is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss.

 If at the reporƟng period, there is an indicaƟon that there is change in the previously assessed impairment 
loss, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the lower of its recoverable amount 
and the carrying amount that is determined, net of depreciaƟon, had no impairment loss been recognized 
for the asset in prior years.”

 

 
 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in 
use, the esƟmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the Ɵme value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which 
the esƟmates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

 
 
 

An

 

assessment is made at the end of each reporƟng period to see if there are any indicaƟons that 
impairment losses recognised earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. The impairment loss is 
reversed, if there has been a change in the esƟmates which has the effect of increasing the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the previous impairment loss was recognised. If it is so, the carrying amount of 
the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that has

 

been 
determined, net of depreciaƟon, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. AŌer 
a reversal, the depreciaƟon charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying 
amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. Reversals of Impairment 
loss are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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vi) Investments in Subsidiary  
 
The Company records the Investment in equity instrument of Subsidiary at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Where an indicaƟon of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment 
is assessed and wriƩen down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investment in 
subsidiary, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the 
standalone statement of profit and loss.

 
 vii)

 
Inventories

 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value aŌer providing for impairment and other 
losses, where considered necessary. The basis of determining the value of each class of inventory is as 
follows:

 
Inventories

 

Cost Formulae

 
Raw Material, packing materials, fuels

 

and

 
stores and spares

 

At first–in–first out basis

 

(Net of eligible credit)

 Raw Material (Goods in transit)

 

At invoice price

 
Work-in-progress

 

At Cost, comprising of

 

raw material

 

cost, labour

 
cost

 

and appropriate proporƟon of manufacturing 
expenses and overheads based on stage of 
compleƟon.

 Finished Goods (Including in Transit)

 

At Cost, comprising of raw material cost, labour 
cost and appropriate proporƟon of manufacturing 
expenses and overheads.

 
Scrap

 

At lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value

 viii)

  

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 

Revenues from sale of goods including power units or services are recognised upon transfer of control of 
the goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideraƟon which the company 
expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

 
 

 

Revenue is measured at the transacƟon price of the consideraƟon received or receivable duly adjusted 
for variable consideraƟon &

 

customer’s right to return the goods and the same represents amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business. Revenue also excludes taxes 
collected from customers. Any retrospecƟve revision in prices is accounted for in the year of such revision.

 
 

Revenue is recognised at a point in Ɵme on accrual basis as per the terms of the contract, when there is 
no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideraƟon. When there is uncertainty as to 
measurement or ulƟmate collectability, revenue recogniƟon is postponed unƟl such uncertainty is 
resolved. 
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When sales discount and rebate arrangements result in variable consideraƟon, appropriate esƟmates are 
made and esƟmated variable consideraƟon is

 

recognised as a deducƟon from revenue at the point of sale 
(to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulaƟve revenue

 

recognised

 

will not be required).

 

The Company typically uses the expected value method for esƟmaƟng 
variable consideraƟon, reflecƟng that such contracts have similar characterisƟcs and a range of possible 
outcomes.

 

The contract asset or a contract liability is recognised when either party to a contract has performed, 
depending on the relaƟonship between the enƟty’s performance and the customer’s payment. When the 
company has a present

 

uncondiƟonal rights to consideraƟon, it is recognised separately as a receivable.

 

Interest on investments is booked on a Ɵme proporƟon basis taking into account the amounts

 

invested 
and the rate of interest.

 
 
 

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same

 

is established.

 
 

Export incenƟves (Duty Drawback Scheme benefits) are accrued in the year when the right to receive the 
same

 

is established in respect of exports made and are accounted to the extent there is no significant 
uncertainty about the measurability and ulƟmate realizaƟon/ uƟlizaƟon of such benefits/ duty credit.

 
 
 

Other income is recognised on accrual basis except when realizaƟon of such income is uncertain.

 
 

ix)

 

Foreign Exchange TransacƟons

 
 

TransacƟons in currencies other than the Company’s funcƟonal currency (foreign currencies) are 
recognised at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transacƟons. At the end of each 
reporƟng period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using closing 
exchange rate prevailing on the last day of the reporƟng period.

 
 

 

Non-monetary items which are

 

carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency

 

are 
reported using the exchange rate at the date of transacƟon.

 
 

   

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the period in which they arise.

 
 

x)

   

Leases

 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, has noƟfied 
Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the exisƟng lease standard,

 
Ind AS 17 leases, and other interpretaƟons. 

Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounƟng model for lessees. 
 

As a lessee
 

The Company’s lease assets primarily
 

consist of lease for land. The Company assesses whether a contract 
contains

 
a lease, at incepƟon of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 

right to control the use of an idenƟfied asset for a period of Ɵme in exchange for consideraƟon. To assess 
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an idenƟfied asset, the Company assesses 
whether:  
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-  the contract involves the use of an idenƟfied asset;  
-  the Company has substanƟally all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of 
the lease and  
-  the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.  
 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a lease liability for all lease 

arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short -term 
leases)

 
and low value leases and

 
corresponding Right-of-use Asset. For these short-term and low value 

leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operaƟng expense on a straight -line basis over 
the term of the lease.

 
 The Right-of-use Assets are iniƟally recognized at cost, which comprises the iniƟal amount of the lease 

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any 
iniƟal direct costs less any lease incenƟves. They are subsequently me asured at cost less accumulated 
depreciaƟon and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

 
 

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful 
life of the underlying

 

asset. 

 
 

The lease liability is iniƟally measured at amorƟzed cost at the present value of the future lease payments. 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease 
liabiliƟes are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company 
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a terminaƟon opƟon.

 
 

xi)

  

Employees Benefits

 
 

Post Employment Benefit

 
 

(i)

 

Defined ContribuƟon Plan

 
 

The company's contribuƟon to defined contribuƟon plan paid/payable for the year is charged to the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and loss.

 
 

(ii)

 

Defined Benefit Plan

 
 

The liabiliƟes towards defined benefit schemes are determined using the Projected Unit Credit method. 
Actuarial valuaƟon under the Projected Unit Credit method are carried out at the balance sheet date. 
Remeasurement gains/losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumpƟons are 
recognised in the period in which they occur in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). These gains/losses 
which are recognised in OCI are reflected in retained earnings and are not reclassified to Profit or L oss. Past 
service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise it is 
amorƟzed on straight-line basis over the remaining average period unƟl the benefits become vested.

 
 

The reƟrement benefit obligaƟon recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the 
defined benefit obligaƟon as reduced by plan assets.

 

The plan assets are measured at fair value.
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(iii)  Short Term Employee Benefits  
Short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are 
recognised undiscounted during the period employee renders services. These benefits include salaries, 
wages, bonus, performance incenƟves, etc.  

 
(iv)

 
Other Long Term Employee Benefits  Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months aŌer the end of the period 

in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at 
present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon at the balance sheet date, using Projected Unit Credit 
method.  

 xii)
 

Borrowing Costs
 Borrowing costs are interest and ancillary costs incurred in connecƟon with the arrangement of borrowings.

 General and specific borrowing costs aƩributable to acquisiƟon and construcƟon of qualifying assets is 
added to the cost of the assets upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an 
asset that necessarily takes a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for its intended use CapitalisaƟon of 
borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss during extended 
periods when acƟve development acƟvity on the qualifying assets is interrupted. All other borrowing costs 
are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

 
 

xiii)

 

Statement of Cash Flows

 
Standalone

 

Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before ta x is 
adjusted for the effects of transacƟons of a non -cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operaƟng cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with invesƟng or financing 
cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into operaƟng, invesƟng and financing acƟviƟes.

 
 

xiv)

 

Income Taxes

 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

 
 

(i)

 

Current Tax

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before 
tax’ as reported in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense 
that are taxable or deducƟble in other years and items that are never taxable or deducƟble. The 
Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substanƟvely 
enacted by the end of the reporƟng period.

 
 

(ii)

 

Deferred Tax

 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabiliƟes in the Standalone Financial Statements

 

and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computaƟon of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabiliƟes are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deducƟble temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deducƟble temporary 
differences can be uƟlized.

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporƟng period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax asset to be uƟlized.
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Deferred tax liabiliƟes and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
in which the liability is seƩled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substanƟvely enacted by the end of the reporƟng period.

 
 

The measurement of deferred tax liabiliƟes and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporƟng period, to recover or seƩle 
the carrying amount of its assets  and liabiliƟes.  

 
(iii)  Current and Deferred Tax Expense for the Year  

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, except 
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in 
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity respecƟvely.   

xv)
 
Financial Instruments

 Financial assets and Financial
 

liabiliƟes are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments.

 IniƟal RecogniƟon:

 Financial assets and Financial

 

liabiliƟes are iniƟally measured at fair value. TransacƟon costs that are directly 
aƩributable to the acquisiƟon or issue of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes (other than financial assets 
and financial liabiliƟes at Fair Value through Profi t or Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of 
the financial assets or financial liabiliƟes, as appropriate, on iniƟal recogniƟon. TransacƟon costs directly 
aƩributable to the acquisiƟon of financial assets or financial liabiliƟes at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised in the Standalone

 

Statement of Profit and Loss.

 ClassificaƟon and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

 
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amorƟsed cost, fair value throug h 
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of 
following:

 



 

the enƟty’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

 



 

the contractual cash flow characterisƟcs of the financial assets.

 
AmorƟsed Cost:

 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amorƟsed cost, if  both of the following condiƟons are 
met:

 



 

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objecƟve is to hold financial assets in order to 
collect contractual cash

 

flows, and

 



 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 

Fair Value through OCI:  
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTOCI, if both of the following condiƟons are met:  
  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objecƟve is achieved by both collecƟng 

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and  
  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  
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Impairment of financial assets:  
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recogniƟon of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:  
a) Financial Assets are measured at amorƟsed cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and bank balance   
Simplified Approach  
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recogniƟon of impairment loss allowance on Trade 
Receivables.  
 The applicaƟon of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit ri sk. Rather, 
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifeƟme ECLs at each reporƟng date, right from its iniƟal 
recogniƟon.

  General Approach
 For recogniƟon of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 

that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since iniƟal recogniƟon. If credit risk has 
not increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifeƟme ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since iniƟal recogniƟon, then the 
enƟty reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

 
 LifeƟme ECL are the expected credit losses resulƟng from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument. The 12-months ECL is a porƟon of the lifeƟme ECL which results from default 
events that are possible within 12 months aŌer the reporƟng date.

 
 
As a pracƟcal expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on 
porƞolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over 
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking esƟmates. At every reporƟng 
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking esƟmates are 
analysed. On that basis, the Company esƟmates provision on trade receivables at

 

the reporƟng date.

 
 
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense (or 
income) in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

  
  
 
 

 
DerecogniƟon of financial assets:

 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right

 

to

 

receive

 

the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substanƟally all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substanƟally all the risks and 
rewards of ownership and conƟnues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained 

 

 
Fair Value through Profit or Loss:  
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amorƟsed cost or at 
FVTOCI.  
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their enƟrety at either amorƟsed cost or fair 
value, depending on the classificaƟon of the financial assets.  
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On derecogniƟon of a financial asset other than in its enƟrety (e.g. when the Company retains an opƟon to 
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial 
asset between the part it conƟnues to recognise under conƟnuing involvement, and the part it no longer 
recognises on the basis of the relaƟve fair values of those parts on the date  of the transfer. The difference 

 

between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the 
consideraƟon received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulaƟve gain or loss allocated to it that 
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would 
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.  A cumulaƟve gain or loss 
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that conƟnues to 
be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relaƟve fair values of those parts.

 

ClassificaƟon and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabiliƟes:  
Financial liabiliƟes are classified as either financial liabiliƟes at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabiliƟes’.  

Financial LiabiliƟes at FVTPL:  
Financial liabiliƟes are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated 
upon iniƟal recogniƟon as FVTPL.  
 

Gains or Losses on liabiliƟes held for trading are recognised in the Standalone  Statement of Profit and Loss.  

Other Financial LiabiliƟes  at amorƟsed cost:  
Other financial liabiliƟes (including borrowings and trade and other payables)  are subsequently measured 
at amorƟsed cost using the effecƟve interest method.  
The effecƟve interest method is a method of calculaƟng the amorƟsed cost of a financial liability and of 
allocaƟng interest expense over the relevant period. The effecƟv e interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts esƟmated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effecƟve interest rate, transacƟon costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount 
on iniƟal recogniƟon.  
Financial liabiliƟes and equity instruments:  
  ClassificaƟon as debt or equity:  

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabiliƟes   or as 
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definiƟons of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument.  

On derecogniƟon of a financial asset in its enƟrety,  the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the sum of the consideraƟon received and receivable and the cumulaƟve gain or loss that had been 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if  such 
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.  

 interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains 
substanƟally all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company conƟnues 
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Offseƫng:  
Financial assets and financial liabiliƟes are offset and the net amount is reported in the Standalone  Balance 
Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intenƟon 
to seƩle on a net basis or realise the asset and seƩle the liability simultaneously.  

 
xvi)  DerivaƟve Financial Instruments  

The Company holds derivaƟve financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage 
its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risks.  

 
DerivaƟves are iniƟally recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into. Subsequent to 
iniƟal recogniƟon, these contracts are measured at fair value at the end of each reporƟng period and 
changes are recognised in Standalone  Statement of Profit and Loss.  

 
xvii)  Segment ReporƟng  

The Company idenƟfies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and  
the internal organisaƟon and management structure. The operaƟng segments are the segments for which 
separate financial informaƟon is available and for which operaƟng profit / loss amounts are evaluated 
regularly by the Chief OperaƟng Decision Mak ing Body  (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and in 
assessing performance.  

 
The accounƟng policies adopted  for segment reporƟng are in line with the accounƟng policies of the 
Company.  

 
Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabiliƟes have been idenƟfied to 
segments on the basis of  their relaƟonship to the operaƟng acƟviƟes of the segment.  

 
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabiliƟes which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to 
segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue/expenses/ assets/liabiliƟes” 
respecƟvely.  

 

  Equity instruments:  
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an enƟty aŌer 
deducƟng all of its liabiliƟes.  
Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received.  

DerecogniƟon of financial liabiliƟes:  
The Company derecognises a  financial liability when its contractual obligaƟons are discharg ed or cancelled 
or expired. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash 
flows under the modified terms are substanƟally different.  
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xx)  Research and Development  

Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the year in which it is incurred. Capital expenditure on research and development is considered as an 
addiƟon to Property, Plant & Equipment/Intangible Assets.  

   
xxi)  Provisions, ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and ConƟngent Assets  

  Provisions  
  Provisions are recognised when,  based on Company’s present obligaƟon (legal or construcƟve) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required  to seƩle the obligaƟon and a reliable esƟmate 
can be made of the amount of the obligaƟon.  

 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best esƟmate of the consideraƟon required to seƩle the present 
obligaƟon at the end of the reporƟng period, taking into account the risks and uncertainƟes surrounding 
the obligaƟon. When a provision is measured using the cash flows esƟmated to seƩle the present obligaƟon, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the Ɵme  value of money is 
material).  

 
ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and Assets  
ConƟngent liabiliƟes are disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements  by way of notes to accounts, 
unless possibility of an ouƞlow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.  

 
 ConƟngent assets are disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements  by way of notes to accounts when 

an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  
 

xviii)  Earnings Per Share  
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) aŌer tax with  the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the  profit / (loss) aŌer tax as  adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of 
any aƩributable taxes) relaƟng to the diluƟve potenƟal equity shares, with  the aggregate of weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average 
number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all  diluƟve potenƟal equity 
shares.  

 
xix)  Dividend  

Provision is made in the accounts for the amount of  any final dividend declared on the date of its approval 
by the shareholders. Interim dividends, if any, are recorded as a liability on the date of its declaraƟon by the 
company’s board of directors.  
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(ii)  Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible Assets  

Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets are depreciated/amorƟsed over their esƟmated useful 
lives, aŌer taking into account esƟmated residual value. The useful lives and residual values are based 
on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anƟcipated 
technological changes or commercial obsolescence. Management reviews the esƟmated useful lives and 
residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciaƟon/amorƟsaƟon to 
be recorded during any reporƟng period. The depreciaƟon/amorƟsaion for future periods is revised, if 
there are significant changes from previous esƟmates and accordingly, the unamorƟsed/depreciable 
amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.  

 
(iii)  ConƟngent LiabiliƟes  

In the normal course of business, ConƟngent LiabiliƟes may arise from liƟgaƟon and other claims against 
the Company. PotenƟal liabiliƟes that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are very difficult 
to quanƟfy reliably are treated as conƟngent liabiliƟes. Such liabiliƟes are disclosed in the Notes but are 
not recognised. PotenƟal liabiliƟes that are remote are neither recognised nor disclosed as conƟngent 
liability. The management decides whether the maƩers need  to be classified as 'remote', 'possible' or 
'probable' based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences etc.  

 
3.  CriƟcal  AccounƟng  Judgments, EsƟmates, AssumpƟons and Key Sources of EsƟmaƟon Uncertainty  

The preparaƟon of the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements  requires management to make 
judgements, esƟmates and assumpƟons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabiliƟes, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of conƟngent liabiliƟes at the date of the 
Standalone Financial Statements. EsƟmates and assumpƟons are conƟnuously evaluated and are based on 
management’s experience and other factors, including expectaƟons of future events that are believed  to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumpƟons and esƟmates could result in 
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabiliƟes affected in future 
periods.  

 
Key esƟmates, assumpƟons and judgements  
In parƟcular, the Company has idenƟfied the following areas where significant judgements, esƟmates and 
assumpƟons are required. Further informaƟon on each of these areas and how they impact the various 
accounƟng policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the Standalone Financial Statements. 
Changes in esƟmates are accounted for prospecƟvely.   
 

(i)  Income taxes  
 Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes , including amount 

expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax posiƟons as also to determine the amount of deferred 
tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely Ɵming and the level of future taxable profits.  
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(viii)

 

Revenue RecogniƟon:

 

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer products and power units to the

 

customers. The Company assesses the products and power units promised in a contract and idenƟfies 
disƟnct performance obligaƟons , if any,

 

in the contract. IdenƟficaƟon of disƟnct performance obligaƟon 
involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit 
independently from such deliverables. Judgement is also required to determine the transacƟon pr ice for 
the contract. The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligaƟon is 
saƟsfied at a point in Ɵme or over Ɵme. The Company considers indicators such as to who controls the 
asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and 
alternate use of such product, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of 
delivery by the customer, etc. The judgment is also exercised in determining the variable consideraƟon, 
if any, involved in transacƟon price and also in esƟmaƟng the impact of customer’s right to return the 
goods, based on prior experience. The company has exercised judgments and concluded that it has only 
one performance obligaƟon from each of

 

its contract with customers and it is being saƟsfied at a point 
in Ɵme.

 

 
(iv)  EvaluaƟon of Indicators for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment  

The evaluaƟon of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external 
factors (significant decline  in  asset’s value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) 
and internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an asset,  poor economic performance of the 
idle assets  etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable amount of the Property, Plant and 
Equipment  and such assessment is based on esƟmates, future plans as envisaged by Company.  

 (v)
 

Actuarial ValuaƟon:
 The determinaƟon of Company’s liability towards defined benefit obligaƟon to employees is made 

through independent actuarial valuaƟon including determinaƟon of amounts to be recognised in the 
income statement and in other comprehensive income. Such valuaƟon depends

 
upon assumpƟons 

determined aŌer taking into account inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon and other relevant factors such as 
supply and demand factors in the employment market.

 
   (vi)

 

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

 The expected credit loss is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical 
experience. The receivables are assessed on an individual basis assessed for impairment collecƟvely, 
depending on their significance. Moreover, trade receiva bles are wriƩen off on a case-to-case basis if 
deemed not to be collectable on the assessment of the underlying facts and circumstances.

 
 

(vii)

 

Provisions 

 
Provisions and liabiliƟes are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there wil l be a 
future ouƞlow

 

of funds resulƟng from past operaƟons or events and the amount of cash ouƞlow can be 
reliably esƟmated. The Ɵming of recogniƟon and quanƟficaƟon of the liability requires the applicaƟon of 
judgement to exisƟng facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of 
provisions and liabiliƟes are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and 
circumstances.
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4B. Capital work-in-progress

Opening Balance 115.83

                             

78.77

 

Add : AddiƟon during the year 417.06

                             

292.13

                       

 Less : Transferred during the year                              517.50 255.07 
Total 15.39

                               

115.83

                       

4C. Intangible assets

Gross Block
     As at 31st March, 2019 1.84

                                
1.84

                           

     AddiƟons -
                                   

-
                             

     DeducƟons/Adjustments -                                   -                             
     As at 31st March, 2020 1.84                                1.84                           
     AddiƟons 2.43                                2.43                           
     DeducƟons/Adjustments -                                  -                             
     As at 31st March,2021 4.27

                                
4.27

                           Accumulated AmorƟsaƟon
     As at 31st March, 2019 -

                                   

-

                             
      Charge for the year 0.59

                                

0.59

                           
      DeducƟons/Adjustments -

                             
     As at 31st March, 2020 0.59

                                

0.59

                           

      Charge for the year 1.01

                                

1.01

                           

      DeducƟons/Adjustments 
     As at 31st March,2021 1.59

                                
1.59

                                Net Block 
     Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1.25

                                

1.25

                           

     Balance as at 31st March, 2021 2.68

                                

2.68

                           

 ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2021

ParƟculars  SoŌware & Licenses  Total 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

-

- -

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

1. The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2016 
Note :

(transiƟon date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the 
transiƟon date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.



(  in Lakhs )₹5. Investments
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

₹
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Investment in Subsidiary:-

6. Other Financial Assets (non-current)

 (Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated) 
 Security Deposits                                  2.96                             1.93 
Lien-marked Margin Money Deposits against Bank Guarantees -

                                   

10.85

                          
Total 2.96

                                 

12.78

                          7. Other Non-current Assets

 (Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated) 
 Capital advances                                18.33                           16.19 
 Capital Advance - Advance for ROU Asset*                              712.14                                 -   
Prepaid Expenses 13.48

                               

2.58

                            

Balances with Government AuthoriƟes
 -CST 0.50

                                 

2.58

                            

 -Income Tax (Refund Receivable) 129.20

                             

20.41

                          

 -Income Tax paid under protest 83.92

                               

83.92

                          
 

Total 957.57

                             

125.68

                       
8. Inventories*

Raw Materials 885.79

                             

172.63

                       

Raw Materials - Goods in transit 18.14

                               

66.42

                          

Work in Progress 86.93

                               

196.19

                       

Finished goods 227.26

                             

224.64

                       

Finished goods - Goods in transit 1.05 7.62
Packing materials 5.42 4.91
Fuel 11.31 11.11
Stores and Spares 18.27 16.70

Total 1,254.17 700.22

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

* ValuaƟon of inventories are done as per point no. (vii) of significant accounƟng policies (Note-2).

As at 
31st March, 2020

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars 

Investment in subsidiary are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indicaƟon of impairment exist, 
the carrying amount of investment is assessed and wriƩen down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of 
investments in subsidiary, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

For HypothecaƟon details refer Note-19.

* Sale cerƟficate of Land has been received from official liquidator - Exclusive Fibers Limited (in liquidaƟon) under

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

₹
 IBC. The possession is with official liquidator and the same will be passed on to the company in F.Y. 2021-22, 
thereby enabling the company to establish right of control over Land. This includes    2.94 Lakhs Security Deposit paid for the same.



9. Trade Receivables

Unsecured, Considered good
Others 943.25

                         
1,248.75

                Doubƞul Receivables 7.61

                              
-

                          Less:- Allowance for Doubƞul Receivables 7.61

                              

-

                          
Total 943.25

                             

1,248.75

                    Movement in allowance for Doubƞul Debts

ParƟculars
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Balance at the beginning of the year -

                                   

-

                              

Add:- Allowance loss Recognised 7.61

                                 

-

                              

Less:- Reversed during the year -

                                   

-

                              

Less:- Amount WriƩen off as Bed Debts -

                                   

-

                              

Balance at the End of the year 7.61

                                 

-

                              

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Balances with Banks
  In current account 45.41

                            

119.39

                     

  In cash credit account -

                                   

254.80

                     

Cash on hand 0.30

                                 

0.56

                            

Total 45.71

                               

374.75

                       

11. Other Bank Balances 

 Other bank deposits with original maturity of more than
   3 months up to 12 months                           3,111.25                     2,575.00 

 Accrued Interest on FD                              107.10                        100.17 
Earmarked bank balances* 42.81

                               

36.68

                          

Total 3,261.16

                         

2,711.85

                    

 ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2020

 *These balances represents unclaimed dividend account which is earmarked for payment of  dividend and
 cannot be used for any other purpose. 

As at 
31st March, 2020

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2020

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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12.  Financial Assets : Others

 Wind Farm Income Receivable 4.72                                 2.84                           
 Insurance Receivable 3.97                                 -                             
  Advances to Related Party
       - To Subsidiary Company 3.09                                 -                             
 Forward Contract Asset -                                  8.12                           

Total 11.78                              10.96                         

13. Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Tax (Net of provisions) 48.72                              -                             
Total 48.72                              -                             

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars 
As at 

31st March, 2020

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

14. Other Current Assets

 Unsecured, considered good 
Balances with Government AuthoriƟes 5.86                                 34.76                         
Prepaid Expenses 61.12                              27.82                         
Advances to vendors 18.22                              21.75                         
Employee Advance 0.11                                 0.16                           
Others 10.25                              0.16                           

Total 95.56                              84.65                         

15. Equity Share Capital

Authorised
17,550,000 (P.Y. 17,550,000) Equity shares of    10/- each 1,755.00                        1,755.00                   

Total 1,755.00                        1,755.00                   
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
9,783,240 (P.Y. 9,783,240) Equity Shares of    10/- each 978.32                           978.32                      

Total 978.32                           978.32                      

ParƟculars No. of Shares 
Share Capital 

As at 1st April, 2019 9,783,240                      978.32                      
AddiƟons/(ReducƟons) -                                  -                             
As at 31st March,2020 9,783,240                      978.32                      
As at 1st April,2020 9,783,240                      978.32                      
AddiƟons/(ReducƟons) -                                  -                             
As at 31st March, 2021 9,783,240                      978.32                      

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 

As at 
31st March, 2020

 ReconciliaƟon of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporƟng period is as under: 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

₹

₹

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021



(iii) The Board of Directors in their meeƟng held on 18th May, 2021 have recommended a final dividend of        5 per Equity Share
(previous year   4 per equity share) to be approved by the shareholders in the ensuing general meeƟng.On approval, this will result 
in an ouƞlow of      (Previous year   391.33 Lakhs)489.16 Lakhs

(  in Lakhs )₹Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent share in Company:

No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
Amit M. Mehta 1,237,726

                      

12.65% 1,237,726

         

12.65%
Cherry A Mehta 1,053,278

                      

10.77% 1,053,278

         

10.77%
Finorga India Pvt Ltd 492,067

                         

5.03% 492,067

            

5.03%
Perfo Chem (India) Pvt Ltd 962,179

                         

9.83% 962,179

            

9.83%

Right, Preferences and restricƟons aƩached to Shares

16. Other Equity

General Reserve 517.12

                           

517.12

                      

Retained Earnings 6,748.28

                        

5,037.98

                   

 Equity instruments carried through other comprehensive income 
(OCI) 258.85

                           

(15.45)

                       

Total 7,524.25

                        

5,539.65

                   

ParƟculars relaƟng to Other Equity

General Reserve
   Balance at the beginning of the year 517.12

                           
517.12

                      

   AddiƟons/DeducƟons during the year 
   Balance at the end of the year 517.12

                           
517.12

                      

Retained Earnings 
   Balance at the beginning of the year 5,037.98

                        
3,368.13

                   

   Add: Net Profit for the year 2,103.37
                        

2,398.58
                   

    Add: Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement of 
defined benefit obligaƟon, net of income tax  (1.74)

                            
(18.39)

                       

    Less: Payments of dividends (Interim and Final) (365.67)                          (586.99)                     

    Less: Tax on Dividends  (Interim and Final) (25.66)                            (123.35)                     

   Balance at the end of the year 6,748.28                        5,037.98                   
 Equity instruments carried through other comprehensive income 
(OCI) 
   Balance at the beginning of the year (15.45)                            17.46                         

     Fair value gain/(loss) on investments in equity instruments  295.83

                           

(32.91)

                       
   Balance at the end of the year 258.85                           (15.45)                       

Total 7524.25                        5,539.65                   

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

As at 
31st March, 2020

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 

Name of the Shareholder

 

As at 31st March, 2021

 

As at 31st March, 2020

(I) The Company has only one class of shares i.e. equity shares having par value of    10 each. Each holder of equity shares is 
     enƟtled to  one vote per share. 
(ii) In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟtled to receive any of the 

   remaining assets of the Company,   aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts. The distribuƟon will be in proporƟon
 to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

₹
₹

₹

₹ ₹

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

     Add:- Gain/(Loss) on sale of Investment (Net of Taxes) (21.52)
                            

-
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DescripƟon of the nature and purpose of Other Equity

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned Ɵll date and is net of amount
transferred to other reserves such as general reserves etc.& amount distributed as dividends and related dividend
distribuƟon taxes.

General Reserve : The General Reserve comprises of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriaƟon
purposes. The reserve can be distributed/uƟlised by the Company in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013.

17. Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits
  Gratuity -                                   58.27                         
   Compensated absences 36.20                              30.55                         

Total 36.20                              88.82                         

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 
As at 

31st March, 2020

(  in Lakhs )₹

Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income : This represents cumulaƟve gains / (losses) 
arising on the measurement of equity instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

18. Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes (Net)

Deferred  tax LiabiliƟes 392.65 453.72
Less: Deferred tax Assets (33.97)

                

(35.23)

                 

Total 358.68

                

418.49

                 

2020-21
Major Components and ReconciliaƟon of Deferred Tax (Assets)/LiabiliƟes

ParƟculars
Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Profit o r Loss

Recognised in 
other  

Comprehensive 
Income

Closing 
Balance

  Property, plan t and equipmen t & intangible assets                 453.72                  (99.28)                             -   354.44

         

   Equity Instruments through FVTOCI                         -                              -                        38.21 38.21

           

  Provision for Providen t Fund liability                   (2.91)                      0.40                             -   (2.52)

            

   Expenses c laimed for tax purpose on payment basis                 (31.12)                      2.93                       (0.59) (28.78)
          

  Provision for Doubƞul debts                         -                        (1.92)                             -   (1.92)
            

  Provision for slow moving and obsolete items                   (1.21)                      0.44                             -   (0.76)             
Total                 418.49                  (97.42)                      37.63           358.68 

2019-20
Major Components and ReconciliaƟon of Deferred Tax (Assets)/LiabiliƟes

ParƟculars
Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Profit o r Loss

Recognised in 
other  

Comprehensive 
Income

Closing 
Balance

  Property, plan t and equipmen t & intangible assets                 449.44                      4.28                             -   453.72

         

  Provision for Providen t Fund liability                   (2.91)                           -                               -   (2.91)

            

  Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis                 (24.73)                      1.18                       (7.56) (31.12)

          

  Provision for slow moving and obsolete items                   (1.21)                           -                               -   (1.21)

            

  Provision for Cenvat Receivab le                   (0.14)                      0.14 -

                

Total                 420.45                      5.59                       (7.56)           418.49 

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021
 As at 

31st March, 2020

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹



                                             

(  in Lakhs )₹

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises* 12.62                              0.97                           
Others 273.91                            285.19                       

Total 286.53                            286.16                       

21. Other Financial LiabiliƟes

Forward Contract Liability 1.24                                -                             
Unclaimed dividends 42.81                              36.68                         
Payable for Capital Goods 0.97                                -                             
Employee Bonus / ExgraƟa Payable 29.76                              30.62                         
Salary Payable 38.68                              33.30                         
Outstanding LiabiliƟes Expenses 15.47                              19.86                         
Commission Payable to Directors 51.90                              27.62                         
Provision for QuanƟty Discount -                                  18.00                         
Other Payables 6.34                                6.10                           

Total 187.17                           172.18                      

22. Other Current LiabiliƟes

Liability for Statutory Payments 29.62                              97.62                         
Contract Liability - Advance from Customers 8.19                                5.59                           

Total 37.81                              103.21                      

 ParƟculars 
As at 

31st March, 2020

 ParƟculars 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

As at 
31st March, 2020

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

Payment made to suppliers beyond the due date during the year was Nil (P.Y.  Nil).No interest during the
year has been paid to Micro and Small Enterprises as there were no delayed payments. Further, interest
accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end is     (P.Y.   Nil).Nil

₹ ₹

₹ ₹

20. Trade Payables

*The Company has availed fund based working capital faciliƟes viz., Cash Credit Facility and non-fund based working 
faciliƟes from Bankers viz., Bank Guarantees and LeƩer of Credits, which are secured by hypothecaƟ on charge on 
Inventories, book debts and all other current assets of the company, as primary security and registered mortgage 
charge over land & building and hypothecaƟon charge on plant & machinery as collateral security.

Micro, Small and Medium enterprises have been idenƟfied by the Company on the basis of the informaƟon
available. Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than the
sƟpulated period and other disclosures as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(hereinaŌer referred to as "the Act") are given below :

19.Borrowings

Loan Repayable on Demand
(i) Secured
  - Cash Credit from bank* 30.24

                            
-

                             

Total 30.24
                              

-
                             

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 

(  in  Lakhs )₹

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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26. Other Income

Interest on Fixed and Other Deposits 189.87                             161.53                             
Interest on IT Refund -                                    30.74                               
Insurance Income 3.97                                  -                                   
Sales Tax Refund -                                    3.97                                 

Dividend Income 61.28                                -                                   

Exchange gains/(losses) on foreign currency 0.08                                  0.78                                 

Profit/loss on Sale of Asset -                                    7.47                                 

Balances / Provisions wriƩen back (Net) 0.04                                  4.04                                 

Total 255.24                             208.53                             

 ParƟculars  For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

25. Revenue From OperaƟons

Sale of products 
 Manufactured Goods 6,209.64                          6,772.02                             
 Sale of Power generaƟon from windmill 59.61                                145.22                                

Other OperaƟng Revenue
  Sale of Scrap 10.60                                12.69                                  
  Duty Drawback Scheme benefits 1.86                                  -                                       

Total 6,281.71                          6,929.93                             

 ParƟculars For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

23. Pro visions

Provision for employee benefits 
   Gratuity 6.34                                13.22                         

    Compensated absences 22.92                              5.54                           
Others                                                                
  Others 13.04                              14.14                         

Total 42.30                              32.90                         

24. Current Tax LiabiliƟes (Net)

Provision for Tax(Net of Advance Tax) -                                   13.62                         
Total -                                  13.62                         

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021



 

 

                                                    

28. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-Progress

 Finished Goods 
 Closing Stock                            228.31                            232.26 
 Less: Opening Stock                            232.26                            359.55 

                              (3.95)                          (127.29)
 Work in Progress 

 Closing Stock                               86.93                            196.19 
 Less: Opening Stock                            196.19                            245.64 

                          (109.26)                            (49.45)
Total                            113.21                            176.74 

29. Employee Benefits Expense

 Salaries, Wages and Bonus * 628.17

                             

436.96

                             

 ContribuƟon to Provident and Other Funds 60.89

                                

53.08

                               

 Staff Welfare Expenses 47.63

                                

47.98

                               

Total 736.69

                             

538.02

                             

 *  Including Commission to Executive Chairman & Director 

30. Finance Costs

 Interest on 
  Cash Credit FaciliƟes 0.06

                                  

0.26

                                 

   Others 0.34

                                  

1.02

                                 

 Other Borrowing Costs 
  Bank Charges 4.07

                                  

6.54

                                 

  Processing Charges 3.07

                                  
-

                                   

Total 7.54
                                  

7.82
                                 

31. DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon Expenses

DepreciaƟon on PPE (Including Right-of-use Assets) 177.54                             205.87                             
AmorƟsaƟon of Intangible Assets 1.01                                  0.59                                 

Total 178.55 206.45

 ParƟculars  For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

 ParƟculars 
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

 ParƟculars  For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

 ParƟculars 
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

27. Cost of materials consumed

Raw Materials Consumed :
  Opening Stock 239.05                             287.44                             
  Add: Purchases 2,165.92                          1,068.27                         
  Less: Closing Stock 903.93                             239.05                             

 1,501.04                          1,116.66                         
Packing Materials : 
  Opening Stock 4.91

                                  
6.70

                                   Add: Purchases 139.49
                             

143.37
                               Less: Closing Stock 5.42

                                  
4.91

                                 138.98
                             

145.16
                             Total 1,640.02

                          
1,261.82

                         

 ParƟculars 
 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

(  in Lakhs )₹
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2021
32. Other Expenses

ConsumpƟon of stores and spare parts 80.53                                69.06                                   

Power and Fuel 364.67                              409.38                                 

Rent 9.87
                                  

9.54
                                     

Repair and Maintenance
    -Buildings 43.32

                                
28.61

                                   

    -Machinery 84.54
                                

86.71
                                   

    -Others 8.84
                                  

6.83
                                     

Insurance 30.18
                                

23.44
                                   

Rates and Taxes 4.21
                                  

4.94
                                     

Legal and Professional Fees
    -R&D Consultancy fees 55.15

                                

8.25

                                     

    -Others 100.45

                              

45.77

                                   

Payment to Auditors (Refer note (i) below) 11.21

                                

9.13

                                     

Director's Siƫng fees 9.92

                                  

15.03

                                   

Commission to Non ExecuƟve Directors 7.59

                                  

20.57

                                   

PrinƟng and StaƟonery 2.66

                                  

4.12

                                     

Security Charges 25.97

                                

20.62

                                   

Research and Development Expenses 1.32

                                  

2.30

                                     

Travelling and Motor Car Expenses 9.14

                                  

27.32

                                   

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note (ii) below) 42.06

                                

22.25

                                   

Factory Expenses 15.44

                                

12.18

                                   

Material Handling 54.64

                                

48.62

                                   

Selling Expenses 56.91

                                

49.18

                                   

House Keeping Expenses 12.07

                                

11.68

                                   

Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment 133.20

                              

452.38

                                 

Loss on Deposit/Advances 50.00

                                

-

                                       

DonaƟon Exp 25.00

                                

4.50

                                     

Miscellaneous Expenses* 37.67

                                

37.86

                                   

Total 1,276.55

                          

1,430.27

                             

(i) Payment to Auditors (Fees excluding tax):

ParƟculars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

(a) Statutory Auditors

                                       

      - As Auditor 7.70

                                  

6.25

                                     

      - For TaxaƟon Service 1.90

                                  

1.60

                                     

      - CerƟficaƟon 1.16

                                  

0.92

                                     

      - Reimbursement of Expenses -

                                    

0.36

                                     

(b) Cost Auditors
      - As Auditor 0.45

                                  

-

                                       

Total 11.21 9.13

* None of the item individually accounts for more than    10,00,000 or 1% of revenue whichever is higher.

 ParƟculars  For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

₹



(b) Amount spent in cash during the year on:

ParƟculars In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
(i)ConstrucƟon/acquisiƟon of any Asset -                        -                               -              

(ii)On purposes other than above 42.06 -                               42.06          
(22.25)                   -                               (22.25)         

(ii) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) acƟviƟes:
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: 42.06 Lakhs (Previous Year: 22.20 Lakhs)

 

2. The disaggregaƟon of revenues is as under:

Nature For the year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenues from sale of goods 6,209.64              6,772.02                     
Revenues from sale of power units 59.61                    145.22                         
Other OperaƟng Revenue
  -Revenues from sale of scrap 10.60                    12.69                           
  -Duty Drawback Scheme benefits 1.86                      -                               

Total 6,281.71              6,929.93                     

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Sale of goods 6,055.96              6,772.02                     153.68        -                          
Sale of power units 59.61                    145.22                         -              -                          
Other OperaƟng Revenue 12.46                    12.69                           -              -                          

Total 6,128.03              6,929.93                     153.68        -                          

The revenues are further disaggregated into revenues from domesƟc as well as export market as follows:

Nature
 DomesƟc Exports

1. The Company derives revenues from sale of goods, power units and scrap from its contracts with customers.
  The revenues have been disclosed in Note No.25 “Revenue from OperaƟons”

Amounts in bracket indicate previous year figures.

 34. Disclosures as per Ind AS- 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers": 

The Company has in-House R&D unit at its registered office and is registered with the Department  of ScienƟfic
 & Industrial Research (DSIR), Ministry of Science & & Technology, New Delhi.

33.Disclosure of the aggregate amount of research and development expenditure recognised as an expense
 during the period - Research and Development (R&D) : 

(  in Lakhs )₹

₹ ₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

ParƟculars          Receivables         Contract Assets     Contract 
LiabiliƟes

Balance as at the beginning of the year                1,248.75 -                               5.59            

AddiƟons / (Adjustments)                  (305.50)                                   -                2.60 
Balance as at the end of the year                   943.25 -                               8.19            

3.  The movement in Company’s receivables, contract assets and contract liabiliƟes are as under:

4.The revenue from contracts with customers for the year includes variable consideraƟon (volume discounts) of   6.40 
lakhs (P.Y.   102.20 lakhs), which has been deducted from the transacƟon price. The company uses expected value
method in measuring the variable consideraƟon. There were no constraints in esƟmaƟng variable consideraƟon.

5. The Company has applied pracƟcal expedient referred to in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and accordingly, has not
disclosed informaƟon related to remaining performance obligaƟons. No consideraƟon from contracts with customers 

The revenue of 5.59 lakhs (P.Y.    29.51 lakhs) has been recognised from the carried forward contract liabiliƟes balance 

(  in Lakhs )₹

₹ ₹

₹
₹

is excluded from the remaining performance obligaƟons.

at the beginning of the year.

35. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 on "Income Taxes"

Current Tax 695.55                           1,126.35                              
Earlier Year                           (117.11)                                    (13.18)
Deferred Tax (97.42)                            5.59                                      

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 481.02                           1,118.76                              

Income tax relaƟng to Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement of Defined Benefits Plans                                  (0.59)                                      (7.56)
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income                               38.21                                            -   
Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 37.63                             (7.56)                                     

A. Components of Tax Expenses/(Income)

a. Profit or Loss SecƟon
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

b. Other Comprehensive Income SecƟon For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹



 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Profits available to equity shareholders (   in Lakhs) 2,103.37
                          

2,398.58
                           

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 9,783,240
                        

9,783,240
                        

Earnings Per Share of    10 each
- Basic & Diluted (in   ) 21.50

                                
24.52

                                

36. In accordance with Ind AS - 33, "Earnings Per Share", the Basic and Diluted EPS have been calculated as
under:                                                                                                                       

ParƟculars

(  in Lakhs )₹

₹

₹
₹

Profit before Tax 2,584.39                        3,517.34                              
Corporate Tax rate as per Income Tax Act, 1961 25.17% 29.12%
Tax on AccounƟng Profit 650.44                           1,024.25                              
Effect of income exempt from tax (15.42)                            -                                        
Effect of expenses/provisions not deducƟble in determining taxable profit 29.53                             143.52                                 
Effect of concessions (2.87)                              (38.64)                                  
Effect of change in tax rate due to switch to new tax regime (56.79)                            -                                        
Others (6.75)                              2.82                                      
Tax adjustment of earlier years (117.11)                          (13.18)                                  

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss                             481.02                                1,118.76 
Note:-

During the year the Income Tax expense and deferred tax expense for the year ended 31st March, 2021 include the effect of 
the net benefit of secƟon 115BAA opted for by the Company from 1st April, 2019.

B. ReconciliaƟon of Income Tax Expense/(Income) and AccounƟng Profit mulƟplied by domesƟc tax rate applicable in
India

ParƟculars For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

The Company has decided to opt for the new tax regime announced by the Government of India and avail the benefit of
SecƟon 115BAA of the Income Tax Act w.e.f. 01/04/2019. This provides for the concessional tax rate of 22% plus applicable
surcharge and cess (totaling to 25.17% ) from 1st April, 2019, without claiming the major tax exempƟons / incenƟves which
were availed Ɵll previous financial year.
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As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

                                 44.68 72.76

44.68                                72.76                                

                                   6.40 
                                   6.40 

                                   7.30 
                                   7.30 

                              175.74                               175.74 
                                 66.34                                  66.34 

(iii)Provident Fund                                  29.50                                  29.50 
                                       -                                      5.46 

271.58
                              

277.05
                              

322.66
                              

357.10
                              

103.39 250.78

(iv)Directorate General of Foreign Trade 

37. ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)                      

ParƟculars

(A) ConƟngent liabiliƟes not provided for in respect of:
(a) Guarantees issued by the bankers on behalf of the
Company

Total (a)

(c) Pending LiƟgaƟons :
(i)Income Tax
(ii)Service Tax/Excise 

(b)Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 

                              Total (b)

Total (c)
Total (a+b+c)

(B) Commitments:

 For the year ended 31st 
March, 2021 

 For the year ended 31st 
March, 2020 

Lease Payments - Rent 9.87
                                  

9.54
                                  

21.97
                                

21.93
                                

The company has adopted Ind AS 116 w.e.f. 1st April 2019. The Company has elected to apply recogniƟon
exempƟon permiƩed under the said Ind AS and accounted these leases as short-term leases. Hence, the
payments in relaƟon to these leases are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Bus and Car Rent Payments (Included in note no. 29 under 
Staff Welfare Expenses)

Lease Payments recognised during the year:                                                                                  

ParƟculars

38. Leases
The Company has taken certain warehouses and vehicles on rent for its business operaƟons under leave and
license agreements and rent agreements respecƟvely. These are generally not non-cancellable agreements and
they are for the periods not exceeding 12 months under the said agreements. The said agreements are
renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. 

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 
     on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances)



 
 
 
 

 

                                                                                                                               

                                                          
                                                              

                                                                                                      

 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

39. Employee Benefits

A. Defined ContribuƟon Plans
i. Provident Fund
ii. SuperannuaƟon Fund

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

ParƟculars For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31st March, 2020

ContribuƟon to Provident Fund 32.91 29.88
SuperannuaƟon Fund 4.25 5.10

Total 37.16                              34.98                              

B. Defined Benefit Plans

The provision towards Compensated Absences is as under:

ParƟculars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020
Non-Current liability 36.20 30.55
Current liability 22.92 5.54

Total 59.12                              36.09                              

 The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. Under the gratuity plan, the eligible employees
are enƟtled to post reƟrement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service unƟl the reƟrement age of
58, subject to a payment ceiling of 20 lakhs. The benefit vests upon compleƟon of five years of conƟnuous service as
per "The Payment of Gratuity Act" and once vested it is payable to the employee on reƟrement or on terminaƟon of
employment. The Company makes annual contribuƟon to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance
CorporaƟon of India through its Gratuity Trust Fund.

The obligaƟons under the compensated absences plan have been determined by Independent Actuary using Projected
Unit Credit (PUC) method. Compensated absences is payable to all eligible employees on separaƟon from the Company
due to death, reƟrement, superannuaƟon or resignaƟon. At the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulaƟon of
leave days.

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

The Provident Fund  is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the SuperannuaƟon Fund is 
administered by the LIC of India as applicable for all eligible employees. Under the schemes, the Company is 
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the reƟrement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. 
These funds are recognised by the Income Tax AuthoriƟes.

₹
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Gratuity is defined benefit plan and Company is exposed to following Risks:
Interest Risk :

Salary Risk :

Investment Risk :

Mortality Risk :

C. The Company offers the following employee benefits scheme to its employees
a. Gratuity  (Funded through annual payment to Life insurance corporaƟon of India)
b. Compensated absences encashment (Unfunded)

 Gratuity

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Discount Rate (per annum) 6.05% 6.25%
Rate of increase in compensaƟon levels (per annum) 6.00%

6.05%
6.00%

Expected Rate of Return on Assets 6.25%
AƩriƟon Rate 2.00% 2.00%

Mortality rate during the employment

 Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) 

Table

 Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) 

Table

Actuarial ValuaƟon Method
Projected Unit Credit  

Method
Projected Unit Credit  

Method
ReƟrement Age (years) 58 58

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government SecuriƟes Rate will increase the present value of the
liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets 

ParƟculars

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporƟng period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below
this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relaƟvely balanced mix of investments in
government securiƟes, and other debt instruments.

ValuaƟons in respect of above have been carried out by independent actuary, as at the balance sheet  date, based on the following.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for the life Ɵme and payable Ɵll reƟrement age o nly, plan not have any longevity risk.

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined aŌer considering several applicable factors such as the
composiƟon of the plan assets, investment strategy, market scenario, etc.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securiƟes as at the balance sheet date
for the esƟmated term of the obligaƟons.
The esƟmate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon, increments
and other relevant factors.

ValuaƟon as at

depending on the duraƟon of asset.

I)
ii)
iii)
iv)

v)

vi)
vii)

viii)

IX)

X)



 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

The provision towards the Gratuity is as under:

ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Non-Current liability -                               58.27                         
Current liability 6.34 13.22

Total 6.34                             71.49                         

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

i. Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit ObligaƟon
Present Value of Benefit ObligaƟon at the Beginning of the year 106.12                         90.47                         
Interest Cost 6.01                             7.05                           
Current Service Cost 15.91                           10.59                         
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (11.07)                          (26.47)                        
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on ObligaƟons - Due to Change in Financial AssumpƟons  1.25                             13.67                         
Due to change in Demographic assumpƟons -                               (0.04)                          
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on ObligaƟons - Due to Experience  3.83                             10.84                         
Present Value of Benefit ObligaƟon at the End of the year 122.05                         106.12                       

ii. Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year 34.63                           47.74                         
Interest Income 1.95 3.72                           
ContribuƟons by the Employer 87.45 11.11                         
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (11.07)                          (26.47)                        
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 2.75                             (1.46)                          
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the year 115.71                         34.63                         

iii. Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet
(Present Value of Benefit ObligaƟon at the end of the year ) (122.05)                       (106.12)                      
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 115.71                         34.63                         
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (6.34)                            (71.49)                        
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet (6.34)                            (71.49)                        

iv. Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss for the Current year
Current Service Cost 15.91                           10.59                         
Net Interest Cost 4.06                             3.33                           
Expenses Recognised 19.97                           13.92                         

v. Expenses Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
for Current Period
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on ObligaƟon For the year 5.08                             24.48                         
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (2.75)                            1.46                           
Net (Income)/Expenses For the year Recognised in OCI 2.33                             25.95                         

ParƟculars

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹
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vi. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments : From the Fund 
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of ReporƟng
1st Following Year 61.34 19.94
2nd Following Year 5.91 43.29
3rd Following Year 15.01 5.60
4th Following Year 9.69 14.09
5th Following Year 1.84 8.99
Sum of Years 6 to 10 14.10 12.93

vii. SensiƟvity Analysis
 Projected Benefit ObligaƟon on on Current Assumpions 122.05                         106.12                       

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of DiscounƟng (2.50)                            (4.80)                          
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of DiscounƟng 2.72 5.59
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 2.53% 5.19%
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (2.45)                            (4.82)                          
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.04                             0.01                           
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.04)                            (0.01)                          

Notes on SensiƟvity Analysis
i.

ii.

iii.

In presenƟng the above sensiƟvity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligaƟon has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporƟng period, which is the same method
as applied in calculaƟng the projected benefit obligaƟon as recognised in the balance sheet.
There is no change in the method from the previous period and the points /percentage by which the
assumpƟons are stressed are same to those in the previous year.

SensiƟvity analysis for each significant actuarial assumpƟons of the Company which are discount rate and salary 
assumpƟons as of the end of the reporƟng period, showing how the defined benefit obligaƟon would have been 
affected by changes is presented in the table above.

40. InformaƟon on Segment ReporƟng as per Ind AS 108 on "OperaƟng Segments"

OperaƟng Segments are those components of business whose operaƟng results are regularly reviewed by the Chief
OperaƟng Decision making body in the Company to make decisions for performance assessment and resource
allocaƟon.
The Company has idenƟfied two reportable primary segments, Speciality Chemicals and Power GeneraƟon in terms
of Ind AS 108 on "OperaƟng Segments".

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(  in Lakhs )₹



 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

A. Segment Revenue (Sales / Services to 
external customers):
a. Speciality Chemicals 6,222.10                       6,784.71                      
b. Power GeneraƟon 59.61                            145.22                         
Total Revenue 6,281.71                       6,929.93                      

B. Segment Results :
Profit/ (Loss)  before Tax and Interest
a. Speciality Chemicals 2,549.48                       3,320.09                      
b. Power GeneraƟon (149.25)                         58.36                           
Total 2,400.23                       3,378.45                      
Less: Interest Expense 7.54                              7.82                             

Others Unallocated Expenses (191.70)                         (146.71)                        
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2,584.39                       3,517.34                      
  Current Tax 695.55                          1,126.35                      
  Tax relaƟng to Earlier Years (117.11)                         (13.18)                          
  Deferred Tax (97.42)                           5.59                             

481.02                          1,118.76                      
Profit /(Loss) aŌer Tax 2,103.37                       2,398.58                      

ParƟculars

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

Other InformaƟon :

Segment Assets
a. Speciality Chemicals 8,502.25                       6,874.47                      
b. Power GeneraƟon 377.49                          552.14                         
c. Others – Unallocated 601.76                          206.74                         
Total 9,481.50                       7,633.35                      

Segment LiabiliƟes
a. Speciality Chemicals 978.93

                          
1,115.38

                      b. Power GeneraƟon -
                                

-
                               c. Others – Unallocated -

                                
-

                               Total 978.93
                          

1,115.38
                      

Capital Expenditure during the year
a. 517.18

                          

255.07

                                                         – Capital Advances 730.47

                          

16.19

                           
b. Power GeneraƟon -

                                

-

                               
c. Others – Unallocated -

                                

-

                               
Total 1,247.65

                       

271.26

                         DepreciaƟon during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals 134.01

                          

161.92

                         

b. Power GeneraƟon 44.54

                            

44.53

                           

c. Others – Unallocated -

                                

-

                               

Total 178.55

                          

206.45

                         
Impairment during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals 14.50

                            

452.38

                         

b. Power GeneraƟon 118.70

                          

-

                               

c. Others – Unallocated -

                                

-

                               

Total 133.20

                          

452.38

                         

ParƟculars

Speciality Chemicals – Property, Plant and Equipment  
                                   and Capital work-in-progress

(  in Lakhs )₹
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(  in Lakhs )₹
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Notes :
i.

ii.
iii. The Company does not have any other reportable segment in terms of Ind AS 108 on "OperaƟng Segments".

The revenue from the said customer pertains to the Speciality Chemicals.

There is only one single customer contribuƟng 24% or more to the company's revenue for F.Y. 2020-21 i.e. 
1,472.70 lakhs (P.Y.   1,989.52 lakhs). 

41. Related Party Disclosures:

(A) Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Amit M Mehta 
 ExecuƟve Chairman 
(w.e.f. 1st April, 2020)

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

Mr. Dhruv Mehta Independent Director 
Mr. Ambrish Dalal Independent Director
Mrs. Kejal Pandya Independent Director
Mr. Yogesh M Kothari Chairman - Non ExecuƟve Director (up to 18th November,2019)
Mr. Kirat Patel Non ExecuƟve Director (up to 18th November,2019)
Mr. Shreyas Mehta Independent Director (up to 02nd December, 2019)

(B) RelaƟve of Key Managerial Personnel:
Mr. Mohak Mehta RelaƟve of Key Managerial  personnel 

(C) Wholly owned Subsidiary (WOS)
DACL Fine Chem Limited Subsidiary (since incorpraƟon i.e 30th July, 2020)

(D) Director of WOS:
Mr. Tanmay Godiawala Director of WOS (w.e.f. 17th November, 2020)

S Amit Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.
Divya Desh Tour & Travels LLP
Holidaywalas.Com Travel LLP
Perfo Chem (I) Private Limited
Reaxa Chemistry SoluƟons LLP
Hi End Property Developers LLP
Mohar ProperƟes and Trading LLP
Finorga (I) Pvt. Ltd.
Chem Amit 
Godiawala Trading CorporaƟon

Name of related parƟes and descripƟon of their relaƟonships are as under:

(E) EnƟƟes over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise significant influence:

ExecuƟve Director

S Amit & Co.

Professional Director ( Independent Director upto 5th 
November,2020)                                                    
Professional Director-Non execuƟve director(w.e.f 6th
November, 2020)

R.S.Chhabra & Co.(Prop. Mr Rajendra Chhabra)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

₹ ₹
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Nature of TransacƟon

 EnƟƟes over 
which Key 

Manageria l Personnel 
exercise 

 Key 
Managerial 
personnel 

 RelaƟve of Key 
Managerial 
personnel 

 Wholly 
owned 

Subsidiary 
(WOS) 

 Director 
of WOS Total

RemuneraƟon paid -
                         

118.66
          

23.35
                  

5.17
        

147.18
        -

                         
(40.56)

            
(3.62)

                   
-

           
(44.18)

         -
                         

47.43 -
                      

47.43
           -

                         
(40.56)

            
-

                      
(40.56)

         -
                         

71.23
             

71.23
           -

                         
-

                 
-

                      
-

               -
                         

-
                 

23.35
                  

23.35
           -

                         
-

                 
(3.62)

                   
(3.62)

            -
                         

-
                 

-
                      

5.17
        

5.17
             -

                 

-

                      

-

           

-

               -

                         

9.92

               

-

                      

9.92

             -

                         

(15.03)

            

-

                       

(15.03)

         
-

                         

-

                 

-

                      

-

               
-

                         

(0.84)

              

-

                      

(0.84)

            
-

                         

-

                      

-

               
-

                         

(2.09)

              

-

                      

(2.09)

            
-

                         

-

                 

-

                      

-

               
-

                         

(2.60)

              

-

                      

(2.60)

            
-

                         

2.84 -

                      

2.84

             
-

                         

(4.70)

              

-

                      

(4.70)

            
-

                         

-

                 

-

                      

-

               
-

                         

(0.30)

              

-

                      

(0.30)

            
-

                         

2.44 -

                      

2.44

             

-

                         

(2.30)

              

-

                      

(2.30)

            

2.40 2.40

             

(0.30)

              

(0.30)

            

-

                         

2.24 -

                      

2.24

             

-

                         

(1.91)

              

-

                      

(1.91)

            
Legal & Professional Fees 6.00

                       

-

                 

9.42

        

15.42

           

-

                 

-

                       

9.42

        

9.42

             

-

                 

-

                       

-

           

-

               

6.00

                       

-

                      

6.00

             

-

                 

-

                      

-

               

Mr. Amit M Mehta

  Mr. Ambrish Dalal

  Mrs. Kejal Pandya

  Mr. Dhruv Mehta

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala

R.S.Chhabra & Co. ( Prop. Mr. 
Rajendra Chhabra)

  Mr. Amit M Mehta

  Mr. Kirat Patel

  Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

  Mr. Shreyas Mehta

The following transacƟons were carried out with the related parƟes in ordinary course of business during the year:                                                                                    

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam

Mr. Mohak Mehta

Siƫng Fees paid

  Mr. Yogesh M Kothari 

(  in Lakhs )₹

-

 significant influence

-
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-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

-

-- -
-
-



 

                                                                               
                                                                   
                                                                               

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(  in Lakhs )₹

Nature of TransacƟon

 EnƟƟes over which Key 
Managerial Personnel  

exercise significant 
influence 

 Key Managerial 
personnel 

 RelaƟve of Key 
Managerial 
personnel 

 Wholly owned 
Subsidiary 

(WOS) 
 Director of WOS Total

-
                                        

51.90
                      

-
                         

51.90
                                 

-
                                        

(27.62)
                     

-
                         

(27.62)
                                

-

                                        

27.57 -

                         

27.57

                                 

-

                                        

(10.73)

                     

-

                         

(10.73)

                                

-

                                        

3.45 -

                         

3.45

                                    

-

                                        

(4.47)

                       

-

                         

(4.47)

                                  

-

                                        

1.38 -

                         

1.38

                                    

-

                                        

(1.79)

                       

-

                         

(1.79)

                                  

-

                                        

1.38 -

                         

1.38

                                    

-

                                        

(1.79)

                       

-

                         

(1.79)

                                  

-

                                        

1.38 -

                         

1.38

                                    

-

                                        

(1.79)

                       

-

                         

(1.79)

                                  

-

                                        

16.75 -

                         

16.75

                                 

-

                                        

(7.05)

                       

-

                         

(7.05)

                                  

0.34

                                      

0.60

                        

-

                         

0.94

                                    

(1.04)

                                     

(0.55)

                       

-

                         

(1.59)

                                  

-

                                        

0.60 -

                         

0.60

                                    

-

                                        

(0.55)

                       

-

                         

(0.55)

                                  

0.34

                                      

0.34

                                    

-

                                        

-

                                      

-

                                        

-

                          

-

                         

-

                                      

(1.04)

                                     

-

                          

-

                         

(1.04)

                                  

Expenses incurred on behalf 3.09

                     

3.09

                                    

-

                                        

-

                          

-

                         

3.09

                     

-

                         

3.09

                                    

-

                                        

-

                          

-

                         

-

                       

-

                         

-

                                      

Purchase of Goods 2.95

                                      

2.95

                                    

2.95

                                      

2.95

                                    

-

                                        

-

                                      

Sale of Goods 0.27

                                      

0.27

                                    

0.27

                                      

0.27

                                    

-

                                        

-

                                      

Commission

  Mr. Amit M Mehta

Reaxa Chemistry SoluƟons LLP

  Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

  Mr. Dhruv Mehta

  Mr. Ambrish Dalal

  Mrs. Kejal Pandya

  Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam

Reimbursement of Expenses

  Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam

  S Amit Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Ltd..

  S Amit & Co.

DACL Fine Chem Limited

Reaxa Chemistry SoluƟons LLP

Amounts in bracket indicate previous year figures.

- - - - - -

- - - - - -
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Balance as at:
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
65.12

                       

31.13
                      

RemuneraƟon :
 Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam 2.62 2.45

                        

4.05 -

                          

 Mr. Mohak Mehta 1.60 1.04

                        

 Mr. Tanmay Godiawala 1.07 -

                          

Siƫng Fees to Directors:
-

                           

0.01
-

                           

0.01
Legal & Professional Fees

 R.S.Chhabra & Co. ( Prop. Mr. Rajendra 
Chhabra) 0.93

                         

-

                          

27.57 10.73

                      

3.45 4.47

                        

   Mr. Dhruv Mehta 1.38 1.79

                        

1.38 1.79

                        

1.38 1.79

                        

16.75 7.05

                        
                          

2.94 -

                          

3.09

                         

-

                          

Advances : -

                           

DACL Fine Chem Limited 3.09 -

                          

For the Year  ended
31st March, 2021

For the Year ended
31st March, 2020

162.98

                    

47.61

                      

33.78 21.20

   Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam

ParƟculars

Other payables:

  Mr. Amit M Mehta

  Mr. Amit M Mehta
  Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

Commission to Directors:
  Mr. Amit M Mehta
  Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

  Mr. Ambrish Dalal
   Mrs. Kejal Pandya

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

  Purchase of Goods
   Reaxa Chemistry SoluƟons LLP
Other receivable:

Note - 'Terms and CondiƟons' (i) All outstanding balances are unsecured.

Category-wise break up of compensaƟon to key management personnel during the year is as follows:         

ParƟculars

(  in Lakhs )₹
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(a) Financial assets and liabiliƟes:

I. Financial assets:                                                                                                                                                                       

DerivaƟves
 - Forward Contracts      8.12 

     8.12 

593.67 206.73

       943.25 
          45.71 
    3,261.16 
          14.74    23.74 

II. Financial liabiliƟes:                                                                                                                                                                

DerivaƟves
 - Forward Contracts             1.24          -   

            1.24          -   

          30.24          -   
       286.53 
       185.93 

502.70

       

The carrying value of Financial Assets and Financial LiabiliƟes measured at amorƟsed cost approximates to their fair values.

42. Disclosures on financial instruments

This secƟon gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides
addiƟonal informaƟon on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounƟng policies, including the criteria for recogniƟon, the basis of measurement and
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability 

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial assets and 

ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Investments in equity instruments (Quoted)                                    593.67                                 206.73 
Total

Measured at amorƟsed cost
Trade and other receivables                             1,248.75 

Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

                                            -   
Total                                             -   

Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Total 4,264.86

                               

4,359.09

                            

ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents                                 374.75 
Other bank balances                             2,711.85 
Other financial assets

Other financial liabiliƟes                                 172.18 
Total 458.35

                                

Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Total
Measured at amorƟsed cost
Borrowings
Trade payables                                 286.17 

liabiliƟes as at 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2020.

and equity instrument are disclosed  in note 2 to the financial statements.

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹



 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(b) Capital Management

The company's objecƟve when managing capital is to:

- Maintain an opƟmal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Fair Value Measurement:

1.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(1.24)                        8.12             
ValuaƟon techn ique and key input: Mark to market Statement provided by State Bank of India

2.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

593.67                         206.73       

- Safeguard its ability to conƟnue as a going concern so that the Company is able to provide maximum return
to stakeholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Company's Board of Directors reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the Board considers
the cost of capital, risk associated with  each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.

Financial assets / (liabiliƟes) measured at fair value
Gain / (Loss) o n Forward Co ntract

Financial assets / liabiliƟes at fair  value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

ParƟculars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March , 2020

This note provides informaƟon about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets.
Fair value of the Company's financial assets / financial liabiliƟes that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Company's financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporƟng period. The following table
gives informaƟon about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined.

Financial assets / liabiliƟes at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

ParƟculars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March , 2020

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in equity - 
Quoted
ValuaƟon techn ique and key input: Level 1-Quoted bid prices from Bombay Stock Exchange

(  in Lakhs )₹

(  in Lakhs )₹

3.

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended 31st March,  202 1.

Disclosure related to DerecogniƟon of  investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
  income during the reporƟng   period;

(a)the reasons for disposing of the investments - The company has disposed of certain long-term investments in equity 
instruments in line with its risk  management policy to miƟgate the associated risks.   

(b)the fair value of the investments at the date of derecogniƟon - Sale Price on the date of sale.
(c)the cumulaƟve gain or loss on disposal - Loss on disposal    21.52 Lakhs

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes that are not measured at fair value (but fa ir value disclosures are required)
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes recognised in the financial 

  their fair values.
statements (except fair value of   investments in equity instruments and DerivaƟves - Forward Contracts) approximate

₹

(c) Financial risk management:
The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The risk

Company's Board. The Company’s principal financial liabiliƟes comprise of

borrowings (if any), trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabiliƟes is to finance the Company’s
operaƟons and to provide guarantees to support its operaƟons in selecƟve instances. The Company’s principal financial

management policy is approved by the
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assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operaƟons and
market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk etc. The objecƟves of the Company’s

financing policy are to secure solvency, limit financial risks and opƟmise the cost of capital. The Company’s capital 

(a) Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices- such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices- will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instrument. The objecƟve of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while opƟmising the return.

investments. The company is exposed to

structure is managed using equity and debt raƟos as part of the Company’s financial planning.

(I) Foreign Currency Risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in

  exposures to exchange rate fluctuaƟons arise.
foreign exchange rates. The Company undertakes transacƟons denominated in foreign currencies; consequently,

 The major components of market risk are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Amount in 
Foreign currency

₹ in Lakhs Amount in 
Foreign currency

₹ in Lakhs

Payable USD 212,200.56

              

157.35 266,443.00

                 

194.22

USD sensiƟvity at year 
end

Assets:
Weakening of INR by 5%
Strengthening of INR by 
LiabiliƟes:
Weakening of INR by 5%
Strengthening of INR by 

Foreign currency exposure as at 31st March, 2021 are hedged as per the policy of the company

ParƟculars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

-

                                         

-

                                

-

                                         

-

                                

Foreign Currency SensiƟvity:
The Company is principally exposed to foreign currency risk against USD. SensiƟvity of profit or loss arises mainly
from USD denominated receivables and payables.
As per management’s assessment of reasonable possible changes in the exchange rate of +/- 5% between USD-INR currency
pair, sensiƟvity of profit or loss only on outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items at the period end is 

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Forward cover is obtained from bank for each of the aggregated exposures and the Trade deal is booked. The forward
cover deals are all backed by actual trade underlines and seƩlement of these contracts on maturity are by actual delivery 

-7.87

                                      

-9.71

                            

7.87

                                       

9.71

                              

Forward foreign exchange contracts
It is the policy of the Company to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover foreign currency payments in USD.
The Company enters in to contracts with terms up to 120 days.

presented below:

underline hedged trade transacƟon.

(₹ in Lakhs)

of the hedged currency for seƩling the 
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Outstanding contracts
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

USD-Sell 74.15 72.89 212,200.56                 266,443.00             

(₹ in Lakhs)
Outstanding contracts

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
In INR 157.35 194.22 156.11                        202.35                     
Total 157.35                      194.22                     156.11                        202.35                     

Though the forward contracts are not designated as hedging instruments, they are used for hedging foreign currency
exposure and outstanding as at year 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2020 are as under:-

Average exchange rates Foreign Currency

Nominal Amounts Fair Value

ended

The sensiƟvity of profit or loss in respect of investments in equity shares at the end of the reporƟng period
for +/-5% change in price and net asset value is presented below:

Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 2021 would increase / decrease by 29.69 Lakhs
fair value of equity investments measured at FVTOCI.

(II) Interest rate risk:
The Company invests the surplus fund generated from operaƟons in bank deposits . Bank deposits are made
for a period of up to 12 rate of 5%-5.40% as per prevailing market interest rate.
Considering these bank deposits are short term in nature, there is no significant interest rate risk. There
is no significant uƟlisaƟon of borrowings.

(III) Price risk:
The Company’s equity securiƟes price risk arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet
at fair value through OCI. The Company’s equity investments in SecuriƟes are publicly traded.

Price sensiƟvity analysis:

months and carry interest

(P.Y.   10.34 Lakhs)₹ as a result of 5% changes in
₹

(b) Credit risk:
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligaƟons resulƟng in financial
loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparƟes as
a means of miƟgaƟng the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company's
appropriate, the credit raƟngs of its counterparƟes are conƟnuously monitored and spread amongst various
counterparƟes. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the
management of the Company. Financial instruments that are subject to concentraƟons of credit risk,
principally consist of balance with banks, investments in equity instruments and trade receivables.
 None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentraƟons of credit risks,  

exposure and wherever

which may result into financial loss for the company.

(c) Liquidity  risk:
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and availability of

credit faciliƟes to meet the obligaƟons when due.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity posiƟon and cash and cash equivalents
funding through an adequate amount of commiƩed

on the basis of
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               30.24 
            286.53 
            187.17 
            503.94 

                     -   
            286.17 
            172.18 
            458.35 

expected cash flows. In addiƟon, liquidity management also involves projecƟng cash flows considering level
of liquid assets necessary matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabiliƟes 

The informaƟon included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabiliƟes based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the
Company may be required to pay.

ParƟculars
Less than 

1 year
1 Years to 

3 Years

Borrowings
Trade payables
Other Financial LiabiliƟes

Total

As at 31st March, 2021                               
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other Financial LiabiliƟes

Total
As at 31st March, 2020

3 Years to
5 Years

5 Years
and 

above

to meet obligaƟons by

earliest date on which the

(₹ in Lakhs)

and monitoring balance sheet liquidity raƟos. 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021



As per our report of even date aƩached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AMIT MEHTA
Vishal P. Doshi ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director
Partner DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Membership No. 101533

DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 18th May, 2021

G.S.VENKATACHALAM

43. The company has sought balance confirmaƟons from trade receivables and trade payables, wherever such balance
confirmaƟons are received by the Company, the same are reconciled and appropriate adjustments if required, are
made in the books of account.

46. Approval of Standalone Financials 
The Standalone Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on  18th May, 2021.

44. The natureof the company’s business is such that by and large, it conƟnues to remain unaffected from the effects of
Covid-19 pandemic. Therefore, there is no material impact on the operaƟonsand financials of the company for the year
ended 31st March, 2021. The Company will conƟnue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic
condiƟons. 

45. The previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make it comparable with the current year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’

 

REPORT

 

To the Members of 

 

Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated

 

Financial Statements

 

Opinion

 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated

 
financial statements of Diamines and Chemicals 

Limited
 

(“the
 

Holding
 

Company”
 

or “the Company”)
 
and its subsidiary

 
(Holding Company and its 

subsidiary
 

together referred to as “the Group”)
 

which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at  
March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

 
including other comprehensive income, 

the
 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
 
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the 

year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon  (hereinaŌer referred to as “the  consolidated  

financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us,  the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the informaƟon required by the  Companies  Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
AccounƟng Standards specified under secƟon 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS”) and other accounƟng principles generally accepted in 
India, of the consolidated state of affairs

 
of the

 
Group

 
as

 
at 

 
March 31, 2021, of

 
consolidated total 

comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income),
 

consolidated changes 
in equity and

 
their
 

consolidated
 

cash flows for the year ended on that date.
 Basis for Opinion

 We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
AudiƟng (SAs) specified

 

under secƟon 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditors’

 

ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the

 

Consolidated

 

Financial Statements 
secƟon

 

of our report. We are independent of the Group

 

in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical

 

requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the consolidated

 

financial statements under the provisions of the Act

 

and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance with

 

these 
requirements and ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion

 

on the consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit MaƩers

  

Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of these

 

consolidated

 

financial statements

 

of the current period. These maƩers were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the consolidated

 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we

 

do not provide a separate opinion on these maƩers.

 

We have determined the maƩer 
described below to be the key audit maƩer to be communicated in our report.

 

Sr. 
No.

 Key Audit MaƩer

 
How our audit addressed the key audit 
maƩer

 

1
 

LiƟgaƟons and claims
 

(Refer to note 36(c) to the consolidated
 

financial statements)
 

 

The cases are pending with mulƟple tax 
authoriƟes like Income Tax, Excise/Service Tax 
and Provident Fund Authority etc. and there 
are claims which have not been acknowledged 
as debt by the holding company. 

  
In normal course of business, financial 
exposures may arise from pending 
proceedings and from liƟgaƟon and claims 
which are not acknowledged as debt by the 
holding company. Whether a claim needs to 
be recognised as liability or disclosed as 
conƟngent liability in the consolidated

 financial statements is dependent on number 
of significant assumpƟons and judgments. The 
amounts involved are potenƟally significant 
and determining the amount, if any, to be 
recognised or disclosed in the consolidated

 
financial statements, is inherently subjecƟve.

 
  

We considered the above area as a key audit 
maƩer due to associated uncertainty related 
to the outcome of these maƩers and 
applicaƟon of material judgement in 
interpretaƟon of law.

 
 

Our audit
 

procedures, inter alia, included the 
following:

 
  


 

EvaluaƟon of holding company’s 
management’s judgment of tax risks, 
esƟmates of tax exposures, other 
claims and conƟngencies. Past and 
current experience with the tax 
authoriƟes and management’s 
response on the subject maƩer were 
used to assess the appropriateness of 
management’s best esƟmate of the 
most likely outcome of each uncertain 
conƟngent liability.

 
  

 
Understanding the current status of 
the tax assessments &

 
other liƟgaƟons 

and discussing selected maƩers with 
the holding company’s management.

 
  



 

Assessing the holding company’s

 
assumpƟons and esƟmates in respect 
of claims, included in the conƟngent 
liabiliƟes disclosed in the consolidated

 
financial statements. 

 
  



 

Assessment of the probability of 
negaƟve result of liƟgaƟon and the 
reliability of esƟmates of related 
obligaƟons.
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Conclusion:

 

Based on procedure described above, we did 
not idenƟfy any material excepƟons relaƟng 
to management’s asserƟons, and treatment, 
presentaƟon and disclosure of the subject 
maƩer in the consolidated

 

financial 
statements.

 
 

InformaƟon Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’

 
Report Thereon

 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparaƟon of the other informaƟon. 
The other informaƟon comprises the informaƟon included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to 
Board’s Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder’s 
InformaƟon but does not

 
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’

 
report thereon. 

The above-referred informaƟon is expected to be made available to us aŌer the date of this audit report .  

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informaƟon and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connecƟon with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other informaƟon idenƟfied above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other informaƟon is materially inconsistent with the consolidated  financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

 
When we read the informaƟon,

 
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 

required to communicate the maƩer to those charged with governance and take appropriate acƟons 
necessitated by the circumstances

 
and

 
the applicable laws and regulaƟons.

 ResponsibiliƟes of Management

 

and Those Charged with Governance

 

for the Consolidated

 

Financial 
Statements

 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors

 

is responsible for the maƩers stated in secƟon 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of these consolidated

 

financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial posiƟon, consolidated financial performance,

 
consolidated total

 

comprehensive income,

 

consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows 
of the Group in accordance with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) specified

 

under secƟon 133 of the Act. 

 
 

The respecƟve Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group

 

are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
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safeguarding of the assets of the Group

 

and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other irregulariƟes; 
the selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate

 

accounƟng policies; making judgments and esƟmates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring accuracy and completeness

 

of the 
accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the consolidated

 

financial 
statements

 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, which have been used for the purpose of

 

preparaƟon of the consolidated

 

financial statements 
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

  
 

In preparing the consolidated
 

financial statements, the respecƟve Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are

 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group

 
to conƟnue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounƟng unless management either intends to liquidate the Group

 
or to cease operaƟons, or has no 

realisƟc alternaƟve but to do so.  

The respecƟve Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group  are  also responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporƟng process of the Group.  

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated  Financial Statements  
Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  consolidated  financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’

 report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepƟcism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 

•

  

IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated

 

financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecƟng a material misstatement resulƟng from fraud is higher than for one resulƟng from 
error,

 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟonal omissions, misrepresentaƟons, or the 
override of internal control. 
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•

 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under secƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the

 

Group

 

has

 

adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such 
controls. 

 
 

•

 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟng 
esƟmates and related disclosures made by management. 

 
 

•
 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounƟng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condiƟons that may cast significant doubt on the

 
ability of the Group

 
to conƟnue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aƩenƟon in our auditors’
 

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated  financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or condiƟons may cause the Group  to cease 
to conƟnue as a going concern.  

 
• Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and content of the consolidated  financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated  financial statements represent the 
underlying transacƟons and events in a manner that achieves fair presentaƟon. 

 
 •
 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informaƟon of the enƟƟes or 
business acƟviƟes within the Group,

 
to express an opinion on the consolidated

 
financial statements. 

For the enƟties included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by us, 
we remain responsible for the direcƟon, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by 
us. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
 

We communicate

 

with those charged with governance regarding, among other maƩers, the planned 
scope and Ɵming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we idenƟfy during our audit. 

 
 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaƟonships and 
other maƩers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

 

where applicable, 
related safeguards.
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From the maƩers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maƩers that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year

 

and 
are therefore the key audit maƩers. We describe these maƩers in our auditors’

 

report unless law or 
regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a maƩer should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communicaƟon.

 

Other MaƩer

 

 
We have audited the financial statements

 
of wholly owned subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect 

total assets of ₹
 

4.46 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021, total revenues of ₹
 

Nil, total comprehensive income 
(comprising of Loss and other comprehensive income) of ₹

 
(3.88)

 
Lakhs and net cash inflows amounƟng to ₹

 

4.26 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements.  

 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 

1.

 

As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act,
 

we report, to the extent applicable,
 

that:
  a.

 
we have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

 
of the aforesaid consolidated

 financial statements; 

 
b.

 

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relaƟng to preparaƟon of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examinaƟon of those books;

 

 

c.

 

the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account

 

and records maintained

 

for the purpose of preparaƟon of the consolidated

 

financial 
statements;

 
 

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian 
AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act;   

e. on the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors of the Group as on March 
31, 2021

 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary, none

 

of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2021

 

from being appointed as a director in terms of SecƟon 164 (2) of the Act; 
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f.

 
with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements

 
of the Group

 
and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate report in “Annexure A”; 
 

 

g.
 

with respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditors’
 

Report in accordance with the 
requirements of secƟon 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  

 
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, 
the remuneraƟon paid by the Group, to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of secƟon 197 of the Act; and  

 
 

h.
 

with respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditors’
 

Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us:

 
i.

 
the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on the 
consolidated financial posiƟon of the Group -

 
Refer Note 36(c)

 
to the consolidated financial 

statements;

 ii.

 

the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which 
there were material foreseeable

 

losses

 

as at March 31, 2021;

 iii.

 

there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund by the Group.

 
 

For K.C. Mehta & Co.

 

Chartered Accountants

 

Firm’s RegistraƟon No. 106237W

 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Vishal P. Doshi 
Partner 
Membership No. 101533 
UDIN: 21101533AAAABD5247  
Place:

 
Vadodara 

 Date:
 

May 18, 2021
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report

 

on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ secƟon of our 
report to the Members of Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 

on

 

the

 

consolidated financial statements

 

of 
even date)

 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Act.

 
 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of 
Diamines and Chemicals Limited

 
(“the Company”) (hereinaŌer referred to as “the Holding Company”) 

and its subsidiary
 

(Holding Company and its subsidiary
 
together referred to as “the Group”)

 
as of March 31, 

2021
 

in conjuncƟon with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 

The respecƟve Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary  are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporƟng criteria established by the respecƟve Companies  considering the essenƟal components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibiliƟes 
include the design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial 
informaƟon, as required under the Act.

 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility

 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng (the, “Guidance note”) 
and the Standards on AudiƟng, issued by ICAI and prescribed under secƟon 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
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whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effecƟvely in all material respects.

 
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operaƟng effecƟveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and 
operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements.

 
 Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

 
 A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng and the 
preparaƟon of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounƟng principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposiƟons of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparaƟon of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisaƟons of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorised acquisiƟon, use, or 
disposiƟon of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements.

 
 

Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

 
 

Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
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misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon 
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 
 

Opinion
 

In our opinion, the Group, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements were operaƟng effecƟvely as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal 
control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on  Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 For K.C. Mehta & Co.
 Chartered Accountants

 Firm’s RegistraƟon No. 106237W

  
 Vishal P. Doshi

 Partner

 
Membership No. 101533

 
UDIN:

 

21101533AAAABD5247

 
Place:

 

Vadodara 

 
Date:

 

May 18, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021

ParƟculars
Note 
No.

As at          
31st March, 2021

As at          
31st March, 2020 
(Refer Note 44)

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4A                 2,243.88 -
  (b) Capital work-in-progress 4B                      15.39 -
  (c) Intangible assets 4C                         2.68 -
  (d) Financial Assets -
      (i) Investments 5                    593.67 -
      (ii) Others 6                         3.16 -
  (e) Other non-current assets 7                    957.57 -
Total Non-Current Assets                 3,816.35 -

(2) Current Assets
   (a) Inventories 8                         1,254.17 -
   (b) Financial Assets
        (i) Trade receivables 9                            943.25 -
       (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10                               49.97 -
       (iii) Other bank balances 11                         3,261.16 -
       (iv) Others 12                                 8.69 -
   (c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13                               48.72 -
   (d) Other current assets 14                               95.56 -
Total Current Assets                         5,661.52 -
TOTAL ASSETS 9,477.87

                       

-

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
  (a) Equity Share capital 15                            978.32 -
  (b) Other Equity 16                         7,520.37 -
Total Equity                         8,498.69 -

LiabiliƟes
(1) Non-Current LiabiliƟes
  (a) Provisions 17                               36.20 -
  (b) Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes (Net) 18                            358.68 -
Total Non-Current LiabiliƟes                            394.88 -

(2) Current LiabiliƟes
  (a) Financial LiabiliƟes
      (i) Borrowings 19                               30.24 -
      (ii) Trade payables 20
         (A)  due to micro enterprises and  small enterprises 12.62

                             

-
         (B) due to other than micro enterprises and small                 enterprises 273.91

                        

-
      (iii) Other financial liabiliƟes 21                            187.42 -
   (b) Other current liabil iƟes 22                               37.81 -
   (c) Provisions 23                               42.30 -
Total Current LiabiliƟes                            584.30 -
Total LiabiliƟes 979.18

                           

-
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,477.87

                       

-

Significant AccounƟng Policies and Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

 1-46

As per our rep ort of even date aƩached
For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants AMIT MEHTA G.S.VENKATACHALAM

ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director

Vishal P. Doshi
DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898

Partner
Membership No. 101533 DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai
Date :  18th May, 2021

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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ParƟculars
Note 
No.

For the year ended      
31st March, 2021

For the year ended      
31st March, 2020 
(Refer Note 44)

I Revenue from OperaƟons 24                             6,281.71 -
II Other Income 25                                 255.24 -
II I Total income (I+II) 6,536.95                            -
IV EXPENSES 

Cost of materials consumed 26                             1,640.02 -
Changes in inventories  of finished goods and work-in-progress 27                                 113.21 -
Employee benefits expense 28                                 736.69 -
Finance costs 29                                     7.54 -
DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon expense 30                                 178.55 -
Other expenses 31                             1,280.43 -
Total expenses (IV) 3,956.44                            -

V Profit before tax (III-IV)                             2,580.51 -
VI Tax expense:

     (a)Current Tax 34                                 695.55 -
     (b)Tax relaƟng to Earlier Years 34 (117.11)                              -
     (c)Deferred Tax 18 (97.42)                                -

VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 2,099.49
                            

-
VIII Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

A. Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss : -
  (i) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on the Defined Benefit Plans                                   (2.33) -
  (ii) Gain/(Loss) on measuring equity instruments at Fair Value carried 
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 334.04

                               

-

  (iii) Income tax on above (37.63)
                                

-
B. Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -

                                     
-

IX Total Comprehensive Income  for the year ((VII+VIII)) 2,393.57
                            

-
Profit for the year aƩributable to:
- Owners of the Company 2,099.49

                            
-

- Non-controlling interests -
                                     

-
Other comprehensive income for the year
- Owners of the Company 294.08

                               
-

- Non-controlling interests -

                                     

-
Total comprehensive income for the year   
- Owners of the Company 2,393.57

                            

-
- Non-controlling interests -

                                     

-
X Earnings  per equity share 

Basic & Diluted 35 21.46

                                 
249,985,680.00

                   
Significant AccounƟng Policies and Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements

 1-46

As per our report of even date aƩached
For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants AMIT MEHTA G.S.VE NKATACHALAM

ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director

Vishal P. Doshi DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898

Partner
Membership No. 101533 DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai
Date :  18th May, 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2021 
( in Lakhs)

 
₹

-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

ParƟculars
 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020
(Refer Note 44) 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,580.51                                    -
Adjustments for:
DepreciaƟon / AmorƟsaƟon / Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment 311.75                                       -
Dividend Income (61.28)                                        -
Interest Income (189.87)                                      -
Finance Costs 7.54                                            -
Unrealised Loss on Foreign Exchange 0.76                                            -
Provision for Doubƞul Receivables/Advances/Sundry balances wriƩen off 9.04                                            -
Provision for Non Moving Stock (1.10)                                           -
Provision/Advances/Sundry Balances wriƩen back (0.04)                                           -
OperaƟng Profit/(Loss) before changes  in working capital 2,657.31                                    -
Adjustment for (Increase)/Decrease in OperaƟng Assets
Trade Receivables 297.89                                       -
Inventories (553.95)                                      -
Financial Assets and Other Assets (8.63)                                           -
Long-term Loans and Advances and Other Non-current Assets (120.27)                                      -
Adjustment for Increase/(Decrease) in OperaƟng LiabiliƟes
Trade Payables (0.36)                                           -
Other Financial LiabiliƟes 15.24

                                         
-

Other LiabiliƟes and provisions (108.62)
                                     

-
Cash flow from operaƟons aŌer changes in working capital 2,178.60

                                   
-

Income-tax paid (642.01)
                                     

-
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) OperaƟng AcƟviƟes 1,536.58

                                   
-

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 189.87

                                      
-

Dividend Received 61.28
                                         

-
Purchase of Equity Instruments (174.67)

                                     
-

Sale of Equity Instruments 100.27
                                      

-
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets including CWIP & 
Capital Advances (1,131.03)

                                  

-

Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents (538.46)
                                     

-
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) InvesƟng AcƟviƟes (1,492.74)

                                  
-

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Costs (7.54)

                                          
-

Dividend Paid (Including Dividend DistribuƟon Tax) (391.33)
                                     

-
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Borrowings 30.24

                                         
-

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing AcƟviƟes (368.63)
                                     

-

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (324.78)
                                     

-
Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period (see Note 1) 374.75

                                      
-

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period (see Note 1) 49.97
                                         

-

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

ParƟculars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020
(Refer Note 44) 

Notes:
1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on hand 0.30                                            -
Balance with Banks 49.67                                          -
Cash and Cash equivalents 49.97                                          -

2

As per our report of even date aƩached

For K. C. Mehta & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Vishal Doshi

 AMIT MEHTA G.S.VENKATACHALAM

Partner

  ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director

Membership No. 101533

DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898

DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR
Chief Financial Officer Company SecretaryPlace : Mumbai

Date :  18th May, 2021

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian AccounƟng Standard 7
- "Statement  of Cash Flows".

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

A. Equity Share Capital 
ParƟculars Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 (Refer Note 44) -                          
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 978.32                   
AddiƟons/(ReducƟons) -                          
Balance as at 31st March,2021 978.32                   

B. Other Equity

 General    Reserve  Retained     
Earnings 

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 (Refer Note 44) -                          -                              -                                 -                            
Balances as at 1st April, 2020 517.12                   5,037.98                   (15.45)                           5,539.65                  
Movement during the year:
Profit for the period 2,099.49                   2,099.49                  

 Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax (1.74)                         (1.74)                        
 Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity instrument carr ied 
 through OCI, net of income tax 295.83                          295.83                     
 Gain / (Loss) on sale of Investment (21.52)                           (21.52)                      
Payment of Dividend (Final) (365.67)                     (365.67)                    
Tax on Dividend (Final) (25.66)                       (25.66)                      
Balances as at 31st March,2021 517.12                   6,744.40                   258.85                          7,520.37                  

As per our report of even date aƩached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AMIT MEHTA G.S.VENKATACHALAM
Vishal P. Doshi ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director
Partner DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Membership No. 101533

DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date :  18th May, 2021

ParƟculars  Total 
Reserves & Surplus  Equity Instruments 

carried through OCI 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

 

for the year ended March 31, 2021

 
 
 

1.

 

Corporate InformaƟon

 
  

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise Financial statements of "Diamines and Chemicals Limited” (“the 
Holding company” or “Parent Company”) and its Subsidiary (collecƟvely referred as “the Group”) for the year ended 
March 31, 2021.

  
 

The Holding company

 

is a domesƟc public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India having its registered 
office at

 

Plot No. 13, New IPCL Rd, PCC Area, Vadodara, Gujarat. The Holding Company’s

 

shares are listed and traded 
on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE). 

 
 

The Holding company

 

has its Wholly owned Subsidiary (DACL Fine Chem Limited)

 

domiciled in India.

 

The Group is 
mainly engaged in business of manufacturing and markeƟng of organic chemicals compounds and Power 
GeneraƟon. 

 
 

2.
 

Significant AccounƟng Policies
 

i)
 

Statement of Compliance
 

       
These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian AccounƟng 
Standards (“Ind AS”) noƟfied under the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards)

 
Rules, 2015 (as amended).

 
 
 New Standards/ amendments and other changes effecƟve April 1,  2020  
 Ministry of Corporate Affairs noƟfied amendments to the exisƟng standards vide noƟficaƟon G.S.R. 463(E) 

dated 24th July 2020. The effect of those amendments is not material.  
 

ii) Basis of PreparaƟon 
  

The
 

Consolidated
 

Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convenƟon on accrual 
basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values / amorƟzed cost / net present 
value at the end of each reporƟng period, as explained in the accounƟng policies below.

 
 

  
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideraƟon given in exchange for goods and 
services.

 
 

  

All assets and liabiliƟes have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operaƟng 
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The Group

 

has ascertained its 
operaƟng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classificaƟon of assets and liabiliƟes.

 
Accordingly, all

 

assets and liabiliƟes have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s 
operaƟng cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS-1 ‘PresentaƟon of Financial Statements’ and Schedule III 
to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
 

  

Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the Group operates (‘funcƟonal currency’). The Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Group are presented in Indian currency (INR), which is also the funcƟonal and 
presentaƟon currency of the Group. All values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal lakhs, unless 
otherwise indicated.
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Principles of ConsolidaƟon:  
Subsidiary:  
The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries (collecƟvely referred as “the Group”).   
 
Subsidiaries are enƟƟes controlled by the Company. The Company controls an enƟty when it is exposed  or 
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the enƟty and has the ability to affect those returns 
through its power to direct the relevant acƟviƟes of the enƟty. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date 
of their acquisiƟon, being the date on which the Company obtains control and conƟnue to be consolidated 
unƟl the date that such control ceases.  
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounƟng policies consistently for 
material like transacƟons and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent 
possible, in the same manner as the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements except otherwise stated.  
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounƟng 
policies into line with the Group’s accounƟng policies.  
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by combining the financial statements of the 
company and its subsidiaries on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of 
assets, liabiliƟes, equity, income, expenses and cash flow aŌer eliminaƟng in full intra-group assets, 
liabiliƟes, equity, income, expenses and cash flow relaƟng to intra-group transacƟons and unrealized profits. 
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transacƟon provides evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred. Such unrealized profit/losses are fully aƩributed to the Company.  
 
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are aƩributed to the owners of the 
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is aƩributed to the owners of 
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having 
a deficit balance.  
 
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control 
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transacƟons. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests 
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relaƟve interests in the 
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and 
the fair value of the consideraƟon paid or received is recognised directly in equi ty and aƩributed to the 
owners of the Company.  
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the 
consideraƟon received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of 
the assets (including goodwill) and liabiliƟes of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts 
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relaƟon to that subsidiary are accounted for as if 
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabiliƟes of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss or transferred to another  category of equity as 
specified/permiƩed by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary 
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on iniƟal recogniƟon for subsequent accounƟng 
under Ind AS 109.

 
 
 

   
Fair Value Measurement

 
   

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transacƟon between market parƟcipants at the measurement date under current market condiƟons.

 
 

  
The Group

 
categorises

 
assets and liabiliƟes measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the 

ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:
 (i)

 
Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in acƟve markets for idenƟcal assets or liabiliƟes

 (ii)
 

Level 2: inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within 
level 1 for the asset or liability.

 (iii)

 

Level 3:

 
inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability reflecƟng significant modificaƟons to 

observable related market data or Group’s assumpƟons about pricing by market parƟcipants.

 For assets and liabiliƟes that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Group

 

determines whether transfers

 

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisaƟon (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) 
at the end of each reporƟng period.

 
 

iii)

 

Property, Plant and Equipment

 
The Holding Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value of its Property Plant & Equipment 
(PPE) recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transiƟon date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that 
carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transiƟon date as per

 

Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

 Property, Plant &

 

Equipment (PPE) comprises of Tangible assets and Capital Work in progress. PPE are stated 
at cost, net of tax/duty credit availed, if any, aŌer reducing accumulated depreciaƟon and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any; unƟl the date of the Balance Sheet. The cost of PPE comprises of its purchase 
price or its construcƟon cost (net of applicable tax credit, if any), any cost directly aƩributable to bring the 
asset to the locaƟon and condiƟon necessary for it to be capable of operaƟng in the manner intended by 
the management. Direct costs are capitalized unƟl the asset is ready for use and includes borrowing cost 
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounƟng policy.

 
 

Capital work in progress includes the cost of PPE that are not

 

yet ready for

 

the intended use.
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An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise 
from the conƟnued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or reƟrement of an item of PPE 
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.  
 
As per internal technical evaluaƟon carried out by the management, the management of the group  believes 
that its Property, Plant & Equipment are of such nature that separate components are not disƟnctly 
idenƟfiable having different useful life. And therefore, Component level accounƟng and reporƟng is not 
pracƟcally feasible for the group.  
 DepreciaƟon of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

 
 DepreciaƟon is provided on the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment (other than Freehold land) less their 
esƟmated residual value, using the straight-line method over the useful life of PPE as stated in the Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on internal technical evaluaƟon.

 
The management believes that the 

useful lives as assessed best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
 

 Useful lives of following
 

class of PPE are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013, which

 
are as under:-

 
 

 Asset DescripƟon         
  

Assets Useful life (in Years)
 Factory Building

 
30

 Building other than Factory Building
 

60
 R

 
& D Equipments

 
10

 Office Equipments

 

5

 Computers

 

3

 Server

 

10

 Road

 

5

 Furniture and Fixtures

 

10

 
Vehicle

 

8

 
 
Useful lives of following class of PPE are based on internal technical evaluaƟon carried out by the Group

 
which is as under:-

 Asset DescripƟon         

  

Assets Useful life (in Years)

 
Plant & Machinery

 

20

 
Plant & Machinery (Tank)

 

25

 
Wind

 

Electric Generators

  

22

 The esƟmated useful lives, residual values and depreciaƟon method are reviewed on an annual basis and if 
necessary, changes in esƟmates are accounted for prospecƟvely.
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DepreciaƟon on addiƟons/deleƟons to PPE during the year is provided for on a pro-rata basis with reference 
to the date of addiƟons/deleƟons.  
 
DepreciaƟon on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other factors 
is provided for prospecƟvely over the remaining useful li fe.

 
 Freehold land is not depreciated.

 
iv)

 
Intangible Assets

 The Holding Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised as 
of April 1, 2016 (transiƟon date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying

 

value as its 
deemed cost as on the transiƟon date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

 Intangible assets with finite useful life acquired separately, are

 

recognised only if it is probable that future 
economic benefits that are aƩributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost of assets can 
be measured reliably. The intangible assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated 
amorƟzaƟon and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

 Intangible assets are amorƟzed over the esƟmated period of benefit, not exceeding ten years.

 
Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or  when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecogniƟon of an intangible asset are determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and

 

recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised .

 
Intangible assets are amorƟsed on Straight Line Method from the date they are available for use, over the 
useful lives of the assets as

 

esƟmated by the Management as under:

 

Asset DescripƟon         

  

Assets Useful life (in Years)

 

SoŌware & Licenses

 

3

 

v)

 

Impairment of non-financial assets

 

The Group

 

reviews at each reporƟng period whether there is any indicaƟon that an asset may be impaired. 
If any such indicaƟon exists, the group

 

esƟmates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable 
amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generaƟng unit to which the asset belongs is 
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reducƟon is 
treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the

 

Consolidated Statement

 

of Profit & Loss.

 

If at the 
reporƟng period, there is an indicaƟon that there is change in the previously assessed impairment loss, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the lower of its recoverable amount and the 
carrying amount that is determined, net of depreciaƟon, had no impairment loss been recognized for the 
asset in prior  years.”

 

 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in 
use, the esƟmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the Ɵme value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which 
the esƟmates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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 An assessment is made at the end of each reporƟng period to see if there are any indicaƟons that 

impairment losses recognised earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. The impairment loss is 
reversed, if there has been a change in the esƟmates which has the effect of increasing the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the previous impairment loss was recognised. If it is so, the carrying amount of  
the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that has

 
been 

determined, net of depreciaƟon, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. AŌer 
a reversal, the depreciaƟon charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying 
amount, less any residual value, on a systemaƟc basis over its remaining useful life. Reversals of Impairment 
loss are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

 
 vi)

  

Inventories

 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value aŌer providing for impairment and other

 
losses, where considered necessary. The basis of determining the value of each cl ass of inventory is as 
follows:

 
 

Inventories

 

Cost Formulae

 
Raw Material, packing materials, fuels

 

and

 
stores and spares

 

At first–in–first out basis

 

(Net of eligible credit)

 Raw Material (Goods in transit)

 

At invoice price

 Work-in-progress

 

At Cost, comprising of

 

raw material

 

cost, labour

 

cost

 

and appropriate proporƟon of manufacturing 
expenses and overheads based on stage of 
compleƟon.

 
Finished Goods (Including in Transit)

 

At Cost, comprising of raw material cost, labour 
cost and appropriate proporƟon of manufacturing 
expenses and overheads.

 

Scrap

 

At lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value

 

 

vii)

  

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 

Revenues from sale of goods including power units or services are recognised upon transfer of control of 
the goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideraƟon which the group

 

expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

 
 

 

Revenue is measured at the transacƟon price of the consideraƟon received or receivable duly adjusted 
for variable consideraƟon &

 

customer’s right to return the goods and the same represents amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business. Revenue also excludes taxes 
collected from customers. Any retrospecƟve revision in prices is accounted for in the year of such revision.

 
 

Revenue is recognised at a point in Ɵme on accrual basis as per the terms of the contract, when there is 
no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideraƟon. When there is uncertainty as to 
measurement or ulƟmate collectability, revenue recogniƟon is postponed unƟl such uncertainty is 
resolved. 
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When sales discount and rebate arrangements result in variable consideraƟon, appropriate esƟmates are 
made and esƟmated variable consideraƟon is  recognised as a deducƟon from revenue at the point of sale 
(to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulaƟve revenue 
recognised will not be required). The Group  typically uses the expected value method for esƟmaƟng 
variable consideraƟon, reflecƟng that such contracts have similar characterisƟcs and a range of possible 
outcomes.  

The contract asset or a contract liability is recognised when either party to a contract has performed, 
depending on the relaƟonship between the enƟty’s performance and the customer’s payment. When the 
group  has a present  uncondiƟonal rights to consideraƟon, it is recognised separately as a receivable.  

Interest on investments is booked on a Ɵme proporƟon basis taking into account the amounts  invested 
and the rate of interest.  

 
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same  is established.  
 

Export incenƟves (Duty Drawback Scheme benefits) are accrued in the year when the right to receive the 
same  is established in respect of exports made and are accounted to the extent there is no significant 
uncertainty about the measurability and ulƟmate realizaƟon/ uƟlizaƟon of such benefits/ duty credit.  

 
 Other income is recognised on accrual basis except when realizaƟon of such income is uncertain.  

viii)  Foreign Exchange TransacƟons  
 TransacƟons in currencies other than the Group’s funcƟonal currency (foreign currencies) are recognised 
at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transacƟons. At the end of each reporƟng period, 
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using closing exchange rate prevailing 
on the last day of the reporƟng period.  
 

 Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign  currency are 
reported using the exchange rate at the date of transacƟon.  
 

   Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the period in which they arise.  

ix)    Leases  
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, has noƟfied 
Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the exisƟng lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases, and other interpretaƟons. 
Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-Consolidated balance sheet lease accounƟng model  for lessees.  
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As a lessee  
The Group’s lease assets  primarily consist of lease for land. The Group  assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at incepƟon of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an idenƟfied asset for a period of Ɵme in exchange for consideraƟon. To assess 
whether  a contract conveys the right to control the use of an idenƟfied asset, the Group  assesses whether:  
-  the contract involves the use of an idenƟfied asset;  -

 
the Group

 
has substanƟally all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period

 
of the 

lease and 
 -

 
the Group

 
has the right to direct the use of the asset.

 
 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group

 
recognises a lease liability for all lease arrangements 

in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low 
value leases  and corresponding Right-of-use Asset . For these short-term and low value leases, the Group

 recognises the lease payments as an operaƟng expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

 
 The Right-of-use Assets are iniƟally recognized at cost, which comprises the iniƟal amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any 
iniƟal direct costs less any lease incenƟves. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciaƟon and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

 
 
Right-of-use Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful 
life of the underlying asset. 

 
 
The lease liability is iniƟally measured at amorƟzed cost at the present value of the future lease payments. 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease 
liabiliƟes are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group

 

changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a terminaƟon opƟon.

 
 

x)

  

Employees Benefits

 
 

Post Employment Benefit

 
 

(i)

 

Defined ContribuƟon Plan

 
 

The group's contribuƟon to defined contribuƟon plan paid/payable for the year is charged to the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss.

 
(ii)

 

Defined Benefit Plan

 
 

The liabiliƟes towards defined benefit schemes are determined using the Projected Unit Credit method. 
Actuarial valuaƟon under the Projected Unit Credit method are carried out at the balance sheet date. 
Remeasurement gains/losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumpƟons are 
recognised in the period in which they occur in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). These gains/losses 
which are recognised in OCI are reflected in retained earnings and are not reclassified to Profit or Loss. Past 
service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise it is 
amorƟzed on straight-line basis over the remaining average period unƟl the benefits become vested.
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The reƟrement benefit obligaƟon recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the 
defined benefit obligaƟon as reduced by plan assets.  The plan assets are measured at fair value.  

 
(iii)  Short Term Employee Benefits  
Short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are 
recognised undiscounted during the period employee renders services. These benefits include salaries, 
wages, bonus, performance incenƟves, etc.  

 
(iv)  Other Long Term Employee Benefits  
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months aŌer the end of the period 
in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at 
present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon at the balance sheet date, using Projected Unit Credit 
method.  

 
xi)  Borrowing Costs  

Borrowing costs are interest and ancillary costs incurred in connecƟon with the arrangement of borrowings.  
General and specific borrowing costs aƩributable to acquisiƟon and construcƟon of qualifying assets is 
added to the cost of the assets upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an 
asset that necessarily takes a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for its intended use CapitalisaƟon of 
borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the  Consolidated  Statement of Profit and Loss during extended 
periods when acƟve development acƟvity on the qualifying assets is interrupted. All other borrowing costs 
are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.  

 
xii)  Statement of Cash Flows  

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transacƟons of a non -cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operaƟng cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with invesƟng or financing 
cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into operaƟng, invesƟng and financing acƟviƟes.  

 
xiii)  Income Taxes  

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.  
 

(i)  Current Tax  
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before 
tax’ as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense 
that are taxable or deducƟble in other years and items that are never taxable or deducƟble. The Group’s 
current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substanƟvely enacted by the 
end of the reporƟng period.  
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(ii)  Deferred Tax  

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabiliƟes in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computaƟon of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabiliƟes are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deducƟble temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deducƟble temporary 
differences can be uƟlized.

 
 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporƟng period and reduced 

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax asset to be uƟlized.

 
 

Deferred tax liabiliƟes and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
in which the liability is seƩled or the

 

asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substanƟvely enacted by the end of the reporƟng period.

 
 

The measurement of deferred tax liabiliƟes and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Group

 

expects, at the end of the reporƟng period, to recover or seƩle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabiliƟes.

 
 

(iii)

 

Current and Deferred Tax Expense for the Year

 

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except 
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in 
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity respecƟvely.

 
 

xiv)

 

Financial Instruments

 

Financial assets and Financial liabiliƟes are recognised when the Group

 

becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.

 
 

IniƟal RecogniƟon:

 

Financial assets and Financial liabiliƟes are iniƟally measured at fair value. TransacƟon costs that are directly 
aƩributable to the acquisiƟon or issue of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes (other than financial assets 
and financial liabiliƟes at Fair Value through Profit or Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of 
the financial assets or financial liabiliƟes, as appropriate, on iniƟal recogniƟon. TransacƟon costs directly 
aƩributable to the acquisiƟon of financial assets or financial liabiliƟes at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

 
 

ClassificaƟon and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

 

The Group

 

classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amorƟsed cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of following:

 



 

the enƟty’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

 



 

the contractual cash flow characterisƟcs of the financial assets.
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AmorƟsed Cost:  
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amorƟsed cost, if both of the following condiƟons are 
met:  
 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objecƟve is to hold financial assets in ord er to 

collect contractual cash flows, and  

 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 
Fair Value through OCI:

 A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTOCI, if both of the following condiƟons are met:
 

 
the financial asset is held within a business model whose objecƟve is achieved by both collecƟng 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

 

 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

 
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amorƟsed cost or at 
FVTOCI.

 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their enƟrety at either amorƟsed cost or fair 
value, depending on the classificaƟon of the financial assets.

 Impairment of financial assets:

 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recogniƟon of impairment loss on the following Financial Assets and credit risk exposure:

 

a) Financial Assets and are measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

 
 

Simplified Approach

 

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recogniƟon of impairment loss allowance on Trade Receivables.

 
 

The applicaƟon of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifeƟme ECLs at each reporƟng date, right from its iniƟal 
recogniƟon.

 
 

General Approach

 

For recogniƟon of impairment loss on other Financial Assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that 
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since iniƟal recogniƟon. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifeƟme ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since iniƟal recogniƟon, then the 
group reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

 
 

LifeƟme ECL are the expected credit losses resulƟng from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument. The 12-months ECL is a porƟon of the lifeƟme ECL which results from default

 

events that are possible within 12 months aŌer the reporƟng date.
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As a pracƟcal expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on 
porƞolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over 
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward -looking esƟmates. At every reporƟng 
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking esƟmates are 
analysed. On  that basis, the Group esƟmates provision on trade receivables at the reporƟng date.  

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense (or 
income) in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.   

DerecogniƟon of financial assets:  
The Group  derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right  to  receive  the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substanƟally all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the  asset to another party. If the Group  neither transfers nor retains substanƟally all the risks and rewards 
of ownership and conƟnues to control the transferred asset, the Group  recognises its retained interest in 
the asset and an associated liability for  amounts it may have to pay. If the Group  retains substanƟally all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group  conƟnues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds re ceived.  

On derecogniƟon of a financial asset in its enƟrety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the sum of the consideraƟon received and receivable and the cumulaƟve gain or loss that had been 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such 
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.  
On derecogniƟon of a financial asset other than in its enƟrety (e.g. when the Group  retains an opƟon to 
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group  allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial 
asset between the part it conƟnues to recognise under conƟnuing involvement, and the part it no longer 
recognises on the basis of the relaƟve fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference 
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the 
consideraƟon received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulaƟve gain or loss allocated to it that 
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would 
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulaƟve gain  or loss 
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that conƟnues to 
be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relaƟve fair values of those parts.  

ClassificaƟon and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabiliƟes:  
Financial liabiliƟes are classified as either financial liabiliƟes at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabiliƟes’.  

Financial LiabiliƟes at FVTPL:  
Financial liabiliƟes are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated 
upon iniƟal recogniƟon as FVTPL.  
Gains or Losses on liabiliƟes held for trading are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss.  
 



 181

 
 

Diamines and Chemicals Limited
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905

Other Financial LiabiliƟes  at amorƟsed cost:  
Other financial liabiliƟes (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured 
at amorƟsed cost using the effecƟve interest method.  
The effecƟve interest method is a method of calculaƟng the amorƟsed cost of a financial liability and of 
allocaƟng interest expense over the relevant period. The effecƟve interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts esƟmated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effecƟve interest rate, tran sacƟon costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount 
on iniƟal recogniƟon.  

 
 
 
 

Financial liabiliƟes and equity instruments:  
  ClassificaƟon as debt or equity:  

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group  are classified as either financial liabiliƟes   or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definiƟons of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument.  

  Equity instruments:  
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an enƟty aŌer 
deducƟng all of its liabiliƟes.  
Equity instruments issued by a Group  are recognised at the proceeds received.  

 
DerecogniƟon of financial liabiliƟes:  
The Group  derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligaƟons are discharged or cancelled or 
expired. The Group  also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows 
under the modified terms are substanƟally different.  

 
Offseƫng:  
Financial assets and financial liabiliƟes are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recogni sed amounts and there is an intenƟon 
to seƩle on a net basis or realise the asset and seƩle the liability simultaneously.  

xv)  DerivaƟve Financial Instruments  
The Group  holds derivaƟve financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its 
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risks.  

 
DerivaƟves are iniƟally recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into. Subsequent t o 
iniƟal recogniƟon, these contracts are measured at fair value at the end of each reporƟng perio d and 
changes are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.  
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xvi)  Segment ReporƟng  

The Group  idenƟfies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the 
internal organisaƟon and management structure. The operaƟng segments are the segments for which 
separate financial informaƟon is available and for which operaƟng profit / loss amounts are evaluated 
regularly by the Chief OperaƟng Decision Making Body  (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and in 
assessing performance.  

 
The accounƟng policies adopted for segment reporƟng are in line with the accounƟng  policies of the Group.  

 
Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabiliƟes have been idenƟfied to 
segments on the basis of their relaƟonship to the operaƟng acƟviƟes of the segment.  

 Revenue, expenses, assets and liabiliƟes which relate to the Group
 

as a whole and are not allocable to 
segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue/expenses/ assets/liabiliƟes” 
respecƟvely.

 
 xvii)

 
Earnings Per Share

 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) aŌer tax with
 

the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing  
the profit / (loss) aŌer tax  as adjusted for

 
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net 

of any aƩributable taxes) relaƟng to the diluƟve potenƟal equity shares, with
 

the aggregate of weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and

 
the weighted average 

number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all  di luƟve potenƟal equity 
shares.

 
 
 xviii)

 
Dividend

 Provision is made in the accounts for the amount of any final dividend declared on the date of its 

  
approval 

by the shareholders. Interim dividends, if any, are recorded as a liability on the date of its declaraƟon by the 
respecƟve companies’

 

board of directors.

 
 xix)

 

Research and Development

 Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to the

 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss in the year in which it is incurred. Capital expenditure on research and development is considered as 
an addiƟon to Property, Plant & Equipment/Intangible Assets.

 
   

xx)

 

Provisions, ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and ConƟngent Assets

 
  

Provisions

 
  

Provisions are recognised when,

 

based on Group’s present obligaƟon (legal or construcƟve) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that the Group

 

will be required to seƩle the obligaƟon and a reliable esƟmate can 
be made of the amount of the obligaƟon.
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The amount recognised as a provision is the best esƟmate of the consideraƟon required to seƩle the present 
obligaƟon at the end of the reporƟng period, taking into account the risks and uncertainƟes surrounding 
the obligaƟon. When a provision is measured using the cash flows esƟmated to seƩle the present obligaƟon, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the Ɵme value of money is 
material).  

 
 
 
 

ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and Assets  
ConƟngent liabiliƟes are disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, 
unless possibility of an ouƞlow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.  

 
 

ConƟngent assets are disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

 
 3.

 
CriƟcal

 
AccounƟng

 
Judgments, EsƟmates, AssumpƟons and Key Sources of EsƟmaƟon Uncertainty

 The preparaƟon of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
esƟmates and assumpƟons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabiliƟes, and 
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of conƟngent liabiliƟes at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements. EsƟmates and assumpƟons are conƟnuously evaluated and are based on management’s 
experience and other factors, including expectaƟons of future

 
events that are believed to be reasonable under 

the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumpƟons and esƟmates could result in outcomes that require 
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabiliƟes affected in future periods.

 
 Key esƟmates, assumpƟons and judgements 

 In parƟcular, the Group

 

has idenƟfied the following areas where significant judgements, esƟmates and 
assumpƟons are required. Further informaƟon on each of these areas and how they impact the various 
accounƟng policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. Changes in esƟmates are accounted for prospecƟvely.

  
 
(i)

 

Income taxes

 
 

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes , including amount 
expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax posiƟons as also to determine the amount of deferred 
tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely Ɵming and the level of future taxable profits.

 
 

(ii)

 

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible Assets

 
Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets are depreciated/amorƟsed over their esƟmated useful 
lives, aŌer taking into account esƟmated residual value. The useful lives and residual values are based 
on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anƟcipated technological 
changes or commercial obsolescence. Management reviews the esƟmated useful lives and residual 
values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciaƟon/amorƟsaƟon to be 
recorded during any reporƟng period. The depreciaƟon/amorƟsaion for future periods is revised, if there 
are significant changes from previous esƟmates and accordingly, the unamorƟsed/depreciable amount 
is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

 
 
 
 



 
(iii)  ConƟngent LiabiliƟes  

In the normal course of business, ConƟngent LiabiliƟes may arise from liƟgaƟon and other claims against 
the Group. PotenƟal liabiliƟes that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are very difficult to 
quanƟfy reliably are treated as conƟngent liabiliƟes. Such liabiliƟes are disclosed in the Notes but are not 
recognised. PotenƟal liabiliƟes that are remote are neither recognised nor disclosed as conƟngent 
liability. The management decides whether the maƩers need  to be classified as 'remote', 'possible' or 
'probable' based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences etc.  
 

(iv)  EvaluaƟon of Indicators for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment  
The evaluaƟon of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external 
factors (significant decline  in  asset’s value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) 
and internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor economic performance of the 
idle assets  etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable amount of the Property, Plant and 
Equipment  and such assessment is based on esƟmates, future plans as envisaged by Group.  

 

(v)  Actuarial ValuaƟon:  
The determinaƟon of Group’s liability towards defined benefit obligaƟon to employees is made through 
independent actuarial valuaƟon including determinaƟon of amounts to be recognised in the income 
statement and in other comprehensive income. Such valuaƟon depends  upon assumpƟons determined 
aŌer taking into account inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon and other relevant factors such as supply and  
demand factors in the employment market.  

   
(vi)  Allowance for impairment of trade receivables  

The expected credit loss is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical 
experience. The receivables are assessed on an individual basis assessed for impairment collecƟvely, 
depending on their significance. Moreover, trade receivables are wriƩen off on a case -to-case basis if 
deemed not to be collectable on the assessment of the underlying facts and circumstances.  

 
(vii)  Provisions  

Provisions and liabiliƟes are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a 
future ouƞlow  of funds resulƟng from past operaƟons or events and the amount of cash ouƞlow can be 
reliably esƟmated. The Ɵming of recogniƟon and quanƟficaƟon of the liability requires the applicaƟon of 
judgement to exisƟng facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of 
provisions and liabiliƟes are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and 
circumstances.  
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(viii)  Revenue RecogniƟon:  
The Group’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer product s and power units to the  
customers. The Group  assesses the products and power units promised in a contract and idenƟfies 
disƟnct performance obligaƟons, if any,  in the contract. IdenƟficaƟon of disƟnct performance obligaƟon 
involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit 
independently from such deliverables. Judgement is also required to determine the transacƟon price for 
the contract. The Group  exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obl igaƟon is 
saƟsfied at a point in Ɵme or over Ɵme. The Group  considers indicators such as to who controls the asset 
as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate 
use of such product, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by 
the customer, etc. The judgment is also exercised in determining the variable consideraƟon, if any, 
involved in transacƟon price and also in esƟmaƟng the impact of customer’s right to return the goods, 
based on prior experience. The group  has exercised judgments and concluded that it has only one 
performance obligaƟon from each of its contract with customers and it is being saƟsfied at a point in 
Ɵme.  
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021

4B. Capital work-in-progress

 ParƟculars 

Opening Balance 115.83                   -                   
Add : AddiƟon during the year 417.06                   -                   

 Less : Transferred during the year 517.50                   -                   
Total 15.39                      -                  

4C. Intangible assets

Gross Block
     As at 31st March, 2020 (Refer Note 44) -                         -                  
     As at 1st April, 2020 1.84                       1.84                
     AddiƟons 2.43                       2.43                
     DeducƟons/Adjustments -                         -                  
     As at 31st March, 2021 4.27                       4.27                
Accumulated AmorƟsaƟon
     As at 31st March, 2020 (Refer Note 44) -                         -                  
     As at 1st April, 2020 0.59                       0.59                
      Charge for the year 1.01                       1.01                
      DeducƟons/Adjustments -                         -                  
     As at 31st March, 2021 1.59                       1.59                

     Net Block 
     Balance as at 31st March, 2020 (Refer Note 44) -                          -                  
     Balance as at 31st March, 2021 2.68                       2.68                

 Total 

As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2021

ParƟculars
 SoŌware & 

Licenses 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

                                                           

1. The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2016 
Note :

(transiƟon date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the 
transiƟon date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.
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5. Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments in other EnƟƟes
(at FVTOCI)
Long Term Investments in Quoted SecuriƟes

 87,950 Equity Shares of Sintex Industries Limited  
 (Fully paid up) (Face Value    1 per share) 2.95                       -                  
2,37,950 Equity Shares of Sintex PlasƟcs Technology Limited                                                                                                
(Fully paid up) (Face Value    1 per share) 7.85                       -                  

232 Equity Shares of Alkyl Amines Chemicals Limited            
(Fully paid up) (Face Value    5 per share) 13.22                     -                  

10,847 Equity Shares of Deepak Nitrite Limited  
(Fully paid up) (Face Value    2 per share) 179.68                   -                  

6,500 Equity Shares of P.I. Industries Limited              
(Fully paid up) (Face Value    1 per share) 146.78                   -                  

2,500 Equity Shares of Reliance Industries Limited                                                                
(Fully paid up) (Face Value    10 per share) 50.08                     -                  

21,000 Equity Shares of UPL Limited                               
(Fully paid up) (Face Value    2 per share) 134.79                   -                  

6,500 Equity Shares of GHCL Limited                                                      
(Fully paid up) (Face Value    10 per share) 14.92                     -                  
37,220  Equity Shares of Meghmani Organics Limited            
(Fully paid up) (Face Value    1 per share) 43.40                     -                  

Total 593.67                   -                  
Aggregate cost of quoted investments 275.08                   -                  
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 593.67 -                  

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

As at 
31st March, 2020

 ParƟculars 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

₹

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021



6. Other Financial Assets (non-current)

 (Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated) 
 Security Deposits 3.16                       -                  

Total 3.16                        -                   

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020
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7. Other Non-current Assets

 (Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated) 
 Capital advances                       18.33                     -   
 Capital Advance - Advance for ROU Asset*                    712.14                     -   
Prepaid Expenses                       13.48                     -   
Balances with Government AuthoriƟes
 -CST                         0.50                     -   
 -Income Tax (Refund Receivable)                    129.20                     -   
 -Income Tax paid under protest                       83.92                     -   

Total 957.57                   -                   

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 

* Sale cerƟficate of Land has been received from official liquidator - Exclusive Fibers Limited (in liquidaƟon) under IBC. 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

 As at 
31st March, 2020

The possession is with official liquidator and the same will be passed on to the company in F.Y. 2021-22,
 there by enabling the company to establish right of control over Land. This includes      2.94 Lakhs
 Security Deposit paid for the same.

₹

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021



8. Inventories*

 ParƟculars 

Raw Materials 885.79                   -                   
Raw Materials - Goods in transit 18.14                      -                   
Work in Progress 86.93                      -                   
Finished goods 227.26                   -                   
Finished goods - Goods in transit 1.05                        -                   
Packing materials 5.42                        -                   
Fuel 11.31                      -                   
Stores and Spares 18.27                      -                   

Total 1,254.17                -                   

For hypothecaƟon details refer Note-19.

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020

* ValuaƟon of inventories are done as per point no. (vi) of significant accounƟng policies (Note-2).
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9. Trade Receivables

Unsecured, Considered good
Others 943.25                -                
Doubƞul Receivables 7.61                    -                
Less:- Allowance for Doubƞul Receivables 7.61                    -                

Total 943.25                   -                   

Movement in allowance for Doubƞul Debts

ParƟculars
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
Balance at the beginning of the year -                          -                   
Add:- Allowance loss Recognised 7.61                        -                   
Less:- Reversed during the year -                          -                   
Less:- Amount WriƩen off as bed Debts -                          -                   
Balance at the End of the year 7.61                        -                   

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

 As at 
31st March, 2020

 As at 
31st March, 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021



10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Balances with Banks
  In current account 49.67                  -               

Cash on hand 0.30                    -               
Total 49.97                      -                  

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
As at 

31st March, 2020
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11. Other Bank Balances 

 Other bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 
months up to 12 months 

3,111.25             -                

 Accrued Interest on FD 107.10                -                
Earmarked bank balances* 42.81                  -                

Total 3,261.16                -                   

12.  Financial Assets : Others

 Wind Farm Income Receivable 4.72                    -                
 Insurance Receivable 3.97                    -                

Total 8.69                        -                   

13. Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Tax (Net of provisions) 48.72                  -                
Total 48.72                      -                   

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 

 *These balances represents unclaimed dividend account which is earmarked for payment of 
dividend and cannot be used for any other purpose. 

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021
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14. Other Current Assets

 Unsecured, considered good 
Balances with Government AuthoriƟes 5.86

                    
-

               Prepaid Expenses 61.12
                  

-
               Advances to vendors 18.22

                  
-

               Employee Advance 0.11

                    

-

               Others 10.25

                  

-

               
Total 95.56

                      

-

                  15. Equity Share Capital

 ParƟculars 

Authorised
17,550,000 Equity shares of   10/- each 1,755.00

               

-

                 

Total 1,755.00

               

-

                 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
9,783,240

 

Equity Shares    10/- each 978.32

                   

-

                 

Total 978.32

                   

-

                 

ParƟculars No. of Shares 
Share Capital
(    in Lakhs )

As at 1st April,2020 9,783,240

             

978.32

           

AddiƟons/(ReducƟons) -

                         

-

                 

As at 31st March,,2021 9,783,240

             

978.32

           

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company:

Name of the Shareholder No. of shares % Holding
Amit M. Mehta 1,237,726

             

12.65%
Cherry A Mehta 1,053,278

             

10.77%
Finorga India Pvt Ltd 492,067

                

5.03%
Perfo Chem (India) Pvt Ltd 962,179

                

9.83%

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 

As at 31st March, 2021

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2020

 ReconciliaƟon of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of 
reporƟng period is as under: 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

 As at 
31st March, 2020

₹

₹

₹

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021
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Right, Preferences and restricƟons aƩached to Shares

16. Other Equity

 ParƟculars 

General Reserve 517.12

                

-

               

Retained Earnings 6,744.40

             

-

               

Equity instrument carried through other comprehensive income (OCI) 258.85

                

-

               

Total 7,520.37

               

-

                 

ParƟculars relaƟng to Other Equity

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 

General Reserve
   Balance at the beginning of the year 517.12

                

-

               

   AddiƟons/DeducƟons during the year -

                      

-

               

   Balance at the end of the year 517.12

                   

-

                 

Retained Earnings 
   Balance at the beginning of the year 5,037.98

             

-

               

   Add: Net Profit for the year 2,099.49

             

-

               

Add: (1.74)

                   

-

               

                 
-

               

    Less: Payments of dividends (Final) (365.67)
               

-
               

    Less: Tax on Dividends  (Final) (25.66) -

     Add:- Gain/(Loss) on sale of Investment (Net of Taxes) (21.52)                               

 

   Balance at the end of the year 6,744.40

               
-

                 

 Equity instruments carried through other comprehensive 
income (OCI) 
   Balance at the beginning of the year (15.45)

                 
-

               

    Fair value gain/(loss) on investments in equity instruments 295.83
                

-
               

   Balance at the end of the year 258.85                   -                 
Total 7,520.37               -                 

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

(iii) The Board of Directors of the holding company in their meeƟng held on 18th May, 2021 have
recommended a final dividend of 5 per Equity Share to be approved by the shareholders in the
ensuing general meeƟng.On approval, this will result in an ouƞlow of  489.16 Lakhs.

As at 
31st March, 2020

(i) The Company has only one class of shares i.e. equity shares having par value of   10each. Each
holder of equity shares is enƟtled to one vote per share. 

(ii) In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟtled to
receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal
amounts. The distribuƟon will be in proporƟon to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

₹

₹

₹

As at 
31st March, 2020

Other comprehensive income arising from re-reasurement      
of defined benefit obligaƟon, net of income tax

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021
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DescripƟon of the nature and purpose of Other Equity

17. Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits
   Compensated absences 36.20                  -               

Total 36.20                      -                  

18. Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes (Net)

Deferred tax LiabiliƟes 392.65                -               
Less: Deferred tax Assets (33.97)                 -               

Total 358.68                   -                  

2020-21
Major Components and ReconciliaƟon of Deferred Tax (Assets)/LiabiliƟes

ParƟculars Opening Balance
Recognised in 
Profit or Loss

Recognised in other
 Comprehensive Income Closing Balance

  Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets                    453.72             (99.28)                         -   354.44                
   Equity Instruments through FVTOCI                             -                       -                    38.21 38.21                   
  Provision for Provident Fund liability                       (2.91)                 0.40                         -   (2.52)                   

   Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis                     (31.12)                 2.93                   (0.59) (28.78)                 
  Provision for Doubƞul debts                             -                 (1.92)                         -   (1.92)                   
  Provision for slow moving and obsolete items                       (1.21)                 0.44                         -   (0.76)                   

Total                   418.49             (97.42)                  37.63                 358.68 

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
As at 

31st March, 2020

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

General Reserve : The General Reserve comprises of transfer of profits from retained
earnings for appropriaƟon purposes. The reserve can be distributed/uƟlised by the
Company in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned Ɵll date
and is net of amount transferred to other reserves such as general reserves etc. amount
distributed as dividends and related dividend distribuƟon taxes.

Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income : This represents
cumulaƟve gains / (losses) arising on the measurement of equity instruments at Fair Value 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

 through Other Comprehensive Income.

As at 
31st March, 2020

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021

and
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19. Borrowings

Loan Repayable on Demand
(i) Secured
  - Cash Credit from bank* 30.24                  -                 

Total 30.24                      -                  

20. Trade Payables

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises* 12.62                  -               
Others 273.91                -               

Total 286.53                   -                  

 As at 
31st March, 2020

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 

Micro, Small and Medium enterprises have been idenƟfied by the Company on the basis of 
the informaƟon available. The relevant disclosures are given below :
* Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, is based on the informaƟon available with the Parent
Company regarding the status of registraƟon of such vendors under the said Act, as per
the inƟmaƟon received from them on requests made by the Parent Company. Payment
made to suppliers beyond the due date during the year was     Nil. No interest during the 

*The Company has availed fund based working capital faciliƟes viz.,Cash Credit Facility and
non-fund based working faciliƟes from Bankers viz., Bank Guarantees and LeƩer of Credits,
which are secured by hypothecaƟon charge on Inventories, book debts and all other
current assets of the company, as primary security and registered mortgage charge over 
 land & building and hypothecaƟon charge on plant & machinery as collateral security.

 ParƟculars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020

₹

year has been paid to Micro and Small Enterprises as there were no delayed payments. 
Further, interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end is    Nil.₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021



 
 
 

21. Other Financial LiabiliƟes

Forward Contract Liability 1.24                    -                
Unclaimed dividends 42.81                  -                
Payable for Capital Goods 0.97                    -                
Employee Bonus / ExgraƟa Payable 29.76                  -                
Salary Payable 38.68                  -                
Outstanding LiabiliƟes Expenses 15.72

                  
-

               Commission Payable to Directors 51.90
                  

-
               Other Payables 6.34

                    
-

               Total 187.42
                   

-
                 

As at 
31st March, 2020

 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 
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22. Other Current LiabiliƟes

Liability for Statutory Payments 29.62                             -                             

 
Contract Liability - Advance from Customers 8.19                                -                             

 
Total 37.81                                -                                

 23. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits 
   Gratuity 6.34                                -                             

     Compensated absences 22.92                             -                             

 
Others
  Others 13.04                             -                             

 Total 42.30                                -                                

 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 ParƟculars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 ParƟculars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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24. Revenue From OperaƟons

Sale of products 
 Manufactured Goods 6,209.64

                          

-
                                   Sale of Power generaƟon from windmill 59.61

                                
-

                                  

Other OperaƟng Revenue
  Sale of Scrap 10.60                                -                                  

  Duty Drawback Scheme benefits 1.86                                  -                                  

Total 6,281.71
                          

-
                                  

25. Other Income

Interest on Fixed and Other Deposits 189.87

                             

-

                                  

Insurance Income 3.97

                                  

-

                                  

Dividend Income 61.28

                                

-

                                  

Exchange gains/(losses) on foreign currency 0.08

                                  

-

                                  

Balances / Provisions wriƩen back (Net) 0.04

                                  

-

                                  

Total 255.24

                             

-

                                  

26. Cost of materials consumed

Raw Materials Consumed :
  Opening Stock 239.05

                             

-

                                  

  Add: Purchases 2,165.92

                          

-

                                  

  Less: Closing Stock 903.93

                             

-

                                  
 

1,501.04

                          

-

                                  

Packing Materials : 
  Opening Stock 4.91

                                  

-

                                  

  Add: Purchases 139.49

                             

-

                                  

  Less: Closing Stock 5.42

                                  

-

                                  

138.98

                             

-

                                  

Total 1,640.02

                          

-

                                  

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

For the year ended 
31st March,2020

 For the year ended 
31st March,2020 

 For the year ended 
31st March,2020 

 ParƟculars 
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( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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28. Employee Benefits Expense

 Salaries, Wages and Bonus * 628.17

                             

-

                                  
 ContribuƟon to Provident and Other Funds 60.89

                                

-

                                  
 Staff Welfare Expenses 47.63

                                

-

                                  Total 736.69
                             

-
                                   *  Including Commission to ExecuƟve Chairman & Director 

29. Finance Costs

 Interest on 
  Cash Credit FaciliƟes 0.06

                                  
-

                                  

   Others 0.34
                                  

-
                                  

 Other Borrowing Costs 
  Bank Charges 4.07

                                  

-
                                  

  Processing Charges 3.07

                                  

-

                                  

Total 7.54

                                  

-

                                  

30. DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon Expenses

DepreciaƟon on PPE (Including Right-of-use Assets) 177.54

                             

-

                                  

AmorƟsaƟon of Intangible Assets 1.01

                                  

-

                                  

Total 178.55 -

                                  

 For the year ended 
31st March,2020 

 For the year ended 
31st March,2020 

 For the year ended 
31st March,2020 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021  ParƟculars 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 

 ParƟculars 

( in Lakhs)

 

₹

( in Lakhs) ₹

( in Lakhs)

 

₹

27. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-Progress

 Finished Goods 
 Closing Stock 228.31                             -                                  

 Less: Opening Stock 232.26
                             

-
                                  

                              (3.95) -
                                  

 Work in Progress 
 Closing Stock 86.93

                                

-

                                  

 Less: Opening Stock 196.19

                             

-

                                  

                          (109.26) -

                                  

Total                            113.21 -

                                  

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March,2020  ParƟculars 

( in Lakhs)

 

₹

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021
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Research and Development Expenses 1.32                                  -                                  

Travelling and Motor Car Expenses 9.14                                  -                                  

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note (ii) below) 42.06                                -                                  

Factory Expenses 15.44
                                

-
                                  

Material Handling 54.64
                                

-
                                  

Selling Expenses 56.91
                                

-
                                  

House Keeping Expenses 12.07
                                

-
                                  

Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment 133.20
                             

-
                                  

Loss on Deposit/Advances 50.00

                                

-

                                  

DonaƟon Exp 25.00

                                

-

                                  

Miscellaneous Expenses** 37.71

                                

-

                                  

Total 1,280.43

                          

-

                                  

(i) Payment to Auditors (Fees excluding tax):

ParƟculars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the year ended 

31st March,2020 
(a) Statutory Auditors

                                  

      - As Auditor 7.95

                                  

-

                                  

      - For TaxaƟon Service 1.90

                                  

-

                                  

      - CerƟficaƟon 1.16

                                  

-

                                  

(b) Cost Auditors

                                  

      - As Auditor 0.45

                                  

-

                                  

Total 11.46 -

                                  

* IncorporaƟon Fees relates to Wholly owned Subsidiary (DACL Fine Chem Limited) which was incorpora ted as on 30th July, 2020
** None of the item individually accounts for more than    10,00,000 or 1% of revenue whichever is hig her.

( in Lakhs)

 

₹

₹

31. Other Expenses

ConsumpƟon of stores and spare parts 80.53 -

                                  

Power and Fuel 364.67

                             

-

                                  

Rent 9.87

                                  

-

                                  
Repair and Maintenance
    -Buildings 43.32

                                

-

                                  
    -Machinery 84.54

                                

-

                                  
    -Others 8.84

                                  

-

                                  
Insurance 30.18

                                

-

                                  Rates and Taxes 4.39

                                  

-

                                  IncorporaƟon Fees* 2.57
                                  

-
                                  Legal and Professional Fees

    -R&D Consultancy fees 55.15
                                

-
                                      -Others 101.18

                             
-

                                  Payment to Auditors (Refer note (i) below) 11.46
                                

-
                                  Director's Siƫng fees 9.92                                  -                                  

Commission to Non ExecuƟve Directors 7.59                                  -                                  
PrinƟng and StaƟonery 2.76                                  -                                  
Security Charges 25.97                                -                                  

 For the year ended 
31st March,2020 

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 ParƟculars 

( in Lakhs)

 

₹
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2. The disaggregaƟon of revenues is as under:

Nature
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenues from sale of goods 6,209.64                          -                                  

Revenues from sale of power units 59.61                                -                                  

Other OperaƟng Revenue
  -Revenues from sale of scrap 10.60

                                
-

                                  

  -Duty Drawback Scheme benefits 1.86
                                  

-
                                  

Total 6,281.71
                          

-
                                  

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Sale of goods 6,055.96
                          

-
                                  

153.68
                          

-
                             

Sale of power units 59.61
                                

-
                                  

-
                                

-
                             

Other OperaƟng Revenue 12.46

                                

-

                                  

-

                                

-

                             

Total 6,128.03

                          

-

                                  

153.68

                          

-

                             

ParƟculars          Receivables         Contract Assets     Contract LiabiliƟes

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,248.75

                          

-

                                  

5.59

                               

AddiƟons / (Adjustments) (305.50)

                            

-

                                  

2.60

                               

Balance as at the end of the year 943.25

                             

-

                                  

8.19

                              

 
DomesƟc

The revenues are further disaggregated into revenues from domesƟc as well as export market as follows:

3.  The movement in Company’s receivables, contract assets and contract liabiliƟes are as under:

Exports

1. The Company derives revenues from sale of goods, power units and scrap from its contracts with  customers.
 The revenues have been disclosed in Note No.24 “Revenue from OperaƟons”.

 33. Disclosures as per Ind AS- 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers": 

Nature

( in Lakhs)
 
₹

( in Lakhs)

 
₹

( in Lakhs)

 

₹

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: 42.06 Lakhs 
(b) Amount spent in cash during the year on:

ParƟculars In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

(i)ConstrucƟon/acquisiƟon of any Asset -
                                    

-
                                  

-
                                

(ii)On purposes other than above 42.06 -
                                  

42.06
                            

(ii) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) acƟviƟes:

ParƟculars  For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
31st March,2020 

  - Revenue Expenditure 163.76
                             

-
                                  

Total 163.76 -

                                  

32.Disclosureof theaggregateamountof researchanddevelopmentexpenditurerecognisedas an expense during the period - Research and Development (R&D) : 

The Company has in-House R&D unit at its registered office and is registered with the Department of ScienƟfic  & Industrial Research (DSIR)
 Ministry of Science & Technology, New Delhi.                                                                                                                          

( in Lakhs)
 
₹

₹

( in Lakhs)

 

₹
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34. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 on "Income Taxes"

Current Tax 695.55

                           

-

                                        
Earlier Year                           (117.11) -

                                        
Deferred Tax (97.42)

                            

-

                                        
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 481.02

                           

-

                                        
Income tax relaƟng to Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement of Defined Benefits Plans                                  (0.59)                                            -   
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income                               38.21 

Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 37.63
                                                                     

B. ReconciliaƟon of Income Tax Expense/(Income) and AccounƟng Profit mulƟplied by domesƟc tax rate applicable in India

b. Other Comprehensive Income SecƟon
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

A. Components of Tax Expenses/(Income)

a. Profit or Loss SecƟon
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

( in Lakhs)
 
₹

( in Lakhs) ₹

Profit before Tax 2580.51                        -                                        

Corporate Tax rate as per Income Tax Act, 1961 25.17% -                                        

Tax on AccounƟng Profit 649.46
                           

-
                                        

Effect of income exempt from tax (15.42)
                            

Effect of expenses/provisions not deducƟble in determining taxable profit 29.53
                             

-
                                        

Effect of concessions (2.87)
                              

-
                                        

Effect of change in tax rate due to switch to new tax regime (56.79)

                            

-

                                        

Others (5.77)

                              

Tax adjustment of earlier years (117.11)

                          

-

                                        

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 481.02

                           

-

                                        

ParƟculars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

( in Lakhs)
 
₹

                                           -   

-

-

-

5. The Company has applied pracƟcal expedient referred to in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and accordingly, has not disclosed
informaƟon related to remaining performance obligaƟons. No consideraƟon from contracts with customers is excluded from the
remaining performance obligaƟons.

The revenue of 5.59 lakhs has been recognised from the carried forward contract liabiliƟes balance as at the beginning of the  year. 

4.The revenue from contracts with customers for the year includes variable consideraƟon (volume discounts) of 6.40 lakhs, 
which has been deducted from the transacƟon price. The company uses expected value method in measuring the variable
consideraƟon. There were no constraints in esƟmaƟng variable consideraƟon.

₹

₹
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For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Profits available to equity shareholders (₹ in Lakhs) 2,099.49                          -                                    

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 9,783,240                        -                                    

Earnings Per Share of     10 each
- Basic & Diluted (in   ) 21.46                                -                                    

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

                                 44.68 
-

                                    

44.68
                                

-
                                    

                                   6.40 
                                   6.40 

-
-

                                   
                                   

 
 

                              175.74 -

                                    

                                 66.34 -

                                    

(iii)Provident Fund                                  29.50 -
                                    

271.58

                              

-

                                    

322.66

                              

-

                                    

103.39 -

                                    

Total (c)
Total (a+b+c)

(B) Commitments:
(a) EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances)

37. Leases
The Company has taken certain warehouses and vehicles on rent for its business operaƟons under leave and
license agreements and rent agreements respecƟvely. These are generally not non-cancellable agreements and
they are for the periods not exceeding 12 months under the said agreements. The said agreements are
renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. 

35. In accordance with Ind AS - 33, "Earnings Per Share", the Basic and Diluted EPS have been calculated as
under:                                                                                                                

ParƟculars

36. ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)                     

ParƟculars

(A) ConƟngent liabiliƟes not provided for in respect of:
(a) Guarantees issued by the bankers on behalf of the
Company

Total (a)

(b)Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 

                                                                                                Total (b)                                                                                                             

(c) Pending LiƟgaƟons:
(i)Income Tax
(ii)Service Tax/Excise 

₹
₹

( in Lakhs)

 
₹

Note:-
The Holding Company has decided to opt for the new tax regime announced by the Government of India and avail the
benefit of SecƟon 115BAA of the Income Tax Act w.e.f. 01/04/2019. This provides for the concessional tax rate of 22% plus
applicable surcharge and cess (totaling to 25.17% ) from 1st April, 2019, without claiming the major tax exempƟons /
incenƟves which were availed Ɵll  previous financial year.

During the year the Income Tax expense and deferred tax expense for the year ended 31st March, 2021 include the effect of
the net benefit of secƟon 115BAA opted for by the Holding Company from 1st April, 2019.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021
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38. Employee Benefits

A. Defined ContribuƟon Plans
i. Provident Fund
ii. SuperannuaƟon Fund

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

ParƟculars For the  year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

ContribuƟon to Provident Fund 32.91 -                                  
SuperannuaƟon Fund 4.25 -                                  

Total 37.16                              -                                  

B. Defined Benefit Plans

The provision towards Compensated Absences is as under:

ParƟculars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020
Non-Current liability 36.20 -

                                  

Current liability 22.92 -

                                  

Total 59.12

                              

-

                                  

 The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:

The Provident Fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the SuperannuaƟon Fund is administered
by the LIC of India as applicable for all eligible employees. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the reƟrement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. These funds are recognised by 

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. Under the gratuity plan, the eligible employees are
enƟtled to post reƟrement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service unƟl the reƟrement age of 58, subject
to a payment ceiling of 20 lakhs. The benefit vests upon compleƟon of five years of conƟnuous service as per "The Payment
of Gratuity Act" and once vested it is payable to the employee on reƟrement or on terminaƟon of employment. The Company
makes annual contribuƟon to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance CorporaƟon of India through its
Gratuity Trust Fund.

The obligaƟons under the compensated absences plan have been determined by Independent Actuary using Projected Unit
Credit (PUC) method. Compensated absences is payable to all eligible employees on separaƟon from the Company due to
death, reƟrement, superannuaƟon or resignaƟon. At the rate of daily salary, as per current accumu laƟon of leave days.

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

( in Lakhs)

 

₹

 the Income Tax AuthoriƟes.

₹

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended  
31st March, 2020 

Lease Payments - Rent 9.87

                                  

-

                                    
21.97

                                

-

                                    

Lease Payments recognised during the year:                                                                                  

ParƟculars

Bus and Car Rent Payments (Included in note no. 28 under 
Staff Welfare Expenses)

The company has adopted Ind AS 116 w.e.f. 1st April 2019. The Company has elected to apply recogniƟon
exempƟon permiƩed under the said Ind AS and accounted these leases as short-term leases. Hence, the
payments in relaƟon to these leases are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

( in Lakhs) ₹
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C. The Company offers the following employee benefits scheme to its employees
a. Gratuity  (Funded through annual payment to Life insurance corporaƟon of India)
b. Compensated absences encashment (Unfunded)

a.  Gratuity

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
i. Discount Rate (per annum) 6.05%

6.05%

-

                                  
ii. Rate of increase in compensaƟon levels (per annum) 6.00% -

                                  
iii. Expected Rate of Return on Assets -

                                  iv. AƩriƟon Rate 2.00% -

                                  

v. Mortality rate during the employment

 Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) 

Table

-

                                  

vi. Actuarial ValuaƟon Method
Projected Unit Credit  

Method
-

                                  
vii. ReƟrement Age (years) 58 -

                                  
viii.

ix.

x.

The provision towards the Gratuity is as under:

ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Non-Current liability -                                  
Current liability 6.34 -                                  

Total 6.34                                -                                  

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined aŌer considering several applicable factors such as the composiƟon
of the plan assets, investment strategy, market scenario, etc.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securiƟes as at the balance sheet date for
the esƟmated term of the obligaƟons.
The esƟmate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon, increments and
other relevant factors.

ValuaƟons in respect of above have been carried out by independent actuary, as at the balance sheet  date, based on the  following

ParƟculars
ValuaƟon as at

( in Lakhs) ₹

-

Salary Risk :

Investment Risk :

Mortality Risk :

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporƟng period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will
create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relaƟvely balanced mix of investments in government securiƟes,
and other debt instruments.

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for the life Ɵme and payable Ɵll reƟrement age o nly, plan does not have any 
longevity risk.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an
increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Gratuity is defined benefit plan and Company is exposed to following Risks:

Interest Risk :
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government SecuriƟes Rate will increase the present value of the liability
requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on 
duraƟon of asset.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021



Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 2.75

                                

-

                                  

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the  Year 115.71

                           

-

                                  

iii. Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet
(Present Value of Benefit ObligaƟon at the end of the  Year ) (122.05)

                          

-

                                  

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the  Year 115.71

                           

-

                                  

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (6.34)

                              

-

                                  

Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet (6.34)

                              

-

                                  

iv. Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss for the Current Year
Current Service Cost 15.91

                              

-

                                  

Net Interest Cost 4.06

                                

-

                                  

Expenses Recognised 19.97

                              

-

                                  

v. Expenses Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI) for Current  Year
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on ObligaƟon For the Year 5.08

                                

-

                                  

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (2.75)

                              

-

                                  

Net (Income)/Expenses For the Period Recognised in OCI 2.33

                                

-
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vi. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments : From the Fund 
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of ReporƟng
1st Following Year 61.34 -

                                  

2nd Following Year 5.91 -

                                  

3rd Following Year 15.01 -

                                  

4th Following Year 9.69 -

                                  

5th Following Year 1.84 -

                                  

Sum of Years 6 to 10 14.10 -

                                  

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

i. Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit ObligaƟon
Present Value of Benefit ObligaƟon at the Beginning of the Year 106.12

                           

-

                                  

Interest Cost 6.01

                                

-

                                  

Current Service Cost 15.91

                              

-

                                  

(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (11.07)

                            

-

                                  

Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on ObligaƟons - Due to Change in Financial AssumpƟons  1.25

                                

-

                                  

Due to change in Demographic assumpƟons -

                                  

-

                                  

Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on ObligaƟons - Due to Experience  3.83

                                

-

                                  

Present Value of Benefit ObligaƟon at the End of the  Year 122.05

                           

-

                                  

ii. Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets
Fa ir Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the  Year 34.63

                              

-

                                  

Interest Income 1.95 -

                                  

ContribuƟons by the Employer 87.45 -

                                  

(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (11.07)

                            

-

                                  

ParƟculars

( in Lakhs)
 

₹
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39. InformaƟon on Segment ReporƟng as per Ind AS 108 on "OperaƟng Segments"

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

A. Segment Revenue (Sales / Services to 
external customers):
a. Speciality Chemicals 6,222.10

                       

-
                               

b. Power GeneraƟon 59.61

                            

-

                               

Total Revenue 6,281.71

                       

-

                               

B. Segment Results :
Profit/ (Loss)  before Tax and Interest
a. Speciality Chemicals 2,545.60

                       

-

                               

b. Power GeneraƟon (149.25)

                         

-

                               

Total 2,396.35

                       

-

                               

Less: Interest Expense 7.54

                              

-

                               

Others Unallocated Expenses (191.70)

                         

-

                               

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2,580.51

                       

-

                               

  Current Tax 695.55

                          

-

                               

  Tax relaƟng to Earlier Years (117.11)

                         

-

                               

  Deferred Tax (97.42)

                           

-

                               

481.02

                          

-

                               

Profit /(Loss) aŌer Tax 2,099.49

                       

-

                               

OperaƟng Segments are those components of business whose operaƟng results are regularly reviewed by the Chief 
OperaƟng Decision making body in the Company to make decisions for performance assessment and resource 
allocaƟon.
The Company has idenƟfied two reportable primary segments, Speciality Chemicals and Power GeneraƟo n in terms 
of Ind AS 108 on "OperaƟng Segments".

ParƟculars

( in Lakhs)
 
₹

Notes on SensiƟvity Analysis

i.

ii.

iii.

In presenƟng the above sensiƟvity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligaƟon has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporƟng period, which is the same method as applied in calculaƟng the
projected benefit obligaƟon as recognised in the balance sheet.

There is no change in the method from the previous period and the points /percentage by which the assumpƟons are
stressed are same to those in the previous year.

SensiƟvity analysis for each significant actuarial assumpƟons of the Company which are discount rate and salary assumpƟons
as of the end of the reporƟng period, showing how the defined benefit obligaƟon would have been aff ected by changes is 
 presented in the table above.

vii. SensiƟvity Analysis
 Projected Benefit ObligaƟon on Current AssumpƟons 122.05                           -                                  

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of DiscounƟng (2.50)                              -                                  
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of DiscounƟng 2.72 -                                  
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 2.53% -                                  
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (2.45)                              -                                  
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.04                                -                                  
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.04)                              -                                  

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021



 As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

Other InformaƟon :

Segment Assets
a. Speciality Chemicals 8,502.25                       -                               

b. Power GeneraƟon 377.49                          -                               

c. Others – Unallocated 598.13
                          

-
                               

Total 9,477.87
                       

-
                               

Segment LiabiliƟes
a. Speciality Chemicals 978.93

                          
-

                               

b. Power GeneraƟon -
                                

-
                               

c. Others – Unallocated 0.25
                              

-
                               

Total 979.18
                          

-
                               

Capital Expenditure during the year
a. 517.18

                          
-

                               

-
                               

                                – Capital Advances 730.47
                          

-
                               

b. Power GeneraƟon -
                                

-
                               

c. Others – Unallocated -

                                

-

                               

Total 1,247.65

                       

-

                               

DepreciaƟon during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals 134.01

                          

-

                               

b. Power GeneraƟon 44.54

                            

-

                               

c. Others – Unallocated -

                                

-

                               

Total 178.55

                          

-

                               

Impairment during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals 14.50

                            

-

                               

b. Power GeneraƟon 118.70

                          

-

                               

c. Others – Unallocated -

                                

-

                               

Total 133.20

                          

-

                               

Notes :
i.

ii.
iii. The Company does not have any other reportable segment in terms of Ind AS 108 on "OperaƟng Segments".

ParƟculars

Speciality Chemicals – Property, Plant and Equipment  
                                   and Capital work-in-progress

The revenue from the said customer pertains to the Speciality Chemicals.

There is only one single customer contribuƟng 24% or more to the company's revenue for F.Y. 2020-21  i.e. 
1,472.70 lakhs 
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( in Lakhs)
 

₹

 

₹

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021



40. Related Party Disclosures:

(A) Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Amit M Mehta  ExecuƟve Chairman 
(w.e.f. 1st April, 2020)

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

Mr. Dhruv Mehta Independent Director 
Mr. Ambrish Dalal Independent Director
Mrs. Kejal Pandya Independent Director
Mr. Yogesh M Kothari Chairman - Non ExecuƟve Director (up to 18th November,2019)
Mr. Kirat Patel Non ExecuƟve Director (up to 18th November,2019)
Mr. Shreyas Mehta Independent Director (up to 02nd December, 2019)

(B) RelaƟve of Key Managerial Personnel:
Mr. Mohak Mehta RelaƟve of Key Managerial personnel 

(C) Director of WOS:
Mr. Tanmay Godiawala Director of WOS (w.e.f. 17th November, 2020)

S Amit Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.
Divya Desh Tour & Travels LLP
Holidaywalas.Com Travel LLP
Perfo Chem (I) Private Limited
Reaxa Chemistry SoluƟons LLP
Hi End Property Developers LLP
Mohar ProperƟes and Trading LLP
Finorga (I) Pvt. Ltd.
Chem Amit 
Godiawala Trading CorporaƟon

Name of related parƟes and descripƟon of their relaƟonships are as under:

ExecuƟve Director
Professional Director ( Independent Director up to                                                      

(D) EnƟƟes over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise significant influence:
S Amit & Co.

R.S.Chhabra & Co.(Prop. Mr Rajendra Chhabra)
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5th  November,2020)
Professional Director-Non execuƟve director
(w.e.f 06th November, 2020)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021
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Nature of TransacƟon

 EnƟƟes over which 
 Key  Managerial 
Personnel exercise 

 significant influence 

 Key 
Managerial 
personnel 

 RelaƟve of Key 
Managerial 
personnel 

 Director of 
WOS 

Total

RemuneraƟon paid -

                         

118.66

            

23.35

                  

5.17

           

147.18

                  
-

                         

-

             

-

                   

-

             

-

                   
-

                         

47.43 -

                      

47.43

                    
-

                         

-

             

-

                      

-

                   
-

                         

71.23

              

71.23

                    

-

                         

-

                  

-

                      

-

                        

-

                         

-

                  

23.35

                  

23.35

                    

-

                         

-

                  

-

                   

-

                     

- - - 5.17 5.17

                      

- - - -

                        

- 9.92 - 9.92

                      

- - - -

                   

                       

 

                                                                                  

 

                                                                      

 

                    

 

                       

 

                                                              

                    

 

-

                         

2.84 -

                      

2.84

                     

 

-

                         

-

               

-

                      

-

                    

 

                                                                 

                       

 

                                                              

                    

 

-

                         

2.44 -

                      

2.44

                     

 

-

                         

-

               

-

                      

-

                    

 

2.40 2.40

                     

 

-

               

-

                    

 

-

                         

2.24 -

                      

2.24

                     

 

-

                         

-

               

-

                      

-

                    

 

Legal & Professional Fees 6.00

                       

-

                  

9.42

           

15.42

                    

-

                  

-

                       

9.42

           

9.42

                      

-

                  

-

                       

-

             

-

                        

6.00

                       

-

                  

-

                      

6.00

                      

-

                  

-

                      

-

                        

The following transacƟons were carried out with the related parƟes in ordinary course of business during the Year

  Mr. Dhruv Mehta

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam

Mr. Amit M Mehta

Mr. Mohak Mehta

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala

Siƫng Fees paid

  Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

  Mr. Ambrish Dalal

  Mrs. Kejal Pandya

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala

R.S.Chhabra & Co. ( Prop. 
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra)

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

-                         51.90                   -                               51.90
-

                         -
                 

-
                               -

-
                         

27.57 -
                               

27.57
-

                         
-

                 
-
                               

-
-

                         
3.45 -

                               
3.45

-
                         

-
                    

-
                               

-
-

                         
1.38 -

                               
1.38

- - - -

Commission

  Mr. Amit M Mehta

  Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

  Mr. Dhruv Mehta

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-                                    

                                                                                                             -
                         

1.38 -
                               

1.38
                                   -

                         
-

                    
-
                               

-
                                 -

                         
1.38 -

                               
1.38

                                   -

                         

-

                    

-

                               

-

                                 - 16.75 - 16.75
- - - -

  Mr. Ambrish Dalal

  Mrs. Kejal Pandya

  Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam

-
-
-
-
-
-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021

--
--

-
-

-
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Balance as at:
 As at 

31st March, 2021
 As at 

31st March, 2020

                                

RemuneraƟon :
 Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam

 Mr. Mohak Mehta

                    

 Mr. Tanmay Godiawala

                      

                  
                  

Legal & Professional Fees :
R.S.Chhabra & Co. ( Prop. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra)

                

                   

                     

   Mr. Dhruv Mehta

                     

                     
                     
                     
                       
                       

  Mr. Amit M Mehta

ParƟculars

Other payable:

  Mr. Amit M Mehta

Commission to Directors:

  Mr. Rajendra Chhabra

  Mr. Ambrish Dalal
   Mrs. Kejal Pandya
   Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam
  Purchase of Goods :
   Reaxa Chemistry SoluƟons, LLP

                                
 

                               
 

                                
 

                               
 

                                   
 

                                 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                                                        

 

                                                                                                             

 

0.34

                      

0.60

                     

-

                               

0.94

                                   

 

-

                     

-

                    

-

                               

-

                                 

 

-

                         

0.60 -

                               

0.60

                                   

 

- - - -

 

0.34 - - 0.34

 

-                         -                        -                                -                                      

 

                                                                               
                                     

 

                                                                           
                                 

 

Purchase of Goods 2.95

                      

2.95

                                   

 

2.95

                      

2.95
                                   

 

-

                         

-
                                     

 

Sale of Goods 0.27

                      

0.27

                                   
 

0.27
                      

0.27

                                   
 

-

                         

-

                                     
 

  Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam

Reimbursement of Expenses

  S Amit Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Ltd..

Reaxa Chemistry SoluƟons, LLP

Reaxa Chemistry SoluƟons, LLP

' 'Terms and CondiƟons' (i) All outstanding balances are unsecured.
Note :

( in Lakhs)

 

₹

65.12

2.62
4.05

1.60
1.07

0.93

27.57
3.45

1.38
1.38

1.38
16.75

2.94

 

-
-
-
-
-

 -

 
 

- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the Year ended
31st March, 2020

162.98            -                   
33.78 -

Category-wise break up of compensaƟon to key management personnel during the year is as follows:               

ParƟculars

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

( in Lakhs)
 

₹

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021

- - -
- -

- -- - -
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(a) Financial assets and liabiliƟes:

593.67                      -   

      943.25                      -   
        49.97                      -   
   3,261.16                      -   
        11.85                      -   

4,266.23   -                  

DerivaƟves
 - Forward Contracts            1.24                      -   

           1.24                      -   

        30.24                      -   
      286.53                      -   
      186.18                      -   

502.95      -                  
The carrying value of Financial Assets and Financial LiabiliƟes measured at amorƟsed cost  approximates to

ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
(a) Investments in equity instruments (Quoted)                                     593.67                                            -   

41. Disclosures on financial instruments

This secƟon gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides 

The details of significant accounƟng policies, including the criteria for recogniƟon, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,  

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial assets 

I. Financial assets:

Total

II. Financial liabiliƟes:

ParƟculars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Total
Measured at amorƟsed cost
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets

Total

Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Total
Measured at amorƟsed cost
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabiliƟes

 their fair values.

and liabiliƟes as at 31st March, 2021 

financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial  Statements. 
and

addiƟonal informaƟon on balance sheet items that contain  financial instruments.

(₹ in Lakhs)

(₹ in Lakhs)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021
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(b) Capital Management

 Fair Value Measurement:

1.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(1.24)                  -                  
ValuaƟon technique and key input: Mark to market Statement provided by State Bank of India

2.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

593.67           -                 
ValuaƟon technique and key input: Quoted bid prices from Bombay Stock Exchange.

3

The Group's objecƟve when managing capital is to:
- Safeguard its ability to conƟnue as a going concern so that the Group is able to provide maximum return to stakeholders 

- Maintain an opƟmal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group's Board of Directors reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the Board
considers the cost of capital, risk associated with each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.

Financial assets / (l iabiliƟes)  measured at fair value
Gain / (Loss) on Forward Contract

Financial assets / liabiliƟes at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

ParƟculars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

This note provides informaƟon about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets.
Fair value of the Company's financial assets / financial liabiliƟes that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Company's financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporƟng period . The following 

Financial assets / liabiliƟes at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

ParƟculars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Disclosure related to DerecogniƟon of  investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through other 

(a)the reasons for disposing of the investments - The holding company has disposed of certain long-term investments 
in equity instruments in line with its risk  management policy to miƟgate the associated risks.   

(b)the fair value of the investments at the date of derecogniƟon - Sale Price on the date of sale.

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in equity - 
Quoted

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes that  are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes recognised in the
financial statements (except fair value of investments in equity instruments and DerivaƟves -  Forward Contracts) 

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended 31st March, 2021.

and benefits for other stakeholders.

table gives informaƟon about how the fair Values of these Financial assets are determined.

approximate their fair values.

comprehensive income during the reporƟng 

(c) Financial risk management:
The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.
The risk management policy is approved by the Company's Board. The Company’s principal financial liabiliƟes comprise
of borrowings (if any), trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabiliƟes is to finance the Company’s
operaƟons and to provide guarantees to support its operaƟons in selecƟve instances. The Company’s principal financial
assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operaƟons and investments.
The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk etc. The objecƟves of the Company’s financing policy are
to secure solvency, limit financial risks and opƟmise the cost of capital. The Company’s capital structure is
equity and debt raƟos as part of the Company’s financial planning.

managed using 

(₹ in Lakhs)

(₹ in Lakhs)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021

(c) Loss on disposal     21.52 Lakhs  the cumulaƟve gain or loss on disposal - ₹ 
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Amount in 
Foreign currency

₹ in Lakhs
Amount in 

Foreign 
₹ in Lakhs

Payable USD 212,200.56              157.35                    -                 -                      

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2021

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2020

-
                  

-
                                    

-
                  

-
                                    

-7.87
               

-
                                    

7.87
                

-
                                    

(a) Market risk:

Foreign Currency SensiƟvity:
The Company is principally exposed to foreign currency risk against USD. SensiƟvity of profit or loss arises mainly from USD 

As per management’s assessment of reasonable possible changes in the exchange rate of +/- 5% between USD-INR currency
pair, sensiƟvity of profit or loss only on outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items at the period end is 

USD sensiƟvity at year end

Assets:
Weakening of INR by 5%
Strengthening of INR by 5%

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices- such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices- will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instrument. The objecƟve of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while opƟmising the return. The  major 
components of market risk are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

(I) Foreign Currency Risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Company undertakes transacƟons denominated in foreign currencies; consequently,
 exposures to exchange rate fluctuaƟons arise.

Foreign currency exposure as at 31st March, 2021 are hedged as per the policy of the company

ParƟculars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Though the forward contracts are not designated as hedging instruments, they are used for hedging foreign currency
exposure and outstanding as at year ended 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2020 are as under:-

LiabiliƟes:
Weakening of INR by 5%
Strengthening of INR by 5%

Forward foreign exchange contracts
It is the policy of the Company to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover foreign currency payments in USD.
The Company enters in to contracts with terms up to 120 days.

Forward cover is obtained from bank for each of the aggregated exposures and the Trade deal is booked. The forward
cover deals are all backed by actual trade underlines and seƩlement of these contracts on maturity are by actual delivery 

denominated receivables and payables.

of the hedged currency for seƩling the underline hedged trade transacƟon.

(₹ in Lakhs)

Outstanding contracts
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

USD-Sell 74.15 -                             212,200.56                 -                                   

(₹ in Lakhs)
Outstanding contracts

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
In INR 157.35 -                             156.11                         -                                   
Total 157.35                      -                             156.11                         -                                   

Average exchange rates Foreign Currency

Nominal Amounts Fair Value

₹ in Lakhs)(

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021

presented below:
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(II) Interest rate risk:
The Company invests the surplus fund generated from operaƟons in bank deposits . Bank deposits are made for a period of up to
12 months and carry interest rate of 5%-5.40%

 in nature, there is no significant interest rate risk.  There is no significant uƟlisaƟon of Borrowings.

(III) Price risk:
The Company’s equity securiƟes price risk arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through OCI.

publicly traded.

as per

The Company’s equity investments in SecuriƟes are

Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 2021 would increase / decrease by 29.69Lakhs as a result of 5% changes
in fair value of equity investments measured at FVTOCI.

(b) Credit risk:
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligaƟons resulƟng in financial loss to the Company.
The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparƟes as a means of miƟgaƟng the risk of financial loss
from defaults. The Company's exposure and wherever appropriate, the credit raƟngs of its counterparƟes are conƟnuously monitored
and spread amongst various counterparƟes. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the
management of the Company. Financial instruments that are subject to concentraƟons of credit risk, principally  consist of balance

  with banks, investments in equity instruments and trade receivables.    
None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentraƟons of credit risks, which may result into financial 

(c) Liquidity  risk:

Price sensiƟvity analysis:
The sensiƟvity of profit or loss in respect of investments in equity shares at the end of the reporƟng period for +/-5% change in price and 

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and availability of funding through an adequate
amount of commiƩed credit faciliƟes to meet the obligaƟons when due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity posiƟon and
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addiƟon, liquidity management also involves projecƟng cash flows
considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligaƟons by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabiliƟes and
monitoring balance sheet liquidity raƟos. 

prevailing market interest rate. Considering these  bank deposits are  short term

net asset value is presented below:
₹ 

As at 31st March, 2021

                 30.24 
               286.53 
               187.42
               504.19

Borrowings
Trade payables
Other Financial LiabiliƟes

Total

The informaƟon included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabiliƟes based 
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. 

ParƟculars Less than 
1 year

1 Years to 
3 Years

3 Years to
5 Years

5 Years
and above

on the earliest date on which the Company may be required 
The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

(₹ in Lakhs)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2021

loss for the company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

As per our report of even date aƩached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AMIT MEHTA
Vishal P. Doshi ExecuƟve Chairman ExecuƟve Director
Partner DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Membership No. 101533

DIPEN RUPARELIA HEMAXI PAWAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 18th May, 2021

46. Approval of Consolidated Financials Statements
The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on  18th May, 2021. 

G.S.VENKATACHALAM

43. The company has sought balance confirmaƟons from trade receivables and trade payables, wherever such balance
confirmaƟons are received by the Company, the same are reconciled and appropriate adjustments if required, are
made in the books of account.

44 Since the wholly owned subsidiary (DACL Fine Chem Limited) was incorporated as on 30th July,2020, and therefore,
the comparaƟve consolidated financial Statements have not been presented for the previous year ended 31st
March,2020.
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45  The nature of Group's business is such that by and large, it conƟnues to remain unaffected from the effects of Covid-19 
pandemic. Therefore, there is no material impact on the operaƟons and financials of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2021. 
The Group will conƟnue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic condiƟons. 
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